
AGENDA 
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 

CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 

TUESDAY, MAY 20, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . .. By YOllr presence in the City COllncil Chambers, YOIl are participating in the process of 
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
COllncil are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avelllie. YOllr City 
Government welcomes YOllr interest and hopes YOIl will attend and participate in Rio Dell City COllncil 
meetings often. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hOllrs prior 
to the meeting will enable the Cih) to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibilih) to this 
meeting. 

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH 
TITLE IN BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1) 2014/0520.01- CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- PENDING LITIGATION 
Name of Case: City of Rio Dell v. SHN Consulting Engineers & 
GeolOgists, Inc. a California Corp. - Case No. DR130745 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a) 

2) 2014/0520.02 - CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 
LmGATION 
Consider initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of 
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (One potential case, facts and 
circumstances known to adverse parties): Access dispute, quiet 
title and prescriptive easement related to waterline maintenance 
and vehicular access along Old Ranch Road to City of Rio Dell 
Monument Springs Parcel (APN: 205-041-014). Potential adverse 
property owners along Old Ranch Road, include, without limitation, 
Cidoni, Coleman, Lewis and Humboldt Redwood Company. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 



E. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 

F. RECONVENUE INTO OPEN SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 

G. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

H. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I. CEREMONIAL MATIERS 

J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over 

which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Councilor staff is not intended. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda //lay be placed on the next regular agenda for 
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of ti,e Councilmembers 
present that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgenClJ nature requiring 
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one vote. 
The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council members if there is anyone who wishes to 
address any matter on the Consent Calendar. TI,e matters removed from ti,e Consent Calendar will be 
considered individually in tIre next section, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 

1) 2014/0520.03 - Approve Minutes of the April 15, 2014 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 1 

2) 2014/0520.04 - Approve Minutes of the May 9, 2014 Special Meeting (ACTION) 22 

3) 2014/0520.05 - Approve Amendment to Agreement with Freshwater Environmental 
Services to include support services for update of the City of Rio Dell 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan (ACTION) 29 

4) 2014/0520.06- Update on Parking Enforcement Program (RECEIVE & FILE) 30 

5) 2014/0520.07 - Defer consideration of the Residential High Energy User Tax until 
Spring 2015 (ACTION) 31 

1. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

1) 2014/0520.08 - Presentation by Michael O'Connor, CPA, R.J. Ricciardi, Inc. 
FY 2012-2013 Audit 

2) 2014/0520.09 - Presentation from Bartle Wells Associates Regarding Wastewater Rate 
and Capacity Fee Study Final Draft, Conduct Public Hearing and 
Approve Resolution 1222-2014 Establishing Wastewater Fees and 
Charges (Adjusting Rates from a Flat Rate to a 70% Fixed and 30% 
Volume Rate Schedule) (ACTION) 33 



M. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

1) "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS" from Consent Calendar 

2) 2014/0520.10 - Release Old Ranch Road Water Users City Council Subcommittee 
and provide City Manager direction (ACTION) 55 

N. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1) 2014/0520.11 - Conduct second reading (by title only) and adopt Ordinance 
No. 316-2014 amending Commercial and Industrial Regulations by 
replacing the language" such as" with" similar to and including but 
not limited to" and to allow uses not compatible with the uses 
permitted in the zone with a Conditional Use Permit (ACTION) 57 

2) 2014/0520.12 - Introduce and conduct first reading (by title only) of Ordinance 
No. 318-2014 Establishing Density Bonus Regulations, Section 
17.30.073 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ACTION) 65 

O. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

1. City Manager 
2. Chief of Police 
3. Finance Director - Monthly Check Register for April 
4. Community Development Director 

P. COUNCIL REPORTS/ COMMUNICATIONS 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

The next regular meeting will be on lillie 3, 2014 
at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Council Chambers 

106 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
CLOSED SESSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 15,2014 
MINUTES 

The closed session/regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:00 p.m. 
by Mayor Thompson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

Mayor Thompson, Councilmembers Johnson, Marks, Wilson and 
Woodall 

Closed Session: City Manager Stretch and City Attorney Gans 

Regular Meeting: City Manager Stretch, Chief of Police Hill, 
Finance Director Woodcox, Wastewater Superintendent Chicora, 
City Attorney Gans and City Clerk Dunham 

WaterlRoadways Superintendent Jensen and Community 
Development Director Caldwell (excused) 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - PENDING LITIGATION 
Name of Case: City of Rio Dell v. SHN Consulting Engineers & Geologists. Inc. a California 
Corp. - Case No. DRI30745 pursuant to Subdivision (a) of Section 54956.9 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Consider initiation oflitigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9 
One potential case. facts and circumstances know to adverse party - Roger Barisdale. 555 
Painter Street. Rio Dell. Encroachments to Public Right-of-Way 

Mayor Thompson announced the Council would be recessing into closed session to discuss the 
above matters. There was no public present to comment on the closed session. 

The Council reconvened into open session at 6:30 p.m. 

ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

City Attorney Gans announced with regard to Closed Session Item C (2) the City Council voted 
unanimously, with a motion by Councilmember Marks and second by Council member Woodall 
to initiate litigation to abate nuisances at 555 Painter Street as identified on the agenda. 

1 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 2 

Councilmember Johnson announced he would be requesting the addition of two (2) unlisted 
items to the agenda at the conclusion of the public hearing on wastewater rates related to 
HCAOG and the study for the rail service. He said these items just became known to him 
yesterday so were not able to be placed on the agenda. 

CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

Proclamation in Recognition of National Bike Month May 2014 
Mayor Thompson read the proclamation in recognition of National Bike Month, May 2014 
encouraging citizens to support and participate in activities that contribute to the health of the 
community and the environment. There was no one present to receive the proclamation. 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

Michael Chase commented that we talk about preserving the environment by riding bikes but 
don't do anything to protect the river bar by keeping it open. 

Nick Angeloff thanked Councilmember Wilson for coming out to the opening day for the Little 
League Minors; reported that the Business Incubator Program is doing well and they received 
their first check from the Headwaters grant; provided a brief update on the east-west rail and said 
the Upstate Rail Committee met and talked about the submittal of a TIGER Planning Grant. He 
said a private individual stated that he acquired enough of a feasibility study that shows it is 
feasible for co-location of gas and fiber as well as investments up to $2 billion. He was asked to 
make a presentation at the next meeting and verify this information so they don't waste their time 
in the future. He commented that the committee is moving forward without depending on that 
information as fact until it can be confirmed. 

Sharon Ehrlich addressed the Council regarding an article in the City of Rio Dell Spring 
Newsletter related to Davis Street River Bar Access which stated that the Fire Department had 
difficulty accessing the river bar through the existing gate at the River's Edge R.V. Park. She 
said she was not informed of this happening and that the newsletter said that committee members 
are recommending creating public access at Davis St. managed by the city of Rio Dell. She 
stated that there currently is access for emergency vehicles and she has provided the gate code to 
all officials who have requested it. She said the park does not interfere with access by 
emergency vehicles and there is also public access to the river by foot. She said there is not 
access for vehicles (other than emergency vehicles) and that the property has been designated as 
a Certified Wildlife Habitat by the National Wildlife Federation and is recognized by the 
National Resources Defense Council. She indicated that the Department of Fish & Game and 
Friends of the Eel River is also supportive of limited vehicle access to the river bar. She said she 
would like to see taxpayer's money spent on a double lock or daisy-chain lock that supports the 
needs of all emergency vehicles that may need to access the river bar area. She said the natural 

2 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 3 

habitat that exists on the beautiful Eel River should be respected and cared for. She presented 
the City Manager with catalog from Knox. a supplier of daisy-chain locks. 

Lee Kessler addressed the Council regarding the same issue and said he spoke with the Fortuna 
Fire Chief and that he found it odd that the City of Rio Dell would want the river bar at Davis St. 
open to vehicle traffic. He said since it is a Certified Wildlife Habitat, it should be isolated from 
vehicle traffic. He commented that Scott Grayson from Friends of the Eel River is highly 
interested in the outcome related to vehicle access. He said he spoke to the Fire Chief who 
expressed concern and there was a vehicle upside down on the river bar that was apparently not 
even investigated to see why. 

Mayor Thompson asked Mr. Kessler if he had spoken to the Rio Dell Fire Chief. When he 
responded that he hadn't he informed him that Fortuna Fire Department does not cover Rio Dell 
and suggested he contact Rio Dell Fire Department with questions or concerns. 

Ranada Laughlin stated that she is a Wildlife Biologist and a member of the Friends of the Eel 
River but she likes to drive on the river bar and does not understand why she can't. She pointed 
out that there are people with mobility problems and people who simply want to fish or recreate 
at the river; they use it responsibly and should not be prohibited from accessing it by vehicle. 

Karen Chase said it is good to see others speak up and suggested everyone get together and 
come up with a solution. She said she supports access if people are responsible. She said there 
is access to the river from Edwards Dr. and suggested people park at the end of Edwards and 
walk to the river bar. She said there are tire tracks going in and out of there all night when there 
is no fishing going on. She expressed concern that the vehicles are tearing up the river bar and 
digging up rocks which cannot be good for the river bar. She said we all need to enjoy the river 
bar and need to get everyone together to talk about how to address the problems. 

Michael Chase commented that we live in an eco-system but all of the insects, frogs, snakes and 
lizards need to be protected stating they are the end of the food chain. 

City Manager Stretch introduced the City's new Finance Director, Brooke Woodcox and said 
we are very pleased to have her on board. He said there were a great field of candidates and she 
scored at the top of the list. She is currently working toward obtaining her CPA license and lives 
in Rio Dell. She received a warm welcome of applause. 

Adam Dias addressed the Council regarding river access and said everyone needs to come to 
some sort of agreement. He said the law can't block access to the river but it can be limited to 
foot traffic only if it can be proven that vehicle access is harmful to the environment. He said a 
tourist stopped by and wanted to take his dog to the river and he directed him to Edwards Dr. He 
encouraged the Council to keep level heads and remember that Rio Dell has a population of 
3,400; not 20,000. 

3 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 4 

Sharon Wolff stated for clarification that there are really two issues; the access to the river bar at 
Edwards Dr. and access to the river bar at the end of Davis SI. which has private property. She 
said the access at that location has a private gate with a public right-oC-way next to it, whereas 
Edwards Dr. is not private. She said she wanted to make sure everyone is clear about the access. 

Lee Kessler stated that plants and animals can be uprooted but also understands that people want 
to be able to use the river bar. He said Department of Fish & Game and some property owners 
might not want to allow vehicle access but he asked that the Council consider one thing; it seems 
it would be less expensive for the City to buy some locks and have a daisy-chain system than pay 
for lawyers to take legal action against another property owner. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Councilmember Marks asked that Item No.4 be removed from the Consent Calendar and placed 
under Special Call1lems for separate discussion. 

Motion was made by Wilson/Johnson to approve the consent calendar including the approval of 
minutes of the April I, 2014 regular meeting; approval of new contract with Access Humboldt to 
manage the Community Media Center and provide Peg Access Programming and Community 
Media Services; and approval of Internal Finance Department Transfer of $14.790 to cover 
unanticipated cost of2012-2013 Audit and additional Auditor's cost for 2013-2014. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS 
(From Consent Calendar) 

Correction to April" 2014 Staff Report and March 27. 2014 letter to Arnie Kemp regarding 
Termination of Services Agreement 
Councilmember Marks stated that this item was pulled from the consent calendar at the request 
of Adam Dias. 

City Manager Stretch explained the Council took action on this item on April I, 2014 ratifying 
the City Manager's action to terminate Arnie Kemp's building inspection and plan check 
services contract for cause. He said the matter came up too late on March 27, 2014 to be 
included in the agenda packet so was added to the agenda as an urgency matter. He said the 
dates on Mr. Kemp's letter and the staff report to the Council incorrectly read March 20, 2014 
rather than March 27, 2014. As such, the dates were corrected on both documents and presented 
at this time for the purpose of the public record. 

Adam Dias addressed the Council and said it is his understanding that Arnie Kemp was 
terminated as Building Inspector and that the City is contracting with the City of Fortuna for 
building inspection services and possibly with the County, with the Community Development 
Director, Kevin Caldwell eventually taking over that responsibility. 

4 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
PageS 

He said he's not sure what caused Arnie's termination but said as a homeowner in the City, 
Arnie has come to his home on a weekend to help him with a project and expressed concern 
about the new arrangement. He said this comes at a time with increased utility connection fees 
which contractors are still trying to get used to and feels this change will result in a pretty good 
blow to development. He said he has nothing against Kevin but he's already difficult to get 
ahold of on 
Fridays and is pretty sure he won't be willing to come out on a Saturday or Sunday like Arnie 
has done. He asked the Council to take into consideration that with not only consolidation of 
power to the person who permits building but to have him also inspect and reject building might 
not be the best idea. He commented that he is already very busy and it may be difficult to get 
inspections when they are needed. 

City Manager Stretch explained that a new contract with Arnie Kemp for plan check and 
building inspection services was approved by the Council at their February 18, 2014 meeting. 
He said the new contract contained several new requirements including the acquisition of 
appropriate insurance coverage which the City agreed to reimburse him for. He was also asked 
to provide copies of current Plan Check and Building Inspection Certificates to the City. He said 
as of March 20, 2014 he was still unable to provide those documents, so the City had no choice 
but to terminate his contract. 

Joe Enes expressed concern that using outside inspectors will create delays with regard to 
scheduling inspections. He said the new arrangement won't work well for him but he will do his 
best to make it work. 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

Presentation from Bartle Wells Associates Regarding Wastewater Rate and Capacitv Fee Study 
Final Draft. conduct Public Hearing and Approve Resolution No. 1222-2014 Establishing 
Wastewater Fees and Charges (Adjusting Rates from a Flat Rate to a 70% Fixed and 30% 
Volume Rate Schedule) 
Mayor Thompson began by welcoming everyone to the Prop 218 public hearing on the 
wastewater rate and capacity fee study. He said the residents received a notice of this public 
hearing approximately 35 days ago and that the notice contained a summary of the proposed 
equity adjustments that the Council will be discussing this evening. He commented that citizens 
were given the opportunity to present written protests on the proposed wastewater rate 
adjustments. He reviewed the process for the public hearing and explained that under the Prop 
218 provisions. if 50% plus I written protest votes are received, the City Council cannot move 
forward with the wastewater rate adjustment. He asked the City Clerk to report on the number of 
protest votes received at this time. 

City Clerk Dunham announced that there were a total of 31 written protest votes received related 
to the proposed wastewater rate adjustment out of approximately 1,300 notices sent out to 
residents. 

5 



April 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 6 

Alison Lechowicz, Financial Analyst from Bartle Wells Associates (BW A) was introduced. She 
stated that BW A was engaged by the City to develop a new wastewater rate structure and to 
update the City's wastewater capacity fee. 

She proceeded with a power point presentation on the Final Drafi of the City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study dated January 3, 2014. The report presented their 
approach for changing the City's current flat rate wastewater rate to a flat rate volumetric rate 
structure. The report also recommended a new capacity fee for the wastewater system. She 
explained the wastewater rates and charges proposed are based on the cost of service, follow 
generally accepted rate design criteria, and adhere to the substantive requirements of Proposition 
218. 

She said the current wastewater rate is a fixed monthly charge of $76.16 per residence or EDU 
(equivalent dwelling unit), and commercial customers are assigned multiple EDU's based on 
their wastewater flows. The recommended rate structure includes a fixed monthly charge plus a 
volume rate based on estimated wastewater flows. Wastewater rate alternatives were developed 
by allocating the current system revenues of $1.17 million to fixed and variable categories. 

She further explained that the benefit of implementing a volume rate is equitability; lower 
wastewater users would pay a lower monthly bill than high wastewater users. 

Two wastewater rate alternatives were presented. Option I (the alternative recommended by 
BWA) allocated 70% of costs to the fixed charge and 30% of the costs to the volume charge. 
The fixed monthly charge would be $52.68 per EDU plus a volume rate based on customer class 
ranging from $3.63 per ccf for the low strength to $7.95 per ccf for high strength users. With the 
average residential customer having a wastewater flow of 5 hundred cubic feet (5 units), the 
monthly bill would be $75.38 which is a slight decrease of the current monthly bill of$76.16. 

Option 2 allocates 50% of the costs to the fixed charge and 50% of costs to the volume charge 
with the fixed monthly charge of$37.62 per EDU and volume rates ranging from $6.06 per ccf 
to $13.25 per ccf. The average residential monthly bill under this option would be $75.47; a 
decrease of $0.69 from the current bill. 

Ms. Lechowicz further explained that wastewater flows are often estimated using winter water 
consumption as customers typically don't use water for outdoor irrigation during the winter. As 
such, it was suggested that the months of December, January and February be used to estimate 
wastewater flows. Also, she said currently accounts that are deactivated are not charged the 
monthly rate; under the proposed rate structure deactivated accounts will be charged the monthly 
fixed rate charge. 

She said BWA was also asked to do an analysis of the City's wastewater capacity fee (buy-in to 
the collection system) and recommended an increase of the current $950 to $5,220 per EDU. 

6 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 7 

She indicated the fee reflects the recent upgrades to the wastewater treatment plant and is 
moderate in comparison to other agencies in the region. 

In reviewing the rate comparisons with other agencies, the proposed wastewater monthly bill for 
Rio Dell represented the highest bill out of the 12 agencies surveyed although the proposed 
wastewater capacity fee of $5,220 was competitive with the other agencies. 

Councilmember Johnson pointed out that the reason the capacity fees for some of the other local 
jurisdictions such as Eureka, Manila and Scotia are so much lower is because they have not 
upgraded their wastewater treatment facilities and that the City'S fee reflects the $12 million 
upgrade. 

Councilmember Marks said another factor is that the City of Rio Dell has a small customer base 
so the economy of scale comes into play. 

A public hearing was opened at 7:25 p.m. to receive public comment on the proposed wastewater 
rate structure as set forth in Resolution No. 1222-2014. 

Ruth Allen, asked how the base charge of $52.68 is calculated and said she doesn't understand 
how wastewater flows are registered. 

Ms. Lechowicz explained the monthly fixed charge of $52.68 is based on each customer" s 
equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) count. The volume rate is based on wastewater flow and 
strength characteristics using the average water usage for the months of December, January and 
February since typically all of the water during those months are used inside the home. 

Ranada Laughlin asked when the study was done; if there are any other agencies that use this 
type of rate structure and if so, if there were any complaints; if the water meters detect usage 
below 2 units; if customers can verify their usage; and why the usage is capped at 15 units as it 
seems by doing that it doesn't encourage water conservation. She also noted that it seems that the 
school should not be classified as low strength. 

Ms. Lechowicz commented that both fixed and volume rate schedules are common and she 
wasn't aware of any complaints regarding this type of rate structure. 

Mayor Thompson stated that the water meters do detect usage as low as I unit and also have leak 
detectors to detect leaks. 

City Manager Stretch stated that when Doug Dove from Bartle Wells Associates was here he 
indicated most agencies set a cap and the City Council determined that 15 units for the cap is 
reasonable. He said this is however. somewhat arbitrary. 

7 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
PageS 

Mayor Thompson pointed out that the ultimate goal is to redistribute the charges to make them 
more equitable so that each user class only pays its proportionate share. He said the overall 
revenue to the City will remain the same. 

Council member Woodall questioned why the school is in the category of low strength and said 
she would think it would be at least in the same category as residential. 

Ms. Lechowicz commented that typically schools have lunches brought in and no cooking is 
done on site. If they do have a cafeteria where they do a lot of cooking then the strength would 
be higher. 

Councilmember Johnson also pointed out that schools are only in operation 5 days per week and 
9 months out of the year. 

Linda Freitas commented that she has a 4-plex apartment unit on one meter and asked if there 
will be a fixed rate for those units and if she will start getting four individual bills. 

City Manager Stretch responded that she will continue to get one bill. 

Keith Baldwin spoke on behalf of his 96-year old mother-in-law and said she received a notice 
from the owner of Riverside Estates that her bill was going up $120.00 per month. 

City Manager Stretch explained the average water usage in Riverside Estates for the period from 
December-February is 4.6 units per household for a total of 171 units of water per month. With 
this in mind, the bills for the 37 park residents would go down. The master meter in the park 
however registers usage in excess of 500 units because of a leak. He said the property owner is 
aware of the leak and has indicated that he has the legal right to pass on any charges to the 
residents. Since each resident has its own private meter installed by the owner he said he doesn't 
see how the excess usage as a result of the leak can be passed on to the park residents. He said at 
a time when we need to conserve water, 68% of the water going through the meter is not being 
used and is lost. 

Councilmember Wilson pointed out that the water that is a result of the leak is comparable to 
normal usage for 73 residents. He said with the City going into a potential water crisis and the 
owner knowingly letting the leak to continue is reprehensible and not any fault of the City. He 
said the City doesn't have any authority at this time to demand that the owner repair the leak but 
that could change. 

Penny Prior stated that she has lived in the park since July 2010 and the park space rent has 
been increased 4 times. She said the park owner indicated the utility bill will be going up 
$120.00 per month. She said she does not like the idea of paying almost as much for park space 
rent as her mortgage. She expressed disappointment that more residents from the park were not 
in attendance. 

8 



APRIL IS, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 9 

Ruth Allen stated in January the park owner tore up one of the patios and fixed a leak and asked 
if it will make a difference in the bill. 

City Manager Stretch commented that it could make a slight difference but there are obviously 
other leaks that need to be repaired. He said there is a provision for adj ustments to the bill when 
there is a leak and the leak is repaired however it must meet the criteria. He commented that 
what the park owner charges the tenants is out of the City's hands even though there are private 
individual meters read monthly. He said at an average usage of 4.6 units, the tenants bills should 
go down; not increase as indicated by the owner. He said one option would be for the park 
residents to go to the State agency that governs mobile home parks (Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HCD) and see what their rights are. 

Ruth Allen commented that they did take their concerns regarding the rates to the park owner 
and they were told to mind their own business. 

There being no further public comment, the public hearing closed at 7:52 p.m. 

City Manager Stretch asked for a consensus from the Council on the proposed wastewater rate 
structure and said with regard to the variation in the numbers, Bartle Wells Associates is working 
on recalculating the numbers to make sure the overall rates are revenue neutral to the City. He 
said the initial figures presented by Bartle Wells differ from the City'S figures. He recommended 
the public hearing be continued to May 20, 2014. 

Councilmember Johnson asked where the discrepancy is. 

City Manager Stretch explained the new figures provided three weeks ago show there will be an 
increase in revenue. 

Councilmember Marks asked what will happen if after three months there is actually an increase 
in usage and if there is a provision for adjustment to the rates. 

Ms. Lechowicz explained that under the Prop 218 regulations, the rate adopted is the maximum 
rate you can charge so it cannot go up; it can however go down. 

Attorney Gans stated that if the City Council wants to adopt an amendment to raise the rates, it 
would have to go through the Prop 218 process again. He commented that there are limitations 
but there is the 3% annual increase already built in to the rate structure. 

Council member Wilson said he is not comfortable with the inconsistency in the numbers and if 
there is a discrepancy, it needs to be found. 

Councilmember Marks asked if the rates can be adjusted down if the 3% annual increase pushes 
the rates too high; City Attorney Gans reiterated the rates can be reduced: not increased. 

9 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 10 

City Manager Stretch explained approximately I Y, years ago staff sent B W A the data to 
complete the wastewater rate analysis but when the current staff attempted to locate a copy of the 
data that was sent; they weren ' t able to locate it. As a result, staff re-created the data from the 
same period but for some unknown reason, the numbers don't match. He suggested the finance 
staff do the reconciliation to make sure the numbers arc absolutely correct. He indicated that it 
may take a few weeks for staff to complete the reconciliation. 

Mayor Thompson commented that households in the category of 5 units or less will be getting a 
reduction on their bill whereas those in the category of 6-9 units who may still be in the same 
bracket financially with a family of 5 or 6 will see an increase. He pointed out there are 315 
customers in that category representing a total increase in annual revenue of $37,000. He said 
the next category of 10-14 units shows an overall increase of $39,000. He questioned the cap at 
IS units and if this is truly what the Council wants to accomplish. He pointed out that part of the 
rate restructuring is to encourage water conservation and if the rate is capped at IS units what 
incentive will those higher users have to conserve. He noted that there are between 40-50 
customers that use over IS units of water per month. 

Council member Wilson said in looking at the rate comparisons of other agencies, some of them 
all up to 5 units under the base charge and asked if BWA looked at that as an option. 

Ms. Lechowicz commented that there are many different types of rate structures that could be 
considered. 

Councilmember Marks asked if the idea is to pay BWA to audit the data or have staff do it. 

City Manager Stretch commented that although BWA did a very good analysis he is confident 
staff can reconcile the data and run the numbers by B WA. 

Mayor Thompson said the Council still needs to come to a consensus on the) 5 unit cap. 

City Manager Stretch restated that the number of customers using over IS units is between 40-
50. 

Councilmember Wilson said there is only so much that is going to flush down the sewer and the 
goal is to balance the rates to make them more equitable for low users. He said he believes water 
usage needs to occur in another discussion and feels the cap at 15 units is acceptable. 

Councilmember Woodall provided the scenario of everyone becoming more conservative and the 
City not collecting enough revenue. 

10 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 11 

City Manager Stretch pointed out that it would be easy for customers to be on their best behavior 
for I month but probably not for 3 months so the water average over the 3 month period would 
probably not change. 

Mayor Thompson asked what happens if someone is traveling and has no water usage during the 
months used for the average. 

City Manager Stretch said there is flexibility built into the rate schedule whereby the City 
reserves the right to adjust bills under certain circumstances. He directed their attention to the 
draft Resolution (No. 1222-2014). 

Mayor Thompson commented that there are a few things that occur during winter months with 
customers living normal lives such as washing vehicles, washing their fishing boat, or cleaning 
fish, all of which does not go into the sewer. He said he has always been of the opinion that it is 
a benefit to the City to encourage citizens to keep their lawns green no matter what time of year 
which leads to mowing grass more often and cleaning up. He expressed concern that if the rate 
structure is so rigid, people won't water their lawns, wash their vehicles or maintain their 
property. 

Council member Marks stated that the point of restructuring the rates is to help low users and 
suggested the data be recalculated and ifneeded, put the school in a different category. 

Councilmember Wilson asked if there was any further discussion on billing the property owners 
rather than the tenants, and if the base rate for vacant accounts was calculated into the rates. 

City Manager Stretch said he believed the option would be up to the property owner but the bills 
could continue to go to the rate payers unless the property is vacant; then the bill for the base rate 
would go to the landlord. Also, the rate for the vacant accounts was calculated into the rates. 

Motion was made by Wilson/Woodall to continue the public hearing to May 20. 2014 and direct 
staff to reconcile the data and bring it back to the Council at that time. Motion carried 5-0. 

A brief recess was called at this time, 8 :25 p.m. 

Attorney Gans left the meeting at this time. 

The meeting reconvened at 8:34 p.m. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS 

11 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 12 

Motion was made by Johnson/Wilson to add an unlisted item to the agenda titled 
Recommendation that the HCAOG Board Approve Letters of Support for the North Coast 
Railroad Authority's Humboldt Bav Rehabilitation Study pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54954.2(b.2) because the need to take action arose subsequent to the agenda having been 
posted. Motion carried 5-0. 

Councilmember Marks questioned the urgency of this item. 

Mayor Thompson stated as the City's representative on the HCAOG Board, Councilmember 
Johnson needs direction from the Council before the next meeting which is Thursday, April 17th

. 

Councilmember Johnson shared his concerns and said HCAOG has an agenda item (7(a.) 
scheduled for the Thursday meeting which in part calls for support letters for a TIGER Grant 
Application for the North Coast Railroad Authority's (NCRA) Humboldt Bay Rehabilitation 
Study. He said the study is a 2-part study; $.5 million for the NCRA's Humboldt Bay 
Rehabilitation Study and another $300.000 or so for the East-West Rail Feasibility Study. 

He said he would like a consensus of the Council before he votes on the agenda item. 

City Engineer Perry explained the matter came to the T AC meeting and the recommendation by 
TAC is to take a broader approach, not support the proposal and have the Upstate Rail 
Committee come back with an individual request. Also, he said there are very limited funds that 
come to HCAOG and those funds are needed by the Cities for local transportation needs. 

He said the question is whether this is an appropriate use of local transportation funds and when 
an agency starts applying for grants it starts the process for further project planning which is why 
Councilmember Johnson needs clarification from the Council. 

He further stated that if the City Council supports the feasibility study but not necessarily with 
the use of local transportation funds, it could be stated so in the letter of support. The HCAOG 
Board and NCRA would then understand the City's position on the issue. He said the proposal 
also requested that NCRA be included in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and identified 
as an alternative transportation method however; it is already included in the RTP. He 
commented that the NCRA Humboldt Bay Rehabilitation Project was determined to be a high 
risk and high cost project and the question is whether the City should support it. 

Engineer Perry further stated that with regard to the TIGER Grant for the NCRA Humboldt Bay 
Rehabilitation Study, several entities are associated with NCRA which is one of the benefits but 
there is a risk to local infrastructure and the railroad in this area is the last stop to protect. He 
said it may be worthwhile to consider support of the grant to take a closer look at the proposal 
and work with the County to come up with a plan to protect the infrastructure. 

12 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 13 

Councilmember Johnson stated that the City Council approved Resolution No. 1129-2011 in 
support of restoring rail service from Humboldt Bay to the National Rail Network and opposing 
the efforts to rail bank the North Coast Railroad and North Coast Railroad Authority's right-of
way but there was no commitment of local funds. 

Engineer Perry commented that there are a number of projects being considered between F. 
Street, Eureka and Arcata and those are being looked at for potential up- rail wood trails or trails 
adjacent to the rail right-of-way. He said there are no proposals to take trails out of that area but 
he believes the community has recognized the need to have both of those options. He said those 
visions are alive and rails and trails are generally supported by the NCRA. He added that no one 
to his knowledge has talked about a rail with trails in Humboldt County but there are a number of 
projects that will connect Arcata all the way around to the Eureka waterfront and are in various 
stages of planning. He reported that the County has received $2 million to pay for the planning, 
design and permitting of a portion between Bracut to the south side of the Eureka slough. 

City Manager Stretch pointed out that the City Council approved Resolutions 1129-20 II and 
1139-20 II which basically support restoration of rail service both north and south and east and 
west. He said nowhere is there anything about limitations of not spending local monies; they 
simply say the City supports restoration of the railroad. 

Nick Angeloff addressed the Council and said he has been working with NCRA and forwarded a 
letter to the City Manager requesting the City Council approve signing a letter of support for the 
grant which encompasses a comprehensive planning study from Fairhaven to South Fork what is 
referred to as the Humboldt Division of the NCRA. He said if the grant is awarded they will do 
a cost benefit analysis of which portions of the rail are most beneficial to open. He said they are 
coordinating with just about everyone who is along the proposed route. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if this is the same type of grant and said what he just said is 
totally different than what the Executive Director of HCAOG (Marcella Clem) reported to him 
this morning. 

Nick Angeloff said that was interesting because the letter was drafted by Marcella for NCRA. 
He said he drafted different versions, with the permission of NCRA for the various agencies to 
reflect a more appropriate fit for each agency including Rio Dell. 

Councilmember Johnson commented that what is interesting is that it addresses it as the 
Humboldt Bay lv/aster Plan and now what he is hearing is that it will extend all the way down to 
South Fork. 

Nick Angeloff stated that he changed the subject line at the request ofNCRA's Land Specialist 
to include Humboldt Bay Division and Comprehensive Planning Study. 

Councilmember Johnson stated that this is certainly not the agenda item that is being discussed. 

13 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 14 

Nick Angeloff stated that it absolutely is the same item which is support for the NCRA TIGER 
Planning Grant. 

City Engineer Perry commented that he doesn't know the date it went through and is not clear on 
what the project title was at the time it went to T AC so changes could have been made. 

Nick Angeloff then reviewed the changes in the letter. 

Council member Johnson asked Engineer Perry what the discussion was at the T AC meeting with 
regard to how far the study would encompass. 

Engineer Perry said based on conversations at the T AC meeting he understood the study would 
encompass the area along Humboldt Bay. 

City Manager Stretch stated in all due respect this whole issue has become complicated and to 
place an urgency item on the agenda before the City Council and have the City's representative 
on the HCAOG Board with this kind of pressure to understand the topic that involves various 
points of view is unfair. He said he thinks HCAOG should take the item off of the agenda. 

Nick Angeloff stated that it is not a controversial issue in any way, shape or form. 

City Manager Stretch said Councilmember Johnson can certainly speak for himself but obviously 
he was taken by surprise so this item was placed on the agenda as an urgency item because he is 
being asked to vote on the matter in two days. He said it is simply not good public policy. He 
said he doesn't know who is at fault, but it's just not right. 

Councilmember Johnson commented that it is very confusing because when he talked to 
Marcella this morning he asked her what area encompassed Humboldt Bay and she wasn't sure if 
it ended at Eureka or Fields Landing and said she would have to get back to him. 

Nick said that explains the email that was forwarded to him clarifying that the comprehensive 
study encompassed everybody within the Humboldt Bay area including Fields Landing including 
trails, rails, freight rails. tourism, cruise ship industry and anybody else that wants to participate 
in the study. For clarification he said he is helping with the grant and the direction from NCRA 
is to get collaboration with the County, Arcata, the Harbor District. Fortuna and hopefully Rio 
Dell. 

Mayor Thompson stated the issue of the railroad is an extreme challenge and he feels the Council 
should leave the decision in Councilmember Johnson's hands. He commented that HWMAjust 
approved a $48 million garbage disposal contract with Willits and 68% is for transportation. He 
said dredging the Harbor is oflittle use if the only means of traffic out of the County is truck 
traffic. 

14 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Pagc 15 

Mayor Thompson reiterated that he would like to leave the decision with Council member 
Johnson. 

Council member Johnson said he is not comfortable with that and would like a consensus of the 
Council stating that we know that the Council is in support of the railroad but questioned 
whether the Council is in support of going after Federal dollars for this purpose 

Councilmember Wilson stated that he doesn't want to take money out of Rio Dell's General 
Fund or HCAOG's money that funds local roads but if there is Federal money that can be used to 
get the rail study going then he is in favor of going for Federal money. 

Councilmember Johnson said if the railroad is going to be successful it needs to stand alone and 
be supported by private funding and should not rely on the government for funding. He said it is 
estimated it will cost a minimum of$800 million to restore the tracks. 

Councilmember Wilson stated that he sees creation of jobs with restoration of the railroad and is 
excited to think about the railroad coming back. He said when he thinks of all the things the 
government spends funding on he thinks restoring the railroad is worth a shot. 

Mayor Thompson said he is on board with going out for Federal money and that there has not 
been enough research done to say that it won't work. He said shipping gravel to the Bay Area 
alone is huge and stated that they are out of gravel and are always searching for ways to get 
more. 

Councilmember Marks said she supports Councilmember Wilson's recommendation. 

Councilmember Woodall stated that she thinks private industry could do it cheaper and better 
than the Federal Government and that she supports Councilmember Johnson's recommendation. 

Councilmember Johnson said with the consensus of 3-2 he will vote with the majority. 

Motion was made by WilsonlMarks to recommend that the HCAOG Board approve letters of 
support for the North Coast Railroad Authority·s Humboldt Bay Rehabilitation Study with use of 
public funds. Motion carried 3-2: Councilmember Johnson and Woodall cast the dissenting 
votes. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Woodall to place an unlisted item on the agenda titled 
Recommendation for the HCAOG Board's Support for the Upstate California Rail 
Connect Feasibility Study pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2 (b.2) because the 
need to take action arose subsequent to having the agenda been posted. Motion carried 4-0: I 
abstain (Marks). 

15 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 16 

Councilmember Johnson provided some background and stated in December 20 II the Council 
passed Resolution No. 1139-2011 supporting the Humboldt Bay Alternative Route Feasibility 
Study and one of the basis for support was that the rail was estimated to be 125 miles long. He 
said under the study done by the Humboldt Bay Recreation and Conservation District received 
last week is talking about 241 miles stating that 67 miles is existing line from Eureka to Fort 
Seward and 174 miles of new line going over to Gerber. He said the estimated cost is $1.2 
Billion and is interesting that the assumption is that it could be built in 3 years. He said as a 
CalTrans Engineer he knows that it took 9 years to build 12 miles of the Redwood Park By-Pass 
Project. He said there is no money budgeted for clearing the park or for environmental 
mitigation. All of the additional costs will likely be 2 plus billions of dollars. He said he feels 
the study is good but not great. He said the study dwells on what products can be exported but 
not imported into Humboldt Bay. He said the bottom line is that it is very risky and very 
expensive. He said there are various routes but one that corresponds closely to the Resolution is 
what he spoke to. 

Engineer Perry said it has been characterized as a huge risk and huge cost and one of the 
questions he asked at the NCRA meeting was if there is another route that would be less 
expensive; the answer was that it was a busier route and would be better used. He said the 
question is what the next feasibility study will do that this doesn't and whether it is worth 
funding it or not. 

Councilmember Johnson pointed out that Resolution No. 1139-20 II supports a feasibility study 
to analyze an east-west alternative rail route connecting Humboldt Bay to the National Rail 
Network and if we say that Resolution is complete 

Councilmember Wilson pointed out that the game changer for the economic future of this 
County is to get the railroad back in operation to get things moving in and out of this County. 

Councilmember Johnson said in part what the feasibility study is asking for is the use of 
HCAOG planning dollars which is money that could be spent here locally. 

Engineer Perry continued with review of T AC's recommendations which was; 

I) Direct staff to write letters supporting the Alternative Rail Route Feasibility Study. 

2) To support future grant applications and bring them back on a case by case basis. 

3) Consider HCAOG funding for an alternative route feasibility study. (He said this is the one 
that troubled him because of limited HCAOG funding). T AC does not support this proposal. 

4) With regard to the Super Region, by supporting the feasibility study we are telling the Super 
Region that we are supporting the feasibility study. 

16 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 17 

5) Putting status into Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). (He said if the status is in there it will 
continue to be in there) 

He said for further clarification, the question is whether the City Council wants to use city, local, 
regional, state or federal monies to fund the feasibility study. 

Councilmember Wilson commented that there are a lot of politics with regard to this issue and 
also a lot at stake. He said he prefers to hear more than "this could be." He said it does disturb 
him that private funding is not supporting this venture. He said there needs to be a better way to 
move cargo in and out but for this amount of money for a feasibility study he hopes it will be 
more than a 40 page study. He questioned the need for federal money to do a complete study. 

Mayor Thompson asked what the funding amount is. Engineer Perry said $300,000 was 
mentioned. 

Councilmember Wilson stated that he likes the idea of working toward restoration of the railroad 
but it hits too close to home. He asked about the possibility of HCAOG applying for grant 
funding. 

Engineer Perry said it is possible however but typically there are not enough grant opportunities 
to get $300.000. He asked the Council for a consensus of whether they support the feasibility 
study and if so, what level of funds are they willing to support (ie: Federal. State or Local). He 
clarified that the request is for a letter of support for a feasibility study but they are silent on the 
funding source. He asked if the City Council supports the T AC recommendation. 

Councilmember Wilson said he does not want to take a bucket of money from HCAOG. 

Councilmember questioned the scenario of the HCAOG Board wanting something else such as 
the use ofHCAOG's Planning funds. 

Councilmember Woodall suggested he vote ··No." 

City Manager Stretch said if the Council wants to state a policy position, they need to have their 
representative take that position to the HCAOG Board. 

Councilmember Johnson said another possibility is that the Board will want to apply for Federal 
funding and since those funds trickle down to the City, asked for input from the Council. 

City Engineer Perry explained TAC's recommendation is to come back on a case by case basis. 

City Manager Stretch stated that larger agencies can vote to use local monies and the Council 
needs to be clear and layout the City's position. 

17 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 18 

Consensus of the Council was to support TAC's recommendation and that no local monies be 
used to fund the feasibility study. 

Nick Angeloff thanked Engineer Perry and stated that he took the recommendation of 
T AC and made the recommendation viable everyone and that he feels the Upstate Rail 
Committee feels good about the recommendation although they would like to use HCAOG 
money. He said he does see the logic in not using local funding but what they are asking for is a 
small in-kind contribution from HCAOG. He added that he is a big advocate of securing private 
investors but also supports public funding for the feasibility study as it is necessary to air the 
feeling and support of the public to attract private investors. 

Motion was made by Woodall/Wilson to support TAC's recommendation to support the Upstate 
California Rail Connect Feasibility Study with no use of HCAOG local funds. Motion carried 
5-0. 

Authorize the Citv Manager to Execute a one-year Merchant Agreement with GovTeller to to 
Provide Credit Card Processing Services for the City 
Councilmember Marks stated that she is in favor of implementing this service but during the 
recess she pointed out some missing information in the staff report such as the rate for the users, 
how to forecast the point of sale. the cost to integrate it into the current accounting system, what 
happens if a payment is returned and if there are any other hidden costs associated with the 
service. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if it will be integrated into AccuFund. 

Finance Director Woodcox stated that initially it will not be integrated since there is a pretty in
depth process to interface with the company. She agreed it would be a good idea to do further 
research and bring the matter back at the next meeting. 

Motion was made by Marks/Woodall to continue this item to the May 6, 2014 regular meeting. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Conduct Second Reading (by title onlv) and adopt Ordinance No. 320-2014 to amend Rio Dell 
Municipal Code Sections 13.10.231 Establishing a Penal tv for Non-Payment of Delinquent 
Sewer Bills for Customers that do not Subscribe to Water Service. and a Means of Collecting the 
Delinquency on the Property Tax Bill 
City Manager Stretch provided a staff report and said the ordinance was introduced at the April 
I, 2014 regular meeting and explained under the current Rio Dell Municipal Code, there are 
provisions that provide the City the right to discontinue water service if a customer is delinquent 
in the payment of their water bill. However, in the event that a sewer customer that does not 
receive City water service is delinquent in the payment of their sewer bill. there is little or no 

18 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 19 

recourse for collecting the bill. He said there is currently (I) sewer customer that is habitually 
delinquent and does not respond to the City's demand for payment. 

City Manager Stretch said the proposed amendment establishes a penalty as allowed by 
Government Code Section 54348, similar to the water utility. If the rates and charges are not 
paid on or before the date of delinquency, a 10% penalty of each month's charges for the first 
month delinquent is assessed and thereafter an additional 10% for each additional month of 
delinquency. In addition to the basic penalty is an additional penalty of one-half percent (.50%) 
per month for nonpayment of the delinquent charges and penalty. 

He further explained that City may initiate proceedings to have the delinquent bill and penalties 
assessed against the real property where the service is provided to become a lien against the 
property. The lien is turned over to the County Assessor who will enter the lien on the 
assessment rolls as a special assessment to be collected at the same time and in the same manner 
as ordinary property taxes which is subject to the same penalties. 

A public hearing was opened to receive public comment on the proposed ordinance amendment; 
there being no public comment, the public hearing closed. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Marks to conduct the second reading (by title only) and adopt 
Ordinance No. 320-20f.l Regarding the Addition oJSection13.10.231 Concerning the 
Establishment oJa Penalty Jar Nonpayment oj Delinqllel1l Sewer BillsJor CIIstomers that do not 
SlIbscrihe to Water Service. ,md a Means oJCollecting the Delinqllency on/he Propel'ly Tax Bill. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

REPORTS/ST AFF COMMUNICATIONS 

City Manager Stretch reported on recent activities and events and said the Redwood Coast 
Energy Authority (RCEA) grant for electric vehicle charging stations was approved with the 
location for Rio Dell at the Downtown Parking Lot; and said he was moving along with 
acquisition of the school property and had approached the school regarding the possibility of 
acquiring an additional 1.5 acres to facilitate a 12 years and under soccer but they denied the 
request. He said the next step will be to attempt to lease the additional land for $1.00. 

Wastewater Superintendent Chicora reported on recent activities in the wastewater department 
and said the bio-solids giveaway was a big success and had already given away one-half of the 
bio-solids he had available for giveaway. 

Moving on to the finance department. Councilmember Johnson referred to the check register and 
the $8.400 check to HDR Engineering and said he assumed their services to the City were almost 
complete. 

19 



APRIL 15,2014 MINUTES 
Page 20 

City Manager Stretch said the last issue had to do with the easement issue with the State Lands 
Commission and in order to facilitate closure of the project and get the City's reimbursements 
from the State we had to pay the $2,500 to modifY the application. He said he spoke to the 
contractor and he said he is not willing to absorb the additional cost. He said Brett Rhinhart is 
working on the application and the State Lands Commission has said they will approve the 
modification from a 20 foot easement to a 50 foot easement as needed. He indicated that the 
City is still holding $15,000 in retention for Wahlund Construction. 

Council member Johnson then questioned the check to Thomas & Associates in the amount of 
$4,572.07 for a sewer pump. 

Wastewater Superintendent Chicora stated that it was for parts to repair the Painter Street lift 
station pump and that he will do the repair. 

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

Councilmember Wilson asked about the repairs to the Council chambers sound system. 

City Manager Stretch stated that staff will attempt to have the current problem fixed tomorrow 
and suggested staff come back to the Council in July with a new proposal for addressing the 
overall sound system. 

Councilmember Johnson thanked the Council for direction with regard to HCAOG and 
complimented staff on the recent City Newsletter. 

Councilmember Marks said after the last meeting John Coleman asked to meet with her 
regarding the Old Ranch Road water system and reported that she did not meet with him for fear 
of a potential Brown Act violation. 

Mayor Thompson reported that he and Council member Johnson as the appointed subcommittee 
met on April 8th with the Old Ranch Road water customers and they would like the Council to 
defer any action with regard to relocation of the water meters for 6 weeks to allow them time to 
consult with legal counsel. 

City Manager Stretch said he informed the residents that the issue would be back on the May 6. 
2014 City Council agenda and if they had any information they would like to submit to get it to 
the City no later than May 1, 2014 for inclusion in the Council packet. He said he thinks the 
group has an understanding of what they need to do. They were going to get together and report 
back to the City Manager on what they want to do with regard to repair of the water line and the 
issue with easements. He said he will report on any progress on May 6th

• 

Councilmember Marks suggested a deadline be set so the issue can get resolved. 

20 



APRIL IS, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 21 

Mayor Thompson said at the upcoming June Primary Election there are 4 or 5 candidates 
running for District Attorney and asked if the Council has any desire to invite them to come and 
speak at a community forum. 

Council member Johnson commented that he would like to hear the candidate's philosophies on 
law related matters. 

The City Clerk was directed to contact the League of Women's Voters to see if a community 
forum can be arranged. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 9:54 p.m. to the 
May 6, 2014 regular meeting. 

Jack Thompson. Mayor 
Attest: 

Karen Dunham, CMC 

21 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING 
MAY 9, 2014 
MINUTES 

A special meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 3:30 p.m. by Mayor 
Thompson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Thompson, Council members Johnson, Marks and Wilson 

Absent: Council member Woodall (excused) 

Others Present: City Manager Stretch, Finance Director Woodcox and City 
Clerk Dunham 

Absent: Chief of Police Hill, Community Development Director 
Caldwell, Water/Roadways Superintendent Jensen, and 
Wastewater Superintendent Chicora (excused) 

SPECIAL MEETING MATTERS 

Preliminarv Budget Review FY 2014-2015 (Provide Staff Direction) 
City Manager Stretch began by passing out the following (5) spreadsheets representing 
options for balancing the budget: 

I) Normal Staffing 
2) Normal Staff at 4 Days/Week 
3) Staff Reductions - 2 Positions 
4) Staff Reductions - 2 II: Positions 
5) Staff Reductions - 2 Positions at 4 Days/Week 

Beginning with Sheet No. I. City Manager Stretch explained the estimated beginning fund 
balance for 2014-2015 is $1,140.262; total projected revenue is $752.238, and total 
expenditures are $908,468 leaving the estimated ending fund balance of $984.032. He said 
this puts the General Fund in a negative position by $156.130 which is a serious problem. 

He said another fund in a negative position of almost $48.000 is the Gas Tax Fund. He stated 
the only budgeted items worthy of mention is the $60.000 paving project and some striping 
which will have to be pulled to balance this year's budget unless money is taken out of 
Reserves to fund the program. He stated that we have a minimal amount of staff for roads so 
the only thing you can do is not mow the center median or water the grass or you basically 
have people being able to respond to emergencies and patch a few pot holes but by in large 
there is really not enough Gas Tax money to fund the program. He noted that unless a new 
gas station comes to to\\n. we can expect to see a spiraling of Gas Tax funds over the next 
few years. 

22 



MAY 9,2014 MINUTES 
Page 2 

Mayor Thompson commented that the City attempted twice to get a measure passed on the 
ballot for street improvements and both times it failed miserably. He said we might want to 
consider implementation of a y., percent local sales tax such as Arcata, Eureka and Fortuna. 

City Manager Stretch continued the discussion with the escalation as to what has happened 
and why this year's budget looks so bleak when the prior year we were fairly comfortable. 
He said there were some one-time expenditure for special projects last year but doesn't 
explain what is happening now. He said the question is what are the differences between last 
year and this year. 

Finance Director Woodcox continued with review of General Fund revenue and expenditure 
comparisons between last year and this year. She said in general what happened is that staff 
started looking at what employees were actually doing within the various departments and 
applied those costs to the correct funds. As a result, there was a big jump in General Fund 
expenditures. She said also, approximately $36,000 is being redirected from the General 
Fund into a Building Fund because we are going to be offering those services in-house; that 
revenue is not lost, just redirected. She said the second item contributing to what appears as 
a decline in General Fund revenue is a one-time payment of $30,544 that was budgeted and 
received in the 2012-2013 budget and somehow ended up in the 2013-2014 budget by 
mistake so will not be included in this year's budget. 

City Manager Stretch stated that initially staff thought that sales tax revenue was going to be 
way down but apparently there is a very late payment that comes in June so that should put 
sales tax revenue close to where it should be. He said what staff found out from the Board of 
Equalization is that sales tax is not a sites tax like gas tax and apparently goes into a County 
pot and distributed to Cities based on population. He noted the City is also experiencing a 
reduction in gas tax revenue likely because of Renner Petroleum going into Scotia which also 
has an impact on sales tax because with less gas purchases at the Shell there are also less 
people buying snacks at the shell. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained the reason the City Manager Department shows an 
increase in expenditures of $27,20 I is because there were one-time City Manager recruitment 
costs and specific studies and also in 2013-2014, the City Manager position was budgeted on 
the assumption that the position was part-time. The net affect from a part-time position to a 
full-time position is around $50,000. 

City Manager Stretch said the City Council approved the transfer of $25,000 from Reserves 
to fund the cost of Avery Associates to do the City Manager recruitment however; the 
transfer was not done so the money came out of Professional Services Account 5115 in the 
City Manager's department. 

23 



MAY 9, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Finance Director Woodcox continued with an analysis of the Finance Department and 
reported that expenditures totaling $37,225 were reallocated to the General Fund to better 
reflect finance staffs work activities. 

She said the Police Department costs for the upcoming year represent an increase of$25,638 
largely due to Worker's Comp costs which had been understated in the current budget. She 
noted the increase in Worker's Comp is $16,381. She said the additional expenditures are 
due to the trend of increasing employee benefits. 

Finance Director Woodcox reported that in the past Building and Grounds have been 
budgeted to the Street Fund and by removing these costs from the Street Fund, the General 
Fund has to absorb the full cost of $71,774. 

Councilmember Wilson asked how long this format has been in place. 

City Manager Stretch explained the Building and Grounds has been included in the Street 
Fund for a long time and the fact is that you cannot spend Streets money on the tennis courts 
or on maintaining City Hall grounds. He said the Street Fund has been subsidizing this 
activity for several years and it has to be corrected. 

He said in talking with the WaterlRoadways Superintendent Jensen he said time cards for 
public works employees reflect the actual time spent on the various activities and the budget 
line item for grounds maintenance must have reflected a negative balance at the end of the 
year. He said he thinks funds were transferred from other funds to offset those costs. 

City Manager Stretch said it is a real problem when you subsidize the General Fund with 
utility funds. 

Councilmember Marks said she understood auditors checked all journal entries. 

Staff explained there is a threshold and auditors take samples of everything and can't 
possibly look at every transaction. 

City Manager Stretch said in explaining how this came to view, we had the position of 
Finance Director vacant since December and Joanne Farley assumed the Accountant position 
and basically dug in and got answers. He said there was no one here to backstop things and 
things got dealt with straight up and it became clear that some scenarios were not accurate. 

Councilmember Johnson said the good news is that we are going to fix the errors and won' t 
have to have this same conversation next year. 

24 



MAY 9, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 4 

City Manager Stretch explained if you take the $71,774 for Building and Grounds and the 
increase in Worker's Comp for the Police Department which was budgeted at 4.9% of 
salaries rather than 17% or 18% like it should have been, you can see why there is a shortfall 
in the General Fund. 

Councilmember Wilson questioned where the numbers come from for Worker's Comp 
projections. 

Finance Director Woodcox stated the numbers come from the City'S insurance pool, SCORE 
(Small Organized Risk Effort). 

City Manager Stretch commented that the Finance Director was the City's representative on 
the SCORE Board of Directors and she put together the spreadsheets for salaries so the 
numbers should have been correct. He stated that you would think that if we're not 
generating enough premiums for Police based on our actual exposure that our insurance pool 
would catch it. 

Finance Director Woodcox said what did happen is that at the end of the year the City 
received a check back as an adjustment to the liability insurance premium which was 
approximately $30,000 and it should have been allocated back to reduce the liability expense 
account but instead it was allocated back to Worker' s Comp reducing that expense account. 

City Manager Stretch said the Finance Department salaries were spread to those departments 
that had money rather than actual staff time spent in those various departments. 

Discussion continued with review of the General Fllnd Blldgeted Revenlle Comparison 
between FY 20\3-2014 and 2014-2015. 

Finance Director Woodcox directed the Council ' s attention to page 3 and 4 of her handout 
and explained this provides a more specific look at the General Fund revenue comparisons 
and that it was to highlight why there is a decrease this year in General Fund revenues. She 
noted that several of the highlighted items are actually being redirected to the Building Fund 
so the revenue is not lost. She noted that the misc. revenue of $30.554 that was received 
from the PT AF settlement was budgeted 2 years in a row when it was actually received the 
first year it was budgeted so shouldn't have been included in the 20 \3-20 14 budget. 

City Manager Stretch pointed out that we know that the other funds can pretty much balance 
to the revenue and General Fund can make a contribution to any of them but none of them 
can make a contribution to the General Fund because they are restricted funds . 

25 



MAY 9, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 5 

Next was review of the various scenarios for balancing the budget. Sheet No.2 reducing the 
work week to 4 days which is about a 20% reduction still showed a deficit in the General 
Fund of about $27,000. 

The third scenario with the reduction of 2 full time positions showed a General Fund deficit 
of almost $24,000. 

City Manager Stretch said under the fourth scenario he took it even further with the reduction 
of 2.5 positions taking the deficit down to $8,840 which almost makes it work. 

Council member Marks stated that she can't believe that the reduction of 2 positions with 
benefits doesn't reduce expenses more than the projected amount. 

City Manager Stretch explained that some of the savings comes from the utility funds which 
have no effect on the General Fund. He commented that he also took out items such as 
League of Cali fomi a Cities dues, training and mileage expense. 

The last scenario combined a 4/day work week with the reduction of 2 full time positions 
which showed a positive reserve balance of$83,646. He pointed out there are all kinds of 
different levels of adjustments to consider other than the 5 scenarios presented here. 

Mayor Thompson stated that it seems like a drastic step to cut positions and said he would 
rather see other expenses cut. 

City Manager Stretch then presented a written recommendation for direction by the City 
Council to staff on how to proceed with regard to the 2014-2015 FY Budget. He said the 
City is fortunate to have 100% set aside in Reserves and as such. he presented the 
recommendation that would include: 

• The preparation of a budget for 2014-2015 that is tight, but does not impact the 
present level of public services. 

• Contains a General Fund that is balanced using reserves. 
• Explores as an urgent matter the possibility of submitting a local revenue 

enhancement proposition to the voters on the November 2014 ballot as a funding 
mechanism for police services in the form of a local sales tax or a utility users tax. 

• Explore whether the City needs to employ the services of specialty consultants to 
prepare and evaluate a ballot measure. 

• Prepare a Master Fee Schedule for the purpose of adjusting user fees to actual cost. 
• Explore with the City's insurance broker, in concert with the employee 

organizations, cost saving measures for health, dental, vision and life insurance 
benefits. 

26 



MAY 9, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 6 

• If it is not possible to prepare a revenue ballot measure for the November 2014 
election or a measure is submitted and is not approved by the voters to direct the City 
Manager to prepare a budget for City Council consideration in January 20 15 for the 
last 5 months of the fiscal year, to be balanced by July I, 2015 and to include options 
for staff and public service reductions by funds. 

City Manager Stretch stated the goal of a revenue ballot measure is to generate $200,000 in 
annual revenue for the General Fund. He noted that $150.00 per year on property tax bills 
will generate approximately $210,000. 

Councilmember Johnson stated that at one of the symposiums at the League of Cali fomi a 
Cities conference was a cost sharing program and a Chief of Police came up with the idea of 
sharing dispatch services with 3 other cities and it was implemented and is working well. 

Council member Johnson questioned the percentage of voter approval to pass a measure. 

City Manager Stretch said 2/3,d voter approval is required to pass a tax measure to only 
support police services whereas only 50% + I is needed to pass a tax measure that supports 
Citywide services. He indicated that there is not much time to get a ballot measure on the 
November ballot but that the City of Blue Lake is putting together a ballot measure and he 
will get in contact with their City Manager to talk about the specifics. 

Discussion continued regarding the potential loss of COPS funding; health savings plans: 
utility rate adjustments; sales tax revenue distribution; adjustments to current distribution 
spreads; percentage for reserve funds, and a high energy use tax. 

City Manager Stretch asked for direction from the Council on how to proceed. 

Council member Wilson said he likes the City Manager's recommendation and does not want 
to take a reactionary approach or make drastic actions until absolutely necessary. 

Motion was made by Wilson/Johnson to direct staff to proceed with preparation of the 2014-
20 I 5 FY Budget as recommended by the City Manager under Items I -6 as presented. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5: I 5 p.m. to the May 13, 
20 I 4 Special meeting. 

27 



ATTEST: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

MAY 9, 2014 MINUTES 
Page 7 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 

28 



675 Wildwood A,'enuc 
Rio Dell. CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

May202014 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

THROUGH: Jim ~h, City Manager 

FROM: Randy Jensen, Water & Roadways Sup. 

CiTY Of 

~ DELL 

SUBJECT: Approval of Amended Agreement with Freshwater Environmental Services 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve the attached amended agreement with Freshwater Environmental Services for the 
additional amount of $1 ,900.00 to provide support services to update the City of Rio Dell Water 
Shortage Contingency Plan. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

On May 6,2014, City Council approved the agreement with Freshwater Environmental Services 
for the services related to the Rio Dell Cross-connection Control Program and Water Supply. 
Within the list of tasks, the Section of Updating the City of Rio Dell's Water Conservation 
Program was overlooked. Tasks I thru Tasks 4 all are part in the methods of updating the 
Program which will require some additional effort to complete. 

TASKS 
Freshwater Environmental Services will review and update Rio Dell Water Shortage 
Contingency plan. The update wiII include new triggers for implementing the emergency action 
stages along with a financial impact report on the various stages of required conservation and 
evaluate an excess use penalty for times during a declared water shortage. 

Funds are available in the Water Operations Fund for this additional amended agreement, leaving 
a Fund Balance of$189,579 as of6-30-2014. 

29 



675 Wildwood Ave/Ille 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Action 

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Jin&'ch, City Manager 

Graham Hill, Chief of Police .I~..........

May 20,2014 {Iff 

Parking enforcement 

Receive and File 

Summary 

In December I approached the City Council regarding the retention of the Phoenix Information 
Services Group for the purpose of processing parking citations including the collection of fees. 
$3,337.00 was allocated at that time for that purpose. For various reasons including staffing this 
project was stalled and upon revisiting I was presented with budget concerns for the 2014-2015 fiscal 
year. For this reason I will not be pursuing this avenue regarding the enforcement of parking 
violations at this time. 

I have already started the process of working with the California DMV to obtain the proper 
designation number to have our parking fines linked to California vehicle registration process for 
non-payment. We will be moving forward without the use of an outside contractor. This will 
certainly delay the process, however the risk of having costs that are not recovered due to compliance 
(lack of citations) will be eliminated. 

I realize parking issues are a high priority for the community and the department will allocate the 
necessary time and resources to this issue. 

30 



Rio Dell City "all 
675 Wildwood A veil lie 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodelldty.colII 

May 20, 2104 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Jim~, City Manager 

SUBJECT: High Energy User Tax 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Defer consideration of the Residential High Energy User Tax until spring 2015 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

As the Council may recall, on February 18, 20 I 4 Alison Talbott, PG&E- Government Relations, 
made a report to the Council about the Excessive Energy Users Tax (EEUT) implemented by the 
City of Arcata. The program developed by Arcata with the assistance of PG&E identified high 
energy residential users with PG&E usage in excess of 600% of baseline and placed a 45% high 
energy user tax on the excess amount. 

PG&E charged Arcata 5650,000 to develop the software and the City expected to recoup its cost 
quickly from the new revenue source. However, they reportedly experienced an 85% drop in the 
number of residents that exceeded the 600% baseline, thereby extending the time for them to 
recoup their cost. 

At the meeting, PG&E was asked to supply the data for the City of Rio Dell so that the Council 
could consider whether to pursue the program, which would require the adoption of an 
Ordinance and the preparation of a ballot measure. Attached is the data PG&E provided for Rio 
Dell. 

On April 22, 2014 PG&E advised that the next public agency in the County to implement the 
EEUT would be charged $485,000 and after that each jurisdiction would be charged $310,000. 

If the City's experience would be similar to Arcata's and the current revenue of$418,015 were 
to drop 85%, the City would realize $62,700/yr., which would likely take almost 7 years to 
recoup the initial investment ($310,000). 

It is recommended that the City Council table consideration of this measure until the spring of 
2015, at which time the experience of Arcata and perhaps other agencies proves whether it is a 
program that the City wants to pursue. 

31 



Dear Mr. Stretch: 

Please find the data you requested concerning residential PG&E customers, In the City of RID Dell, whose electric USilse exceeds 600% of baseline, 

As vou review this information, please keep In mind the followlng points: 

SA (Service Agreement, counts above 600% baseline represent the total number of seNice agreements that have experienced one or more months where the electrical usage was over 600% baseline 

during the twelve month period. That Is, a customer who elCceeded 600% of baseline in January and June will only be counted once. 

CARE dlstlnctkm represents those seNJce agreements where CARE was triggered In at least one month during the twelve month period. That Is, a customer who was a CARE customer in January and 

no longer CARE throughout the year Is counted once. 
Columns Land M represent the expected tax revenue from a 45% Excessive Energy Use Tax, This estimate is derived from revenues on only the months where electrical usage exceeded 601)% of baseline. 

Multiple factors Influence the customers' usage and revenues. Revenues mav be affected by various customer behaviors, the Ume of day unge Is consumed, rate Increases and decreases or seasonal variations in 

baseline qUiimtitles. Weather and other environmental conditions can also impact usase and revenues. 

PG&E Rate DesIgn & Analytlcs; DR 5188 • Usage, Revenue and Count by SA 

Above 600% Baseline (at Below 600% Baseline 

least one month) (all months) Above 600% B_seUne (for effettlve months) 

Total Total Projected 

Number Number of EEUT 

SA Count SA Count Above Revenue Customer Pro)ecIed EEUT @45% (!!I45% Total Revenues Total Usage (KWH) 

TOT County TOreny Year CARE Non·CARE CARE Non·CARE CARE Non-CARE CARE Non·CARE 

HUM80lDT RIO DEl l 2011 170 59 229 722 691 1642 405,337 421,382 182,401 189,622 312,023 

HUMBOLDT RIO DEll 2012 147 65 212 762 724 1698 448,875 417,492 201,993 187,871 389.864 

HUM80lDT RIO DEll 2013 111 78 189 742 748 1679 416,146 512,776 187,266 230,749 418,015 

I will call you to schedule a time to go over this data. I'd like to conference In a colleague who helped gather the information 50 that we can address any questions you may have. 

Thank you, 

Alison Talbott 

Government Relations 

Pacific Gas & Electric Company 

2555 Myrtle Avenue 

Eureka. CA 95501 

Cen (707) 5Il2·5769 
Email alison.talbott@pge.com 

W 
N 

CARE Non-CARE CARE Non-CARE 

840,560 954,243 8,061,993 4,397,844 
930,457 985,916 7,885,938 4,670,702 
919,208 1,163,710 6,822,575 5,166,636 



City of Rio Dell 

Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 

DRAFT 

May 14, 2014 

BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 

33 





BARTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 
INDEPENDENT PUBLIC FINANCE ADVISORS 

May 14, 2014 
Jim Stretch, City Manager 

City of Rio Dell 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

Re: Wastewater Rate Study 

1889 Akatraz Avenue 

Berkeley. CA 94703 
T: 510-653-3399 

www.bartlewells.com 

Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) is pleased to submit to the City of Rio Dell the attached Wastewater Rate 

and Capacity Fee Study. The report presents BWA's recommended approach for changing the City's 

current flat wastewater rate to a flat plus volumetric rate structure. This report also recommends a new 

capacity fee for the wastewater system. 

BWA finds that the wastewater rates and charges proposed in our report to be based on the cost of 

service, follow generally accepted rate design criteria, and adhere to the substantive requirements of 

Proposition 218. BWA believes that the proposed rates are fair and reasonable to the City's customers. 

We enjoyed working with you on the rate study and appreciate the assistance and cooperation of City 

staff throughout the project. Please contact us if you ever have any future questions about this study 

and the rate recommendation. 

Yours truly, 

Doug Dove, CIPFA 

Principal 

Alison Lechowicz 

Financial Analyst 

35 



36 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Executive Summary .......... .................. ... ..................... ... ..... ... ..... .. .............................. .. .............. ...... .. ... .. ...... 1 

Monthly Wastewater Rate ..... ........ ........ .. ..... .. ............. .... ..... ....... .. .............................. .......................... .. 1 

BWA's Recommended Rate Structure: 70% Fixed and 30% Volume ....... .. ....... ........... ............................ 1 

Billing Procedures .... ... .. ........... ..... ............... ..... ......... ..... .... .. ........ ........ ........ ..... ........... .. ... ... ...... ..... ......... 2 

Capacity Fee ......................................................... ....... .. ............................. .......... ..... .. .... ... .. .. ....... .. ... ....... 2 

Rate Setting legislation and Principles ........ .. ..... .......................................................................................... 2 

Proposition 218 ........... ....... .. ........... .............. .. ............................... , ... . " .... , .... , .. , ...... ......... ... ... ......... " ....... 2 

Rate Development Principles ............ .. .. , ... , .... " .. ,', .. " ...... ............... .. ........ ..... .................... ............... ... ..... 3 

Background ......... .. .......... ............. ..... .......... ... .. ................................. .. ........................... .. .... ..... .. .................. 4 

Wastewater Flow and Customer Projections ......................................... .. .. ... .......... .... ... ...... .... ......... ... .. ... ... 4 

Customer Base ................................................................................................. ..... .......................... .... ..... . 4 

Billing Procedures ...... ..................................... ...... ....... ..... ................... .. ....... ....... ... .................................. 4 

Recommended Customer Classes .. .............. .. ....... ............ , ............. ............... ............... .. ... ........ ...... ........ 5 

Rate Structure Alternative .. ...... .... ......... ..... ........................... , .. .......... .............. ......... .. .............. .... , ... ,",., ..... 6 

BWA's Recommended Rate Structure: 70% Fixed and 30% Volume ....................................................... 7 

Bill Impacts ...... ............... ..... .. .. ...... ... , .................. , ... ........ , ........ , .................. , .......... , ......... , ......... , .............. 8 

Bill Survey ., .... ....... ....................... . ,', .. ... ........................... , .. ..... , ... .. .... ....... , ...... ", .... , ..... , ......... .. .......... . , .. 10 

Wastewater Capacity Fee ..... ....... ,", ..... . , .... .................. , .. ..... .......... .............. ..... ...... ". ,., .............. .... ... , ... .. ,.12 

Capacity Fee Methodology .. ........... , .. , ... " .................. ,', .. . " ..................................................... , ...... , ........ 12 

capacity Fee Calculation .... ........................... .. ........ .. ........... ..... ............. .......... .. .. ... ... ... ... ...... ................. 13 

capacity Fee Survey ..... , ................. , ..... ........................... ............ .... .......... ............. ............ ................. , ... 14 

Adjusting Capacity Fees ................ .. ,',., ....... .. .... ....... ... ....... ,." ........ ... .. ...... , •.. , .. " ...... ....... .. .. ... ........... , ... ,. 15 

Appendix A - Strength Classifications into low, Domestic, Medium, and High Strength Dischargers 

37 



38 



Executive Summary 
Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) was engaged by the City of Rio Dell to develop a new wastewater rate 

structure and to update the City's wastewater capacity fee. 

Monthly Wastewater Rate 
The current wastewater rate is a fixed monthly charge of $76.16 per residence, also referred to as an 

equivalent dwelling unit (EDU). Commercial customers are assigned multiple EDUs based on their 

wastewater flow and pollutant loading relative to a single family residential customer. 

BWA's recommended alternative wastewater rate structure includes a fixed monthly charge ($/EDU) 

plus a volume rate ($/hundred cubic feet) based on estimated wastewater flow. BWA developed 

wastewater rate alternatives by allocating the current wastewater cost of service of $1.17 million to 

fixed and volume cost categories. The fixed monthly charge is based on each customer's EDU count and 

the volume rates are based on wastewater flow and strength characteristics . 

The benefit of implementing a volume rate is equitability. lower wastewater users pay a lower monthly 

bill than high wastewater users. Each customer pays a wastewater bill more closely proportional to how 

he or she uses the wastewater system. 

BWA's Recommended Rate Structure: 70% Fixed and 30% Volume 
BWA's recommendation allocates 70% of costs to the fixed charge and 30% of costs to the volume 

(variable) charge. 

Table ES-1 
City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
Recommended Rate Structure: 70% Fixed and 30% Volume 

Fixed Monthly Charge 

Volume Rate 
Cuslomer Class 

Low 
Domestic Strength 
Medium 
High 

ccl = hundred cubic leet 

$47.01 

$3.29 
$4.11 
$6.17 
$7.19 

per EDU 

per ccf 
per ccf 
per ccf 
per eel 

1 I 0 E 

39 



The average residential customer has a monthly wastewater flow of 5 hundred cubic feet (ccf) and 

would have a monthly bill of $67.56 under the recommended rates, a decrease from the current 

monthly bill of $76.16. 

Fixed 
Charge 
$47.01 

Billing Procedures 

+ ( 

Volume 
Rate 

$4.11 x 

Winter 
Water Use 

5 
$/eet eef 

= 

Total 
Monthly Bill 

$67.56 

BWA proposes changes to the City's billing procedures such that only property owners can hold sewer 

accounts. Renters should no longer be permitted to open new sewer accounts. The property owner 

would be the ultimate party responsible for paying the sewer bill. If the property owner does not pay 

the sewer bill, the delinquency would become a lien against the property. Moreover, BWA recommends 

that all properties including vacant or inactive accounts be charged the fixed, EDU-based charge. 

BWA also recommends that the City cap the billed volume at 15 hundred cubic feet of sewer flow for 

residential customers to account for high water use that may be due to outdoor irrigation, i.e. water use 

that does not flow into the sewer system. Commercial customers are not proposed to be capped. 

Capacity Fee 
BWA conducted an analysis of the City's wastewater capacity fee and recommends increasing the 

current fee of $950 to $5,220 per equivalent dwelling unit. The recommended fee is a buy-in to the 

collection system and reflects the recently completed upgrades to the wastewater treatment plant. The 

recommended fee is moderate in comparison to other agencies in the region. 

Rate Setting Legislation and Principles 
In conducting this wastewater rate study, BWA adheres to the Proposition 218 requirements as 

described in this section. Subsequent sections provide the detailed, cost of service basis for BWA's rate 

recommendation. 

Proposition 218 
Proposition 218, the "Right to Vote on Taxes Act", was approved by California voters in November 1996 

and is codified as Articles XIIiC and XIIiD of the California Constitution. Proposition 218 establishes 

requirements for imposing or increasing property related taxes, assessments, fees and charges. For 

many years, there was no legal consensus on whether water and wastewater rates met the definition of 

"property related fees". In July 2006, the California Supreme Court essentially confirmed that 

Proposition 218 applies to water and wastewater rates . 

BWA recommends that the City follow the procedural requirements of PropOSition 218 for all 

wastewater rate changes. These requirements include: 

2 I " .1 

40 



• Noticing Requirement: - The City must mail a notice of proposed rate changes to all affected 

property owners. The notice must specify the basis of the fee, the reason for the fee, and the 

date/time/location of a public rate hearing at which the proposed rates will be 

considered/adopted. 

• Public Hearing: - The City must hold a public hearing prior to adopting the proposed rate changes. 

The public hearing must be held not less than 45 days after the required notices are mailed. 

• Rate Increases Subject to Majority Protest: - At the public hearing, the proposed rates are subject 

to majority protest. If more than 50% of affected property owners submit written protests against 

the proposed rates, the rates cannot be adopted. 

Proposition 218 also established a number of substantive requirements that apply to water rates and 

charges, including: 

• Cost of Service: - Revenues derived from the fee or charge cannot exceed the funds required to 

provide the service. In essence, fees cannot exceed the "cost of service". 

• Intended Purpose - Revenues derived from the fee or charge can only be used for the purpose for 

which the fee was imposed. 

• Proportional Cost Recovery - The amount of the fee or charge levied on any customer shall not 

exceed the proportional cost of service attributable to that customer. 

• Availability of Service - No fee or charge may be imposed for a service unless that service is used 

by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property. 

• General Government Services - No fee or charge may be imposed for general governmental 

services where the service is available to the public at large. 

Charges for water, wastewater, and refuse collection are exempt from additional voting requirements of 

PropOSition 218, provided the charges do not exceed the cost of providing service and are adopted 

pursuant to procedural requirements of Proposition 218. 

Rate Development Principles 
In reviewing the City's current wastewater rates and finances, BWA used the following criteria in 

developing our recommendations: 

1. Revenue SUfficiency: Rates should recover the annual cost of service and provide revenue 

stability. 

2. Rate Impact: While rates are calculated to generate sufficient revenue to cover operating and 

capital costs, they should be designed to minimize, as much as possible, the impacts on 

ratepayers. 

3. Equitable: Rates should be proportionately allocated among all customer classes based on their 

estimated demand characteristics. Each user class only pays its proportionate share. 

4. Practical: Rates should be simple in form and, therefore, adaptable to changing conditions, easy 

to administer and easy to understand. 

3I Pa~~ 

41 



5. Provide Incentive: Rates provide price signals which serve as indicators to conserve water, 

reduce wastewater flow, and to use water efficiently. 

Background 
The City of Rio Dell (City) is located in Humboldt County and provides water and wastewater service to 

over 1,400 customers. The City currently charges all customers a fixed wastewater charge based on an 

equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) basis. Sometime ago, the City determined the wastewater flow and 

pollutant strength loading (loads) of the average residential customer. The average residential flow and 

loads is set as one EDU. Each commercial customer was assigned an EDU count based on the customer's 

flow and loads relative to a residential unit. The City engaged BWA to develop a new rate structure that 

includes a flat or fixed charge based on EDU count and a rate based on volume of wastewater 

discharged. 

The City also engaged BWA to develop a new wastewater capacity fee. The City was successful in 

securing a Clean Water State Revolving Fund Grant and Loan for the upgrade of the wastewater 

treatment plant. The total cost of the improvement is $10.7 million and the City received a grant 

(principal forgiveness) for $6 million. Existing ratepayers and new connections will fund $4.7 million in 

construction costs which will significantly affect the calculation of the capacity fee. 

Wastewater Flow and Customer Projections 

Customer Base 
The City has approximately 1,400 residential and commercial wastewater customers recorded in the 

City's billing software. At any given time, some of the customers may have deactivated accounts. BWA 

analyzed the City's billing records and determined that the City's service area includes a number of 

rental units that have high turnover and revenues from these units may not be stable. Deactivated 

accounts are not currently charged the monthly rate. 

Billing Procedures 
BWA recommends that the City adjust its billing procedures to minimize delinquencies and lost revenue. 

The City has observed a trend of renters making their last month's rent payment and moving out of the 

City while neglecting to close their sewer account and pay their final sewer bill. These delinquencies 

result in lost revenue that is funded out of the sewer fund reserves. 

BWA recommends that the City allow only property owners to hold sewer accounts. Renters should no 

longer be permitted to open new sewer accounts. The property owner would be the ultimate party 

responsible for paying the sewer bill. If the property owner does not pay the sewer bill, the delinquency 

would become a lien against the property. BWA recommends that as part of each renter's security 

deposit, the landlord/property owner collect funds for the payment of the renter's final sewer bill. 

41 ?a~~ 

42 



If the City implements BWA's new fixed plus volume sewer rate structure, BWA recommends that the 

City collect the fixed portion of the charge from all properties including those that have their water 

service shutoff or may be vacant. Sewer service is a capital-intensive utility with a high percentage of 

fixed costs. Vacant properties benefit from the City operating and maintaining the sewer system in good 

working condition such that properties can connect and receive service at any time. All properties, 

including vacant properties, should pay the fixed charge. 

The billing records of December 2013, January 2014, and February 2014 were used to determine the 

EDU count and sewer flow of the City's service area. With the proposed changes to the billing 

procedures, the City can rely on revenues from all properties, including vacant properties, within the 

City. This change results in the EDU count increasing from about 1,300 EDUs under the old billing 

procedure (Le. not charging vacant or disconnected accounts) to 1,433 EDUs under the new billing 

procedure. 

Under the current (FY2013/14) monthly rate of $76.16 per EDU and a customer base of 1,433 EDUs, the 

City could collect as high as $1.31M in wastewater service charge revenue. To operate and maintain the 

sewer system and provide a high level of service, the sewer system revenue requirement is $1,167,000. 

Under the new billing system with the current rate of $76.16 per EDU, the City would collect revenues in 

excess of the cost of service. 

Recommended Customer Classes 
BWA reviewed the City's commercial customers and assigned customers to wastewater strength 

categories based on BWA's prior rate study experience, industry standard practice, and the wastewater 

strengths described in the Revenue Program Guidelines developed by the State Water Resources 

Control Board, see Table 1 and Appendix A. 

Table 1 
City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
Customer Classifications 

BWA Recommended 
Customer Class Strength Factor 
Low 0.80 

Domestic 1.00 

Medium 1.50 

High 1.75 

Example Customers 
Car wash, office, retail store, school w/o 
cafeteria, laundromat 

Single family residential , multifamily residential , 
hotel, school with cafeteria, motel, mobile 
home park. churches, auto shop, gas station, 
bars without dining 
Beauty shop, medical office, dental office 

Restaurant, market with food prep, bakery 

51 >agc 

43 



BWA calculated the new EDU count of commercial customers by allocating 60% of the cost of service to 

flow and 40% to strength. This allocation is commonly used by small wastewater agencies that do not 

have detailed cost information or engineering studies available. The calculation for each commercial 

customer's EDU count is: 

EDU count = (avg winter water use/5 cd) x (60% + 40% x strength factor) 

The average residential winter water use and assumed wastewater flow is 5 hundred cubic feet (cd) per 

month. Wastewater flows are often estimated using winter water consumption. During the winter, 

customers typically do not use water for outdoor irrigation. The flow of each commercial customer is 

scaled in comparison to the 5 cd wastewater flow of the average residential customer. 

The City's current EDU count was compared with the BWA recommended EDU count based on the 

equation above. Some customers received a decrease in their EDU count and some received an 

increase. The BWA recommended EDU count results in a net gain of 15 EDUs. Under the BWA EDU 

count with no rate structure changes, the wastewater service charge would be $67.16 to collect the 

revenue requirement of $1.17M, see Table 2. 

Table 2 
City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
EDU Count 

Current EDU 
Customer Class Count 
Low 17 
Domestic 1.402 
Medium 3 
High 11 

1.433 

Cost of Service $1,310,000 
(determined by City) 

Annual Cost per EDU $913.92 

Monthly Cost per EDU $76.16 

Rate Structure Alternative 

BWA Recommended 
EDU Count Net Chanae 

15 (2) 
1.414 12 

4 1 
15 ~ 

1.448 15 

$1,167,000 

$805.94 

$67.16 

In addition to updating the EDU count, BWA developed a rate structure alternative that adequately 

recovers the cost of providing service, is fair to the ratepayers, and includes a volumetric rate based on 

estimated wastewater flow. BWA developed a rate alternative in which revenues are allocated to fixed 

and volume rate components. Based on our experience with smaller wastewater systems, like the 

City's, fixed costs typically make up 50% to 90% of total costs and variable costs make up 10% to 50% of 

total costs. The fixed rate component is based on the EDU count described in the previous section and 

the volume rate is calculated based on an estimate of winter water use. Winter water use is based on 

44 



the average monthly water use during December 2013, January 2014, and February 2014. The average 

monthly winter water use is multiplied by twelve to estimate yearly wastewater flow. 

BWA's Recommended Rate Structure: 70% Fixed and 30% Volume 
Under the recommended rate, BWA allocates 70% of revenue to the fixed monthly charge and 30% of 

revenue to a new volume rate. The fixed charge is based on the BWA recommended EDU count. The 

volume rate for low, domestic, medium, and high strength customers is scaled to the strength factor for 

each customer class. 

The average residential monthly bill under the recommended rate structure is $67.56. 

Table 3 
City of Rio Dell 

Fixed 
Charge 

$47.01 + ( 

Volume Winter 
Rate Water Use 

$4.11 x 5 

$/ecf eef 

Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
Recommended Rate Structure: 70% Fixed and 30% Volume 

FIXED CHARGE CALCULATION -70% 

Total Cost of Service 

Customer Class 
Low 
Domestic Strength 
Medium 
High 

Strength 
Factor 

0.80 
1.00 
1.50 
1.75 

VOLUME RATE CALCULATION - 30% 

Total Cost of Service 

Customer Class 
Low 
Domestic Strength 
Medium 
High 

Strength 
Factor 

0.80 
1.00 
1.50 
1.75 

$1 .167.000 

BWAEDUs 
15 

1,414 
4 

12 
1.448 

$1 ,167,000 

Total Flow' 
684 

83,088 
180 
§l1§ 

84,648 

Total 
Monthly Bill 

= $67.56 

Fixed Charge 
based on EDU 

$47.01 
$47.01 
$47.01 
$47.01 

Volume Rate' 
$3.29 
$4.11 
$6.17 
$7.19 

Fixed Charge 
70% Revenue 

5816.900 

Annual Fixed 
Charge Revenue 

$8,462 
$797,666 

$2,256 
$8,462 

$816,846 

Volume Rate 
30% Revenue 

$350,100 

$4.14 
avg rate per eef 

Annual Volume 
Rate Revenue 

$2,250 
$341,492 

$1,111 
$5.004 

$349,857 

1 • Units are hundred cubic feel (cef) Based on winter water use. Resrdential winter water use is capped at 15 ecf per 
month. 
2 - Volume rates are scaled to the domestic rate based on the strength factor (i.e. the low strength rate is 0 8 times the 
domestic strength rate). The domestic strength rate is set such that the total volume rate revenue is less than or equal 
to 30% ot the cost of service. 

45 



Bill Impacts 
Transitioning to a volume rate, residential customers with 7 ccf of wastewater flow or less will receive 

reductions in their monthly wastewater bills. BWA analyzed the monthly bill distribution of single 

family residential customers, see Figure 1. Under the recommended rates about 80% of single family 

residential customers would receive a decrease and about 20% of single family residential customers 

would receive an increase in their monthly wastewater bills. The maximum residential monthly bill (15 

ccf) increase is $32.50. 

250 -

200 

o 150 
~ 

.8 
E 
" z 100 

50 

o 

Figure 1 
Proposed Change in Single Family Residential Sewer Bills 

80~ of s-n,11! 
family resfdental 
accounts receive 
a bill decrease 

Change in Sewer Bill 

20~ of sinale famlty 
residental accounts 

receive a bill increa,e 

46 



Table 4 shows bill impacts to low, average, and high water users under the recommeded rates. 

Table 4 
City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
Single Family Residential Customer Bills Comparison 

Low User (3eef) Rale Unit Total Charge 
Currenl 

Fixed $76.16 1 $76.16 
Total monthly bill $76.16 

Recommended 
Fixed $47.01 1 $47.01 
Volume $4.11 3 $12.33 
Total monthly bill $59.34 

Net change (recommended less current) ($16.82) 

Average User Rate Unit Total Charge 
(5eef) 
Current 

Fixed $76.16 $76.16 
Total monthly bill $76.16 

Recommended 
Fixed $47.01 1 $47.01 
Volume $4.11 5 $20.55 
Total monthly bill $67.56 

Net change (recommended less current) ($8.60) 

High User (Beef) Rate Unit Total Charge 
Current 

Fixed $76.16 1 $76.16 
Total monthly bill $76.16 

Recommended 
Fixed $47.01 1 $47.01 
Volume $4.11 8 $32.88 
Total monthly bill $79.89 

Net change (recommended less current) $3.73 

91 Page 

47 



Bill Survey 
BWA conducted a bill survey to compare the current and proposed single family wastewater bill in the 

City of Rio Dell to other local agencies. Rio Dell currently has the highest sewer bill in the region, see 

Figure 2 and Table 5. Under BWA's proposed sewer rate alternative, the average single family residential 

wastewater bill is reduced from $76.16 to $67.56 and is no longer the highest bill in the region. 

Figure 2 
Monthly Residential Wastewater Bill SUNey 
Based on 5 cd monthly winter water use' 

$100 ~--------------------------------------------------------~ 

$90 t-~========~--------------------------

$80 

$70 

a Volume Charges 

• Fixed Charses 

$~ +----------------------------------
$50 +----------------------l 
$40 +----------------=
$30 +------
$20 

$10 

$0 

• 5 eel Is the average residential monthly winter water use in the City of Rio Dell 

10 I t 

48 



Table 5 
City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate Study 
Survey of Typical Monthly Bills of Residential Customers 

Based on winler waler use of 5 ccf per monlh 

McKinleyville Community Services Dislrict 
Fixed 
Flow-based ($1.09/ccf up 1012 cel) 
Total Monlhly Bill 

Cily of Eureka 
Fixed 
Volume-based on water use over 2 units ($4.43/ccf) 
Tolal Monlhly Bill 

Cily of Arcata 
Base Charge 
Sewer Repair Fee 
Flow over allowance of 4.5 ccf ($4.30/cel) 
Sublotal 
Utility Tax of 3% 
Total Monlhly Bill 

Manila Community Services Districl 
Fixed 
Tolal Monthly Bill 

Cily of Fortuna 
Base Charge for up to 5 ccf of flow 
Flow-based ($8 .61/ccf over 5) 
Total Monlhly Bill 

Humboldt Community Services District 
Account Charge 
Base Rale 
Flow-based ($2 .79/ccf) 
Total Monthly Bill 

Scotia Community Services District 
Fixed 
Total Monthly Bill 

City of Fort Bragg 
Fixed 
Flow-based ($6.20/ccf) 
Tolal Monthly Bill 

City of Willits 
Fixed 
Total Monthly Bill 

Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
Fixed 
Flow-based ($4.45/ccf over 3.4) 
Total Monthly Bill 

Cily of Ukiah 
Fixed 
Flow-based ($2 .29/ccf) 
Total Monthly Bill 

City of Rio Dell (current) 
Fixed 
Total Monthly Bill 

15.01 
6.35 

21.36 

11.54 
15.21 
26.75 

28.58 
5.00 
1.98 

35.56 
1.51 

37.07 

38.33 
38.33 

38.75 
0.00 

38.75 

4.00 
21.59 
14.80 
40.39 

42.50 
42.50 

22.47 
32.65 
55.12 

61.58 
61.58 

53.47 
8.80 

62.27 

60.39 
11.85 
72.24 

76.16 
76.16 

llI P~2i" 

49 



Wastewater Capacity Fee 
As part of the wastewater rate study, BWA also evaluated the City's wastewater capacity fee. The 

purpose of capacity fees is to recover the capital costs of facilities needed to serve growth and new 

customers. In establishing any fee or charge, achieving equity is one of the primary goals. In the case of 

capacity fees, this goal is often expressed as "growth should pay for growth". The fees must be 

reasonable and non-arbitrary and based on facility capital costs, user loads, and system capacity. 

California Government Code Section 66013 contains the regulations regarding water and wastewater 

connection fees or capacity fees. It states that such fees or charges shall not exceed the estimated 

reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fees or charges are imposed unless the amount of 

the fee or charge imposed in excess of the estimated reasonable cost of providing the services is 

submitted to the electorate and approved by two-thirds vote. The calculations provided below 

demonstrate the reasonable cost of service of providing wastewater service to the City's customers. 

Capacity Fee Methodology 
BWA used a System Buy-in Method for calculating the City's wastewater capacity fee. The buy-in 

concept is based on the premise that new customers are entitled to service at the same price as existing 

customers. Existing customers, however, have already provided the facilities that will serve the new 

customers, including any costs of financing those facilities. Under this method, new customers pay an 

amount equal to the investment already made by existing customers in the facilities. This equity 

investment is divided by the number of customers (or customer equivalents) to determine the amount 

of payment required from the new customer to buy in to the utility at parity with existing customers. 

Once new customers have paid their fee, they become equivalent to existing customers and share the 

responsibility for existing facilities. When additional costs are incurred for system improvements, 

replacement, or expansion, all customers share the costs of such improvements. 

This method is appropriate because new customers are buying into the existing collection system and 

into the wastewater treatment plant. The City recently upgraded its wastewater treatment plant to 

come into compliance with a cease and desist order from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and 

to expand capacity. The improvements to the treatment plant benefit both existing and new customers 

and the costs of the improvements should be shared by both groups of customers. The project will 

increase capacity of treatment plant from 0.3 million gallons per day (mgd) to 0.5 mgd average dry 

weather flow. The expanded capacity will serve growth in the community through buildout. The total 

cost of the wastewater treatment plant expansion and improvements is $10.7 million. $6 million of the 

construction cost is offset by a grant and the remaining cost of $4.7 million will be financed through a 

loan from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. 

BWA calculated a buy-in cost to the City's collection system based on the replacement cost new less 

depreciation (RCNLD) value of existing facilities. This valuation method is based on the depreciated 

accounting book value of each asset escalated into current dollars based on the change in the 

Engineering NeWS-Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index 20 Cities Average from each asset's original 

date. The ENR index is a widely-used index for determining construction cost inflation. 

12 I P r c' 

50 



Capacity Fee Calculation 
The City provided BWA with a list of wastewater system assets, the original construction or purchase 

price, useful life of the asset, and depreciation. In total, the RCNLD value of the wastewater system is 

about $11.35 million. HDR Engineering, the engineer for the wastewater treatment plant upgrade, 

determined that the average dry weather flow buildout capacity of the treatment plant will be 0.5 

million gallons per day (mgd). $11.35 million divided by 0.5 mgd equals a capacity cost of $22.70 per 

gallon of dry weather flow per day. The average dry weather capacity per EDU is about 230 gallons 1 

which equals a wastewater capacity fee of $5,220 ($22.70/gpd x 230 gallons), see Table 6. 

Table 6 
City of Rio Doll 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
Wastewater Capacity Fee CalculatJon 

Date of Totill 
ConstructJon or Useful Life Original Accumulated Remaining 

Ass.tOescrff!tJon Purchase (Monthsl Cost Oef!teclatfon Book Valult RCNLD' 
Infrastructure 

Mise Infrastructure 1211512010 360 2.750.571 (183977) 2.566 594 2,823.613 
Building and Improvements 

Corp Yard Fencing 1211512009 84 8 .310 (3.561) 4.749 5186 
Land 

Mise Land 2000 502.543 NA 50loS43 502,543 
Mach & Equip 

RIVER PUMP 111612004 84 5,505 (5,505) 0 0 
SEWER PUMP 21412004 84 15,974 (15.974) 0 0 
SEWER MACHINE 311812004 84 36,310 (36 .310) 0 0 
SEWER PUMP 61112004 84 16,031 (16031) 0 0 
SEWER PUMP 71912004 84 38,460 (38.460) 0 0 
SEWER PUMP 312012006 84 13,357 (13183) 174 213 
Fembridge Tractor 412512008 84 11,148 (7.964) 3 ,184 3705 
Aqua Sferra Controls 613012008 60 73,342 (73,342) 0 
2008 John Deere Tractor 311512009 60 45,011 (34,008) 11 .003 12167 
City Hall Healing Unit 111912011 60 190 (38) 152 156 

Vehicles 
112 2003 FORD F·351 813012003 84 13.750 (13,750) 0 0 
2008 Ford F·35O 81112008 60 12.386 (12.386) 0 0 
1978 GMC Vac10f Trucl< 51612010 36 1.833 (1 .833) 0 0 
1993 Chevy 5-10 712812010 36 1.252 (1 .252) 0 0 

Construction In Progress 
CIP ~ Sewer EffkJent Disposal 1211512012 480 3.291 .939 0 3,291 ,939 3.300.683 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (Je$S grant) 10,700,000 16,000,000) 4,700 !!!1l! 

Total Value of City Wastewater Facilities $17,537,910 ($6,457,573) $11,080,337 

Buildout dry weather tlow (gal/ons/day) 500000 

Buy-in cost per gallon of flow 522.70 

Average dry weather flow per EDU (gallons/day)" 230 

Wastewater capacity fee per EDU S5.220 

1 - RCNLD is calculated by escalating the original cost to current dollars us'ng the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index 20 
Cities Average. 
2 _ Calculated by BWA from infonnaUon provided by HDR Engineering, Inc. 

For new nonresidential customers, the City engineer should determine the EDU count of each new 

customer based on estimated wastewater flow and strength. The wastewater capacity fee for new 

nonreSidential customers should be scaled to the EDU count. 

ICalculated by BWA from information provided by Craig Olson, Project Manager for the Wastewater Treatment Plant upgrade, HOR 
Engineering. Inc. The current dry wt!ather flow at the plant is approximately 0 .3 mgd, divided by 1,292 eous equals a capacity of 230 gallons per 

day per fOU. 

13I P ',," 

51 



Capacity Fee Survey 
The City's current wastewater capacity fee is $950 per EDU, the lowest in the region. The recommended 

capacity fee of $5,220 is competitive with other local agencies. BWA conducted a capacity fee survey of 

the typical fees for new single family connections and found that the fees range up to $12,240 (Ukiah 

Valley Sanitation District), see Table 7 and Figure 3. 

Table 7 
City of Rio Dell 
Wastewater Rate and Capacity Fee Study 
Wastewater Capacity Fee Survey - Single Family Residential Home 

City of Rio Dell (Current) 
City of Eureka 
Humboldt Community Services District 
City of Fort Bragg 
Manila Community Services District' 
Scotia Community Services District' 
McKinleyville Community Services District 
City of Rio Dell (Proposed) 
City of Arcata 
City of Fortuna' 
City of Willits 
City of Ukiah 
Ukiah Valley Sanitation District' 

1 - District has a STEP sewer system. 

950.00 
2,000.00 
3,000.00 
3,129.59 
3,700.00 
3,726.00 
4,497.00 
5,220,00 
5,370.00 
5,397.00 
7,840.00 

10,911.00 
12,240.00 

2 - Typical capacity fee as shown in the District's Rules and Regulations, includes 
many sub-charges based on acreage. 
3 - Assumes 17 fixture units for the typical home at a cost of 317.50 per fixture unit. 
4 - Wastewater capacity fee for a two bedroom house . 

....... 
Sinale Flmlly Resldentl.1 Wltt.w~t.r Clpaclty F .. SUrv.,.. Mwch·20U 

$14,000 1-----------------------, 
£ 

512,000 ""----------------------

j $10,000 f--------------------

$ •. 000 +--------------. -----

~ 
$6,000 +--------------..f------' 

IJ! 

I 
$4,000 f--------::= -

52,000 

so 

141 d 

52 



Adjusting Capacity Fees 
Capacity fees should be adjusted regularly to prevent them from falling behind the costs of constructing 

new facilities. Several methods can be used to adjust the capacity fees, including: 

• ENR Construction Cost Index: ENR (Engineering News-Record) magazine publishes construction cost 

indices monthly for 20 major U.S. cities and an average of 20 cities around the U.S. These indices 

can be used to estimate the change in the construction cost of facilities. If the ENR Index has 

increased by three percent since the last capacity fee adjustment, the capacity fee should be 

increased by three percent. 

• U.S., California, or regional consumer price index. 

• Interest rate and borrowing costs: The interest and borrowing costs for debt issued to finance 

wastewater capital projects can be added to the capacity fee annually. 

BWA recommends that the City adjust its capacity fees annually by the change in the ENR Construction 

Cost Index 20 Cities Average. This is the most appropriate index because it directly reflects construction 

costs. Suggested language for implementing this policy is: 

Each year, commencing on (m/d/y) and continuing thereafter on each (m/d) , 

the capacity fee shall be adjusted by an increment based on the change in the 

Engineering News-Record Construction Cost Index 20 Cities Average over the prior year. 

However, the City Council may at its option determine, by resolution adopted prior 

thereto, that such adjustment shall not be effective for the next succeeding year, or may 

determine other amounts as appropriate. 

Capacity fees should also be reviewed in detail when updated information, such as a revised master plan 

or capital improvement program, is obtained, but not less than every five years. 

151 P a P e 

53 



Appendix A 

low Strength 

Domestic Strength 

Medium Strength 

High Strength 

Banks & Financial Institutions 
Barber Shops 
Hair Salon {hair cutting onlV} 
Dry Cleaners 
laundromats 
Offices · Business and Professional 
Offices - Medical/Dental (without surgery) 
Post Offices 
Retail Stores 
Schools without cafeteria 
Car Wash 

Residential - All 
Appliance Repair 
Auto Oealers - without Service Facrlities 
Nail Salons 
Pet Groomers 
Bars & Taverns - without d nlng 
Camp Ground or RV Park 
Churches, Halls & lodges 
Fire Stations 
Hotels, Motel.5. B&Bs, and Vacation Rentals (WID restaurant) 
Ubrarles 
Rest Homes 
Shoe Repair Shops 
Theaters 
Warehouses 
Car Washes - Self ServiCe 
High Tech Medical Manufacturing 
Lrght Manufacturing/Industrial 
Mob~ Heme Park 
Gas StatIOn 
Gym or Health Club 
Schools with cafeteria 
Auto Dealers· with Serv ce Facirties 
MachIne Shops 
Servite Stations, Garages, Auto Repair Shops 

Restaurants· W/O Dish Washer & Garbage Disposal 
Coffee Shops· W/O Dish Washer & Garbage Disposal 
Mini Marts· W/O D sh Washer & Garbage Disposal 
Mini Mart with Gas Pumps · W/O Dish Washer & Garbage Disposal 
Catering · W/O Dish Washer & Garbage Drsposal 
Hotel/Motel with Restaurant 
Beauty Shops ( ha r cutting w/additlonal treatments) 
Hospitals · General, Convalescent & Veterinarian 
Medical Offices· with Surgery 
Dt ntal Off CIllS 

Restaurants· with Dish Washer or Garbage Disposal 
Coffee Shops · with Dish Washer or Garbage Disposal 
Catermg - with Dish Washer or Garbage Disposal 
Bakeries 
Butcher Shops 
F~h Market/Shop 
Markets · with Dish Washer or Garbage DIsposal 
Markets · with Baker,es or Butcher Shops 
Mini Marts· with Dish Washer or Garbage Disposal 
Wineries 
Cheese Makers 
Dairy Products (milk producers, yogurt, ice cream maker) 
Specialty Foods Manufacturing (e.g ., olive oil maker) 
Pee Cream Shop 
Tasting Rooms 
Spa with Various Beauty Treatments 
Funeral Homes/ Mortuary 

54 



. . 
Rio Dell City "all 
675 Wildwood Avelllle 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity. COlli 

May 20,2104 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Mayor Jack Thompson and Council Member Gordon Johnson, 
ORR Water System Subcommittee of the Council 

SUBJECT: Release subcommittee and give City Manager Direction 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Release the Old Ranch Road Water Users Subcommittee of the City Council and direct 
the City Manager to return on June 17,2014 with an updated recommendation or status 
report, and 

2. If the City Manager is not been able to reach an agreement with the ORR water users by 
the time the Prop. 218 hearing on water rate adjustments is planned, the Council directs 
that the ORR water service area be designated as a special out-of-City rate area subject to 
higher rates for the cost of the replacement of2" water line along ORR and including 
road improvements from Monument Road, funds for the annual maintenance of the road 
and waterline and the cost of City staff to drive the road to read water meters, and 

3. Approve the filing of a timber harvest plan for the 5.5 acre Monument Springs property 
in order to generate approximately $118,000 (net) for the Water Fund. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

On May 5, 2014 the Old Ranch Road (ORR) Subcommittee of the Council made its report to the 
full City Council concerning its meeting with 7 water customer families receiving water service 
from the ORR water line. At the time, a missing piece of the conversation was with the downhill 
neighboring property owner, Humboldt Redwood Company (HRC), with whom the City had 
corresponded. 

On April 25, 2014 the City requested an easement from HRC for the placement of 4 water meters 
at the intersection of ORR and Monument Road and an easement across their property for 4 
separate water lines for ORR customers. On May 7, 2014 the City Manager met with Mark 
Biaggi, Land Manager for HRC, and went over the request. Though he did not say no, he 
indicated that the Company was not inclined to enter into an easement agreement with that 
number of property owners. He suggested working with the property owner on the uphill side of 
ORR, one of our customers. 

55 



J 
' On May 8,2014 the City Manager was informed by one of the customers that the uphill property 
owner, Linda Cidoni, was not willing to grant an easement across her property for her neighbor's 
laterals. 

On May 12, 2014 a spokesperson for the group emailed all Council Members, asking for a study 
session on the matter and the involvement of Members of the Board of Supervisors. 

At this point the parties are not all on the same page and the subcommittee believes that it has 
completed its assignment. 

It is recommended that the City Council release the subcommittee of its assignment and refer the 
matter back to the City Manager for limited negotiation. 

The City is presently engaged in a Water Capital Improvement Plan and Rate Study which 
should be ready for a Proposition 218 hearing in the next couple of months. If the City Manager, 
who has limited time available, is not been able to reach a mutual agreement with the ORR water 
users by the time the Prop. 218 hearing is planned, it is recommended that, as part of the water 
rate adjustment, the ORR water service area be designated as a special out-of-City rate area 
subject to higher rates for the replacement of 2" water line along ORR for 7 property owners 
currently using 4 meter, and including road improvements from Monument Road, funds for the 
maintenance of the road and waterline and the cost of City staff to drive the road to read water 
meters. 

Further, the City has a recent timber appraisal for its 5.5 acre "springs property" indicating the 
net value of the timber for harvest is approximately $118,000. The cost of a timber harvest plan 
may cost approximately $10,500 and the estimated Timber Yield Tax due is $3,400. The net 
proceeds from the harvest are to be deposited in the Water fund. 

56 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

For Meeting of: May 20, 2014 

City Council 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director ~ 

Jim Stretch~anager 
May 6,2014 

Text Amendment to the Commercial and Industrial Designations replacing the 

language "such as" with "similar to and including but not limited to" and to allow 

uses not specifically allowed with a Conditional Use Permit, but are similar to 

and compatible with the uses permitted in the zone with a Conditional Use 

Permit. 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed text amendment; 

2. Re-Open the public hearing, receive public input, close the public hearing and 
deliberate; 

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 316-2014 amending the Town Center regulations, Section 

17.20.040(2), the Neighborhood Center regulations, Section 17.20.S0(l){c) and 

17.20.050(2), the Community Commercial regulations, Section 17.20.060(1) and 

17.20.060(2), the Industrial regulations, Section 17.20.100(1) and 17.20.100(2) and the 

Industrial Commercial regulations, Section 17.20.110(1) and 17.20.110(2) of the Rio Dell 

Municipal Code (RDMe). 

Similar Use Types Ordinance No. 316-2014 

57 



4. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an 
adoption summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members 
voting for or against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post in 
the office of the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance 
pursuant to Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code. 

Background/Summary 

At your meeting of May 6, 2014 the Council conducted the first reading (introduction) of 
Ordinance No. 316-2014. The Ordinance will amend the City's commercial and industrial zones 
to eliminate the term "such as" and replace it with "similar to and including but not limited to". 
This provides staff some additional flexibility when considering use types that are not 
specifically identified in the zone. 

In addition, staff is recommending that conditionally permitted use types in the Commercial 
and Industrial zones be expanded to allow "Any use not specifically enumerated if it is similar 
to and compatible with the uses permitted in the zone" . Again, this provides flexibility for 
project proponents, when the use type is not specifically identified as a conditionally permitted 
use. 

Zone Reclassification Required Finding: 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected. 

One of the six Goals identified in the Land Use Element of the General Plan is: "To grow 
sustainably, provide economic opportunities and local jobs". In addition, Land Use Policy LU-17 
includes the following language: "Strengthen and diversify the local economy and maintain and 
improve property values." Furthermore, Land Use Policies LU-21 and LU-24 calls for in part 
" ... the creation and retention of employment opportunities ... and ... economic development in 
Rio DelL". The proposed revisions to allow and facilitate economic opportunities is consistent 
with the Goals and Polices of the General Plan 

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

The primary purpose of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is to inform the 
decision makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project. 

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the project is Statutorily Exempt 
pursuant to Section 1S061(b) (3) ofthe CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. Pursuant to Section 1S061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines this exemption is 
covered by the general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there 

Similar Use Types Ordinance No. 316-2014 

58 



is no possibility that the project in question may have a significant effect on the environment, 
the project is not subject to CEQA. The text amendment to replace "such as" with "similar to 
and including but not limited to" and to allow similar and compatible uses with a Conditional 
Use Permit, will not affect whether or not the use is exempt from CEQA. Based on the minor 
nature of the proposed amendments, staff believes there is no evidence to suggest that the 
amendments will have a significant effect on the environment. 

Financial Impact 

The City is responsible for the costs associated with the proposed amendment. The cost is 
insignificant and will not result in additional budget expenditures or revisions. 

Attachments: 

1. Ordinance No. 316·2014 amending the Town Center regulations, Section 17.20.040(2), 
the Neighborhood Center regulations, Section 17.20.50(1)(c) and 17.20.050(2), the 
Community Commercial regulations, Section 17.20.060(1) and 17.20.060(2), the 
Industrial regulations, Section 17.20.100(1) and 17.20.100(2) and the Industrial 
Commercial regulations, Section 17.20.110(1) and 17.20.110(2) of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code (RDMC). 

2. Post Adoption Summary. 

Similar Use Types Ordinance No. 316-2014 

59 



ORDINANCE NO. 316 - 2014 

AMENDING THE COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL REGULATIONS, BY REPLACING THE LANGUAGE 

"SUCH AS" WITH "SIMILAR TO AND INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO" AND TO ALLOW USES NOT 

SPECIFICALLY ALLOWED WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, BUT ARE SIMILAR TO AND 

COMPATIBLE WITH THE USES PERMITTED IN THE ZONE WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT. 

SECTIONS 17.20.040(2), 17.20.50(1)(c), 17.20.050(2), 17.20.060(1), 17.20.060(2),17.20.100(1), 

17.20.100(2),17.20.110(1) and 17.20.110(2) OF THE RIO DELL MUNICIPAL CODE (ROMe). 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS the City is often contacted by individuals interested in certain use types that may not 

be specifically identified as an allowed use in the zone the property is located; and 

WHEREAS the City recently amended the Town Center development standards to include the 

following language: "similar to and including but not limited to"; and 

WHEREAS this language allows staff some flexibility in determining whether or not a proposed 

use is similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in the zone; and 

WHEREAS staff is recommending that the language "such as" be replaced with "similar to and 

including but not limited to" in the Commercial and Industrial zones; and 

WHEREAS staff is also recommending that conditionally permitted use types in the Commercial 

and Industrial zones be expanded to allow "Any use not specifically enumerated if it is similar to 
and compatible with the uses permitted in the zone"; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendments in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendments in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that the 
proposed amendments are consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

Commercial and Industrial Text Amendments Ordinance Mav 2014 

ATT ACHMENT 1 60 



WHEREAS the proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions ofthe California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Rio Dell finds 
that: 

1. The proposed amendments are consistent with the General Plan and any applicable specific 
plan; and 

2. The City has determined that the proposed amendment is Statutorily Exempt pursuant to 
Section 1S061(b) (3) of the CEQA Guidelines, Title 14, Chapter 3 of the California Code of 
Regulations. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does 
hereby ordain as follows: 

Section 1. Amendments 

Section 17.20.040(2) Town Center or TC zone. 

Section 17.20.040(2)(f) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby established as follows: 

(fI Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in the 

~ 

Sections 17.20.0S0(1)(c) and 17.20.050(2)(e) Neighborhood Center or NC zone. 

Section 17.20.0S0(1)(c) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

(c) Stores, agencies and services of a light commercial character, conducted entirely within an 
enclosed building, slletl as Including, but not limited to antique shops, art galleries, retail bakeries, 
banks, barber shops, beauty salons, bookstores, clothing and apparel stores, coin-operated dry 
cleaning and laundries, dry cleaning and laundry agencies, drug stores, florists, food markets, 
furniture stores, hardware and appliance stores, radio and television sales and services, 
restaurants and licensed premises appurtenant thereto, automobile service stations and repair, 
studiOS, tailor shops, enclosed theaters, and variety stores; 

Section 17.20.0S0(2)(e) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby established as follows: 

Ie) Uses not specifically identified, but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted In 
the zone, 

Commercial and Industrial Text Amendments Ordinance May 2014 

61 



Sections 17.20.060(1). 17.20.060(2)(c) and 17.20.060(2)(e) Community Commercial or CC zone. 

Section 17.20.060(1) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses, including, but not limited to: 

Section 17.20.060(2)(c) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

(c) Stores, agencies and services sllEIl as including, but not limited to carpentry and cabinet· 
making shops, clothing manufacture, contractors' yards, dry cleaning and laundry plants, 
handicraft manufacture, lumber yards, metalworking shops, wholesale outlet stores, painters' and 
decorators' yards. plumbing shops, printing and lithographic; 

Section 17.20.060(2)(e) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby established as follows: 

lei Uses not specifically identified. but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in 
the zone. 

Sections 17.20.100(1) and 17.20.100(2)(c) Industrial or I zone. 

Section 17.20.100(1) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses. including. but not limited to: 

Section 17.20.100(2)(c) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby established as follows: 

lei Uses not specifically identified. but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in 
the zone. 

Sections 17.20.110(1) and 17.20.110(2)(c) Industrial Commercial or IC zone. 

Section 17.20.110(1) ofthe Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

(1) Principal Permitted Uses. including. but not limited to: 

Section 17.20.110(2)(c) of the Rio Dell Municipal Code is hereby established as follows: 

lei Uses not specifically identified. but similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in 
the zone. 

Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction. the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Commercial and Industrial Text Amendments Ordinance May 2014 

62 



Section 3. Umitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of this 
ordinance. 

Section 4. CEQA Compliance 

The City Council has determined that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from review under 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. The text amendment to replace "such as" with "similar to and including but not 
limited to" and to allow similar and compatible uses with a Conditional Use Permit, will not affect 
whether or not the use is exempt from CEQA. Due to the nature of the proposed code revision, 
there is no evidence that a significant impact to the environment would occur as a result of 
adoption of the Ordinance. 

Section S. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Rio Dell on May 6, 2014 and furthermore the forgoing Ordinance was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on the 
20th of May 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above and 
foregOing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 316-2014 adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Rio Dell on May 20, 2014. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Commercial and Industrial Text Amendments Ordinance May 2014 

63 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764·3532 

Public Notice 
City of Rio Dell City Council 

SUMMARY FOR POSTING AFTER ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 

Cmor 

8 ---

(The summary shall be published or posted within 15 calendar days after the adoption of the ordinance) 

Summary 

On Tuesday, May 20, 2014 at 6:30 p.m., the Rio Dell City Council held a public hearing in the 

City Council Chamber at City Hall and approved and adopted Ordinance No. 316·2014 

amending the Commercial and Industrial Designations by replacing the language ·such as" with 

·similar to and including but not limited to· and to allow uses not specifically allowed with a 

Conditional Use Permit, but are similar to and compatible with the uses permitted in the zone 

with a Conditional Use Permit. 

Section 36933(a) of the California Government Code requires that the City Clerk, to post a 

summary of the Ordinance within 15 days of adoption with the names of those City Council 

members voting for or against, or otherwise voting in at least three (3) public places and to post 

in the office of the City Clerk a certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance. Said 

Ordinance was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 

City of Rio Dell , held on the May 20, 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

A certified copy of the full text of the Ordinance is posted in the office of the City Clerk at 675 

Wildwood Avenue in Rio Dell. General questions regarding the Ordinance and the process 

should be directed to Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director, (707) 764-3532. 

Similar Use Types Summary 

ATTACHMENT 2 64 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

O'ri Of 

For Meeting of: May 20, 2014 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City Council 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Director @ 

Jim ~tch' City Manager 

May 6,2014 

Text Amendment Establishing Density Bonus Regulations, Sections 17.30.073 of 

the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed text amendment; 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, and deliberate; and 

3. Introduce Ordinance No. 318-2014 establishing Density Bonus Regulations, Section 

17.30.073 ofthe Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC). 

4. Continue consideration, approval and adoption of the proposed Ordinance to your 

meeting of June 3, 2014 for the second reading and adoption. 

Background 

State Density Bonus Law, Government Code Section 65915, was first enacted in 1979. In 2005 
significant changes were made to the State's Density Bonus Law, including a requirement that 
Cities and Counties adopt local regulations implementing Government Code Section 65915. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

65 



The law requires local governments to provide density bonuses and other incentives to 
developers of affordable housing who commit to providing a certain percentage of dwelling 
units to persons whose income do not exceed specific thresholds. Cities also must provide 
bonuses to certain developers of senior housing developments, and in response to certain 
donations of land and the inclusion of childcare centers in some developments. 

Essentially, state density bonus law establishes that a residential project of five or more units 
that provides affordable or senior housing at specific affordability levels may be eligible for: 

• a "density bonus" to allow more dwelling units than otherwise allowed on the site by 
the applicable General Plan Land Use Map and Zoning; 

• use of density bonus parking standards; 
• incentives reducing site development standards or a modification of zoning code or 

architectural requirements that result in financially sufficient and actual cost 
reductions; 

• waiver of development standards that would otherwise make the increased density 
physically impossible to construct; 

• an additional density bonus if a childcare facility is provided. 

The density bonus may be approved only in conjunction with a development permit (Le., 
tentative map, parcel map, use permit or design review). Under State law, a jurisdiction must 
provide a density bonus, and incentives will be granted at the applicant's request based on 
specific criteria. These bonuses and incentives will be granted based on the following criteria: 

Table l' Criteria for Density Bonuses and Incentives for Affordable Housing 
Target Group· Target Units Density Bonus Incentives 

Very Low Income,l ) 5% 20% 1 
10% 33% 2 

15% or above 35% 3 
Lower Incomel21 10% 20% 1 

20% 35% 2 
30% or above 35% 3 

Moderate Incomel31 10% 5% 1 
(condominium or 20% 15% 2 

planned development) 30% or above 25% 3 
. . • Califam,a C,v" Code Sect,on 65915 app/tes only to proposed developments o!flVe (5) or more umts . 

(1) For each 1% increase over 5% of the Target Units the Density Bonus shall be increased by 1.5% up to a 
maximum of 35% 
(2) For each 1% increase over 10% of the Target Units the Density Bonus shall be increased by 1.5% up to a 
maximum of 35% 
(3) For each 1% increase over 10% of the Target Units the Density Bonus sholl be increased by 1% up to a 
maximum of 35% 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

66 



Table 2: Criteria for Density Bonuses and Incentives for Senior Housing and land 
Donation 

Target Group Target Units Density Bonus Concession or 
Incentives 

Senior Housingllf 100"'{' 20% 1 
Land Donation 12) 10% Very Low Income 15%-35% 1 

(1) 35 units dedicated to senior housing as defined in Civil Code Sections 51.3 and 51.12 
(2) For each 1% increase aver 10% of the Target Units the Density Bonus shall be increased by 1% up to a 
maximum of 35% 

Table 3' Density Bonus Parking Standards Compared to Rio Dell Municipal Code 
Type of Use City Requirement State Density Bonus 

Requirement 
Studio 1 space 1 space 

1 Bedroom 1 space 1 space 
2 Bedroom 2 spaces 2 spaces 
3 Bedroom 2 spaces 2 spaces 

Guest Parking .S spaces per unit o spaces 

State Density Bonus law provides that if the criteria above are met then the jurisdiction 
essentially has no grounds for denying density bonuses or use of the density bonus 
parking standards. A jurisdiction has limited grounds for denying incentives and waivers. 
A jurisdiction can deny incentives and waivers if, for example, (1) it violates state or 
federal laws, (2) it is not needed economically (for incentives only), (3) there are adverse 
health and safety effects, (4) there is an impact on an historic structure, and, for waivers 
only, (5) it does not physically preclude development. 

If a child care center is also included in the affordable or senior housing development, the 
local agency shall grant either an additional density bonus equal to or greater than the 
amount of square feet of the child care center or grant an additional incentive that 
contributes significantly to the economic feasibility of the construction of the child care 
facility, with the following additional requirements: 

• The child care facility shall remain in operation for a period of time as long as the term 
of the affordable units; 

• The percentage of children from very low-, low- and moderate income-families 
reflects the percentage of affordable units in the development; 

• The local agency shall not be required to provide a density bonus or concession for a 
child care facility if it finds that the community has adequate child care facilities. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

67 



Discussion 

Even without local Density Bonus regulations, the City is obligated consider and approve density 
bonuses if the State criteria is met. However, now the City is obligated to adopt a local Density 
Bonus Ordinance. The proposed Ordinance would formalize the process for implementing 
the review of density bonuses and related parking standards, incentives and waivers. 
Staff has crafted the ordinance to rely, as much as possible, on the standards and 
requirements contained in State law, so that if provisions in State law are amended in 
the future, the City's regulations will not necessarily need to be amended. 

State Density Bonus law includes the following definitions of terms used in the proposed 
regulations: 

Density Bonus (Section 65915(f) 
For the purposes of the Density Bonus regulations, "density bonus" means a density 
increase over the otherwise maximum allowable residential density as of the date of 
application by the applicant to the city, county or city and county. The applicant may elect 
to accept a lesser percentage of a density bonus. The amount of density bonus to which 
the applicant is entitled shall vary according to the amount by which the percentage of 
affordable housing units exceeds the percentage established in subdivision (b). 

Concession or Incentive (Section 65915(k) 
For the purposes of the Density Bonus regulations, concession or incentive means any of 
the following: 

1. A reduction in site development standards or a modification of zoning code 
requirements or architectural design requirements that exceed the minimum building 
standards approved by the California Building Standards Commission as provided in Part 
2.5 (commencing with Section 18901) of Division 13 of the Health and Safety Code, 
including, but not limited to, a reduction in setback and square footage requirements and 
in the ratio of vehicular parking spaces that would otherwise be required that results in 
identifiable, financially sufficient, and actual cost reductions. 

2. Approval of mixed use zoning in conjunction with the housing project if commercial, office, 
industrial, or other land uses will reduce the cost of the housing development and if the 
commercial, office, industrial, or other land uses are compatible with the housing project and 
the existing or planned development in the area where the proposed housing project will be 
located. 

3. Other regulatory incentives or concessions proposed by the developer of the city, county or 
city and county that result in identifiable, financially sufficient, and actual cost reductions. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Councit May 20, 2014 

68 



The provisions of the recommended Density Bonus Regulations are summarized below in Table 
4. 

Table 4: Proposed Density Bonus Regulations 
Provision Proposed Comments/Options 

Purpose The purpose ofthese regulations is to adopt an 
ordinance that specifies how compliance with The purpose is to 
Government Code Section 65915 ("State implement State Density 
Density Bonus law") will be implemented in an Bonus law and encourage 
effort to encourage the production of production of affordable 
affordable housing units in developments housing. 
proposed within the City. 

Definitions Unless otherwise specified in the regulations, Definitions in State Bonus 
the definitions found in State Density Bonus Density law will apply 

law shall apply to the terms contained herein. 

Applicability This Chapter shall apply to all zoning districts, 
including mixed use zoning districts, where 
residential developments of five or more Applicability is for 
dwelling units are proposed and where the development of five units 
applicant seeks and agrees to provide low, or more, per the definition 
very-low or moderate income or senior of "housing development" 
housing units in the threshold amounts provided in Section 
specified in State Density Bonus law such that 65915(i). 
the resulting density is beyond that which is 
permitted by the applicable zoning. This 
Chapter and State Density Bonus law shall 
apply only to the residential component of a 
mixed use project and shall not operate to 
increase the allowable density of the non-
residential component of any proposed 
project. 

Application A. Any applicant requesting a density bonus, A request for a density 
Requirements incentive(s), waiver(s) and/or use of density bonus shall be made in 

bonus parking standards pursuant to State writing. A request for an 
Density Bonus law shall provide the City with a incentive will require a pro 
written proposal. The proposal shall be forma or other report 
submitted prior to or concurrently with the showing "identifiable, 
filing of the planning application for the financially sufficient and 
housing development and shall be processed in actual cost reductions" 
conjunction with the underlying application. because that is the 

standard the City is allowed 
to utilize to review the 
request. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20. 2014 

69 



Provision Proposed Comments/Options 

Application B. The proposal for a density bonus, incentive(s) 
Requirements and/or waiver(s) pursuant to State Density A request for a waiver of 

Continued ... Bonus Law shall include the following development standards 
information: shall specify why the 
1. Requested density bonus. The specific waiver is necessary to 
requested density bonus proposal shall include make the construction of 
evidence that the project meets the thresholds the project physically 
for State Density Bonus Law. The proposal possible. 
shall also include calculations showing the 
maximum base density, the 
number/percentage of affordable units and 
identification of the income level at which such 
units will be restricted, additional market rate 
units resulting from the density bonus 
allowable under State Density Bonus Law and 
the resulting unit per acre density. The density 
bonus units shall not be included in 
determining the percentage of base units that 
qualify a project for a density bonus pursuant 
to State Density Bonus Law. 
2. Requested incentive(s). The request for 
particular incentive(s) shall include a pro forma 
or other report evidencing that the requested 
incentive(s) results in identifiable, financially 
sufficient and actual cost reductions that are 
necessary to make the housing units 
economically feasible. The report shall be 
sufficiently detailed to allow the City to verify 
its conclusions. If the City requires the services 
of specialized financial consultants to review 
and corroborate the analysis, the applicant will 
be responsible for all costs incurred in 
reviewing the documentation. 
3. Requested Waiver(s). The written proposal 
shall include an explanation of the waiver(s) of 
development standards requested and why 
they are necessary to make the construction of 
the project physically pos9ible. Any requested 
waiver(s) shall not exceed the limitations 
provided by Section 17.30.073(8) and to the 
extent such limitations are exceeded will be 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

70 



Provision Proposed Comments/Options 
Application considered as a request for an incentive 
Requirements pursuant to Section 17.30.073(6) As with all projects, 

Continued ... 4. Fee. Payment of the fee in an amount set applicants are required to 

by Resolution of the City Council to pay "actual costs" . 

reimburse the City for staff time spent 
reviewing and processing the State Density 
Bonus Law application submitted pursuant to 
these regulations. 

Density A. A density bonus for a housing development 
Bonus means a density increase over the otherwise The review and approval 

maximum allowable residential density under of the request would be 
the applicable zoning and land use designation by the body with approval 
on the date the application is deemed complete. authority for the planning 
The amount of the allowable density bonus shall approval sought. For 
be calculated as provided in State Density Bonus example, the Planning 
Law. The applicant may select from only one of Commission would review 
the income categories identified in State Density a request submitted with 
Bonus Law and may not combine density a Subdivision or Use 
bonuses from different income categories to Permit. The Planning 
achieve a larger density bonus. Commission and City 
B. The body with approval authority for the Council would review a 
planning approval sought will approve, deny or request submitted with a 
modify the request for a density bonus, Rezoning/General Plan 
incentive, waiver or use of density bonus Amendment. 
parking standards in accordance with State 
Density Bonus Law and these regulations. 
Additionally, nothing herein prevents the City 
from granting a greater density bonus and 
additional incentives or waivers than that 
provided for herein, or from providing a lesser 
density bonus and fewer incentives and 
waivers than that provided for herein, when 
the housing development does not meet the 
minimum thresholds. 

Incentives A. The number of incentives granted shall be 
based upon the number the applicant is This section references 
entitled to pursuant to State Density Bonus State Density Bonus Law for 
Law. the review of incentives, 
B. An incentive includes a reduction in site including grounds for 
development standards or a modification of denial. 
zoning code requirements or architectural 
requirements that result in identifiable, 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

71 



Provision Proposed Comments/Options 
Incentives financially sufficient and actual cost reductions. 

Continued ... An incentive may be the approval of mixed use 
zoning (e .g. commercial) in conjunction with a 
housing project if the mixed use will reduce the 
cost of the housing development and is 
compatible with the housing project. An 
incentive may, but need not be, the provision 
of a direct financial incentive, such as the 
waiver of fees. 
C. A requested incentive may be denied only 
for those reasons provided in State Density 
Bonus Law. Denial of an incentive is a separate 
and distinct act from a decision to deny or 
approve the entirety of the project. 

Discretionary The granting of a density bonus or incentive(s) 
Approval shall not be interpreted in and of itself to The granting of a density 
Authority require a general plan amendment, zoning bonus or incentive does 
Retained change or other discretionary approval. If an not trigger the need for a 

incentive would otherwise trigger one of these general plan amendment, 

approvals, when it is granted as an incentive, zoning change or other 

no general plan amendment, zoning change or approval (659150). As an 

other discretionary approval is required. example, if a Use Permit 

However, if the base project without the for a development project 

incentive requires a general plan amendment, at 35 units per acre is 

zoning change or other discretionary approval, consistent with the 

the City retains discretion to make or not maximum density allowed 

make the required findings for approval of the by the General Plan and 

base project. Zoning, but the applicant 
seeks a density bonus that 
results in a density of more 
than 35 units per acre, a 
General Plan Amendment 
or Rezoning is not 
required. 

Waivers A waiver is a modification to a development To request a waiver of a 
standard such that construction at the development standard, the 
increased density would be physically possible. applicant must show that 
Development standards, include, but are not without the waiver, the 
limited to, a height limitation, a setback project would be physically 
requirement, minimum floor areas, an onsite impossible to construct 
open space requirement, or a parking ratio (65915(e)). 
that applies to a residential development. An 

5 
Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

72 



Provision Proposed Comments/Options 
Waivers applicant may request a waiver of any 

Continued ... development standard to make the project 
physically possible to construct at the 
increased density. To be entitled to the 
requested waiver, the applicant must show 
that without the waiver, the project would be 
physically impossible to construct. There is no 
limit on the number of waivers. 

Affordable Prior to issuance of a building permit, the 
Housing applicant shall enter into an Affordable Housing The minimum term of 30 

Agreement Agreement with the City to the satisfaction of years for affordable units is 

the City Attorney guaranteeing the affordability specified in Section 
of the rental or ownership units for a minimum 65915(c)(1). 

of thirty (30) years, identifying the type, size 
and location of each affordable unit and 
containing requirements for administration, 
reporting and monitoring. Such Affordable 
Housing Agreement shall be recorded in the 
Humboldt County Recorder's Office. 

Design and A. Affordable units must be constructed 
Quality concurrently with market-rate units and shall Affordable units shall be 

be integrated into the project. Affordable constructed concurrently 
units shall be of equal design and quality as and integrated into the 
the market rate unit. Exteriors and interiors, project with equal design 
including architecture, elevations, floor plans, and quality as the market 
interior finishes and amenities of the rate units. This section may 
affordable units shall be similar to the market be waived or modified for 
rate units. The number of bedrooms in the affordable units developed 
affordable units shall be consistent with the for special groups, such as 
mix of market rate units. This section may be housing for special needs or 
waived or modified on a case by case basis for seniors. Such housing may 
affordable housing units developed for special need to be grouped for 
groups, including housing for special needs or financing or design reasons. 
seniors. 
B. Parking standards may be modified as 
allowable under the State Density Bonus law 
and anything beyond those standards shall be 
considered a request for an incentive. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20, 2014 

73 



Procedures for Zoning Ordinance Amendments 

Pursuant to Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code, the following City 
procedures are required to amend the Ordinance: 

• An amendment may be initiated by one or more owners of property affected by the 
proposed amendment, as set out in Section 17.35.010(3), or by action ofthe Planning 
Commission, or the City Council. 

• The application of one or more property owners for the initiation of an amendment 
shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk on a form provided, accompanied by a filing 
fee. 

• Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on the Planning Commission 
agenda, the matter shall be set for a public hearing. 

• Notice of hearing time and place shall be published once in a newspaper of general 
circulation at least ten calendar days before the hearing or by posting in at least three 
public places. 

• At the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall hear any person affected by the 
proposed amendment. The hearing may be continued from time to time. 

• Within 40 days of the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall submit 
to the City Council a written report of recommendations and reasons therefore. 

• Subject only to the rules regarding the placing of matters on its agenda, the City Council, 
at its next regular meeting following the receipt of such report, shall cause the matter to 
be set for a public hearing. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given as 
provided in Section 17.35.010(5), hereof. 

• At the public hearing, the City Council shall hear any person affected by the proposed 
amendment. The hearing may be continued to a specified future date, but shall be 
concluded within 60 days of the commencement thereof. 

• The City Council shall not make any change in the proposed amendment until the 
proposed change has been referred to the Planning Commission for a report, and the 
Planning Commission report has been filed with the City Council. 

Zone Reclassification Required Findings: 

1. The proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Councit May 20. 2014 

74 



The proposed establishment of Density Bonus regulations is consistent with the Goals and 
Polices of the General Plan. Goal A of the Housing Element calls for "A variety of housing types 
to meet the needs of all economic segments of the community including those with special 
housing requirements." Policy A-5 of the Housing Element encourages density bonuses for 
developments providing housing for low to moderate income households and for qualifying 
senior housing projects. In addition, the Action Plan of the Housing Element calls for the 
development of a Density Bonus Ordinance consistent with State law. 

2. The proposed amendments have been processed in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQAj. 

The primary purpose of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) is to inform the 
decision makers and the public of potential environmental effects of a proposed project. 

Based on the nature of the project, staff has determined that the proposed Density Bonus 
Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) because: (1) the 
Ordinance is not a discretionary project pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080(a); 
and (2) the Ordinance is a ministerial project pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 
21080(b) and CEQA Guideline Section 15268(a) since the Ordinance simply adopts the density 
bonus standards otherwise required by Government Code Section 65915. Therefore, the 
Density Bonus Ordinance is exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15061(b)(1), 

15061(b)(2) and 15061(b)(3). 

Financial Impact 

The City is responsible for the costs associated with the proposed amendment. The cost is 
insignificant and will not result in additional budget expenditures or revisions. 

Attachments: 

1. Draft Ordinance No. 318-2014 establishing Density Bonus Regulations, Section 
17.30.073 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe). 

2. "The Density Bonus law: Has Its Time Finally Arrived?" by David Blackwell, California 
Real Property Journal, Volume 29, Number 4,2011. 

3. "Maximizing Density Through Affordability," by Jon E. Goetz and Tom Sakai, Kronick 
Moskovitz Tiedemann & Girard, 2012. 

Density Bonus Ordinance City Council May 20. 2014 

75 



ORDINANCE NO. 318 - 2014 

CrrY or 

~ ELL -
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

ESTABLISHING DENSITY BONUS REGULATIONS, 

SECTION 17.30.073 OF THE RIO DEll MUNICIPAL CODE 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DELL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

WHEREAS State Density Bonus Law, Government Code Section 65915, was first enacted in 
1979; and 

WHEREAS in 2005 significant changes were made to the State's Density Bonus Law, including a 
requirement that Cities and Counties adopt local regulations implementing Government Code 
Section 65915; and 

WHEREAS the law requires local governments to provide density bonuses and other incentives 
to developers of affordable housing who commit to providing a certain percentage of dwelling 
units to persons whose income do not exceed specific thresholds; and 

WHEREAS cities also must provide bonuses to certain developers of senior housing 
developments, and in response to certain donations of land and the inclusion of childcare 
centers in some developments; and 

WHEREAS the density bonus may be approved only in conjunction with a development permit 
(Le., tentative map, parcel map, use permit or design review); and 

WHEREAS under State law, a jurisdiction must provide a density bonus, and incentives will be 
granted at the applicant's request based on specific criteria; and 

WHEREAS State Density Bonus law provides that if certain criteria is met then the 
jurisdiction essentially has no grounds for denying density bonuses or use of the density 
bonus parking standards; and 

WHEREAS a jurisdiction has limited grounds for denying incentives and waivers. A 
jurisdiction can deny incentives and waivers if, for example, (1) it violates state or federal 
laws, (2) it is not needed economically (for incentives only), (3) there are adverse health 

Density Bonus Ordinance No. 318·2014 

ATTACHMENT 1 76 



and safety effects, (4) there is an impact on an historic structure, and, for waivers only, (5) 
it does not physically preclude development; and 

WHEREAS the proposed establishment of Density Bonus regulations is consistent with the 
Goals and Polices of the General Plan. Goal A of the Housing Element calls for "A variety of 
housing types to meet the needs of all economic segments of the community including those 
with special housing requirements."; and 

WHEREAS Policy A-5 of the Housing Element encourages density bonuses for developments 
providing housing for low to moderate income households and for qualifying senior housing 
projects. In addition, the Action Plan of the Housing Element calls for the development of a 
Density Bonus Ordinance consistent with State law; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Sections 65350 - 65362 of the California Government Code; and 

WHEREAS the City has reviewed and processed the proposed amendment in conformance with 
Section 17.35.010 of the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS the City finds that based on evidence on file and presented in the staff report that 
the proposed amendment is consistent and compatible with the General Plan and any 
implementation programs that may be affected; and 

WHEREAS the proposed amendment has been processed in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the California Government Code and the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby 
ordain as follows: 

Section 1. 

17.30.073 Density Bonus 

Section 17.30.073(1) Purpose. 

The purpose of this Chapter is to adopt an ordinance that specifies how compliance with 
Government Code Section 65915 ("State Density Bonus Law") will be implemented in an effort 
to encourage the production of affordable housing units in developments proposed within the 
City. 

Section 17.30.073(2) Definitions. 

Unless otherwise specified in this Chapter, the definitions found in State Density Bonus 

Density Bonus Ordinance No. 318-2014 

77 



Law shall apply to the terms contained herein. 

Section 17.30.073(3) Applicability. 

These regulations shall apply to all zoning districts where residential developments of five 
or more dwelling units are proposed and where the applicant seeks and agrees to provide 
low, very-low or moderate income or senior housing units in the threshold amounts 
specified in State Density Bonus Law such that the resulting density is beyond that which is 
permitted by the applicable zoning. These regulations and State Density Bonus Law shall 
apply only to the residential component of a mixed use project and shall not operate to 
increase the allowable density of the nonresidential component of any proposed project. 

Section 17.30.073(4) Application Requirements. 

(a) Any applicant requesting a density bonus, incentive(s), waiver(s) and/or use of density 
bonus parking standards. The proposal shall be submitted prior to or concurrently with 
the filing of the planning application for the housing development and shall be processed 
in conjunction with the underlying application. 

(b) The proposal for a density bonus, incentive(s) and/or waiver(s) pursuant to State Density 
Bonus Law shall include the following information: 

1. Requested density bonus. The specific requested density bonus proposal shall 
include evidence that the project meets the thresholds for State Density Bonus 
Law. The proposal shall also include calculations showing the maximum base 
density, the number/percentage of affordable units and identification of the 
income level at which such units will be restricted, additional market rate units 
resulting from the density bonus allowable under State Density Bonus Law and the 
resulting unit per acre density. The density bonus units shall not be included in 
determining the percentage of base units that qualify a project for a density bonus 
pursuant to State Density Bonus Law. 

2. Requested incentive(s). The request for part icular incentive(s) shall include a pro 
forma or other report evidencing that the requested incentive(s) results in 
identifiable, financially sufficient and actual cost reductions that are necessary to 
make the housing units economically feasible . The report shall be sufficiently 
detailed to allow the City to verify its conclusions. If the City requires the services 
of specialized financial consultants to review and corroborate the analysis, the 
applicant will be responsible for all costs incurred in reviewing the documentation. 

3. Requested Waiver(s). The written proposal shall include an explanation of the waiver(s) 
of development standards requested and why they are necessary to make the 
construction of the project physically possible. Any requested waiver(s) shall not exceed 
the limitations provided by Section 17.30.073(8) and to the extent such limitations are 

Density Bonus Ordinance No. 318-2014 

78 



exceeded will be considered as a request for an incentive pursuant to Section 
17.30.073(6). 

4. Fee. Payment of the fee/deposit in an amount set by resolution of the City Council 
to reimburse the City for staff time spent reviewing and processing the State 
Density Bonus Law application submitted pursuant to these regulations. 

Section 17.30.073(5) Density Bonus. 

(a) A density bonus for a housing development means a density increase over the 
otherwise maximum allowable residential density under the applicable zoning and land 
use designation on the date the application is deemed complete. The amount of the 
allowable density bonus shall be calculated as provided in State Density Bonus Law. The 
applicant may select from only one of the income categories identified in State Density 
Bonus Law and may not combine density bonuses from different income categories to 
achieve a larger density bonus. 

(b) The body with approval authority for the planning approval sought will approve, deny 
or modify the request for a density bonus, incentive, waiver or use of density bonus 
parking standards in accordance with State Density Bonus Law and these regulations. 
Additionally, nothing herein prevents the City from granting a greater density bonus and 
additional incentives or waivers than that provided for herein, or from providing a lesser 
density bonus and fewer incentives and waivers than that provided for herein, when the 
housing development does not meet the minimum thresholds. 

Section 17.30.073(6) Incentives 

(a) The number of incentives granted shall be based upon the number the applicant is entitled 
to pursuant to State Density Bonus Law. 

(b) An incentive includes a reduction in site development standards or a modification of 
zoning code requirements or architectural requirements that result in identifiable, 
financially sufficient and actual cost reductions. An incentive may be the approval of 
mixed use zoning (e.g. commercial) in conjunction with a housing project if the mixed use 
will reduce the cost of the housing development and is compatible with the housing 
project. An incentive may, but need not be, the provision of a direct financial incentive, 
such as the waiver of fees. 

(c) A requested incentive may be denied only for those reasons provided in State Density 
Bonus Law. Denial of an incentive is a separate and distinct act from a decision to deny or 
approve the entirety of the project. 

Density Bonus Ordinance No. 318-2014 

79 



Section 17.30.073(7) Discretionary Approval Authority Retained. 

The granting of a density bonus or incentive(s) shall not be interpreted in and of itself to 
require a general plan amendment, zoning change or other discretionary approval. If an 
incentive would otherwise trigger one of these approvals, when it is granted as an 
incentive, no general plan amendment, zoning change or other discretionary approval is 
required. However, if the base project without the incentive requires a general plan 
amendment, zoning change or other discretionary approval, the City retains discretion to 
make or not make the required findings for approval of the base project. 

Section 17.30.073(8) Waivers. 

A waiver is a modification to a development standard such that construction at the 
increased density would be physically possible. Development standards, include, but 
are not limited to, a height limitation, a setback requirement, minimum floor areas, an 
onsite open space requirement, or a parking ratio that applies to a residential development. 
An applicant may request a waiver of any development standard to make the project 
physically possible to construct at the increased density. To be entitled to the requested 
waiver, the applicant must show that without the waiver, the project would be physically 
impossible to construct. There is no limit on the number of waivers. 

Section 17.30.073(9) Affordable Housing Agreement 

Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall enter into an Affordable Housing 
Agreement with the City to the satisfaction of the City Attorney guaranteeing the 
afford ability of the rental or ownership units for a minimum of thirty (30) years, 
identifying the type, size and location of each affordable unit and containing requirements 
for administration, reporting and monitoring. Such Affordable Housing Agreement shall be 
recorded in the Humboldt County Recorder's Office. 

Section 17.30.073(10) Design and Quality. 

(a) Affordable units must be constructed concurrently with market-rate units and shall be 
integrated into the project. Affordable units shall be of equal design and quality as the market 
rate unit. Exteriors and interiors, including architecture, elevations, floor plans, interior finishes 
and amenities of the affordable units shall be similar to the market rate units. The number of 
bedrooms in the affordable units shall be consistent with the mix of market rate units. This 
section may be waived or modified on a case by case basis for affordable housing units 
developed for special groups, including housing for special needs or seniors. 

(b) Parking standards may be modified as allowable under the State Density Bonus law and 
anything beyond those standards shall be considered a request for an incentive. 

Density Bonus Ordinance No. 318-2014 

80 



Section 2. Severability 

If any provision of the ordinance is invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected and shall continue in full force and effect. 

Section 3. Umitation of Actions 

Any action to challenge the validity or legality of any provision of this ordinance on any grounds 
shall be brought by court action commenced within ninety (90) days of the date of adoption of 
this ordinance. 

Section 4. Effective Date 

This ordinance becomes effective thirty (30) days after the date of its approval and adoption . 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the forgoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Rio Dell on May 20, 2014 and furthermore the forgoing Ordinance 
was passed, approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio 
Dell, held on the June 3, 2014 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 
ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above 
and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 318-2014 which was passed, 
approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell, held on 
the June 3, 2014. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

Density Bonus Ordinance No. 318-2014 

81 



The Density Bonus Law: Has Its Time Finally Arrived? 

©20 II All Righu lWuv,d. 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The connuence of:1 declining singlc:-fumily market and :l 

growing cmphasis on "smart growth" inAII projeccs h1.S created 

an increased demand for urb:m muhif.tmily dewlopment. 1 

These projects. parricularly those that include affordable housing 
units. face considcr.1ble financial and political constrJinrs. To 

make: such projecu fc:asible, some CaJifornia dt:Vdopers rely 
on California's Density Bonus law.! In general, this stature 
allows devdopt:rs whose housing development=' propouls Ol1;:e[ 

certain mn:sholds of affordabiliC)' [0 receive density bonuses/' 
incentives, and development waivers from the local agency. 

The D.:nsiry Bonu.'i I.aw is not wdl-org:miud. ho\\"t:\'cr, 
and irs application by cities :md counties kollectivdy "chit:s") 
varies considef3.bly throughout the s[a(e. A.5 noted during che 

most n:cent anempt (0 dc:an up mc 5(3[ute in 2008: 

Due: [0 the: :5ubscanriai changt:s me law hJ.1 undergone 

O\'cr the years, it is confusing to interprtt and is the 

subject of numerous deb:ncs as to both it'i intent and 
iu XlU3t n"quin:mems. DL''\'dopers and cilio frequmdy 

dash o\'er what the law dictatC!\, "ith dC\'doper5 incn."3S

ingly demanding cona:s.sions and \I,';;ah'!:n that citks do 

nO[ fed the)' should ha ... ·( to grant under the Ia ....... '; 

Unforrunacdy, there is linle guidancc from the courts. 

:IS only a Iundful of published appdla« court decisions h."" 
c.'clmin«."d tilt: Ot.-nsity Bonus law since its ;;adoption in 1979. In 

parricubr. the mum lu,~ not ~1!1 ;tddn:ssed in ~n}' dt:tai.l hO"' 

much discn:rion 3 dty rrtlins to condition or tlnl) a proposed 

projt"a due otherwise qualifies under the Den.'iit)' Bonus 

uw. As "'1m any cxrrcisc of police pG\\tt. local dn-elopmcnr 
n=quin:mcnts cutnut be irnpused in a manner mac con8k"tS \\ith 
san:: SUDl(cs. Hm"c\l:T. the ~ppliarion of dUs limitlrion ro 

spo::i6c proj<Cts is olttn dispurcd. 
.-\ 6:v.- ~. cna. ho"",,',,,. Iu," p",,-id<d Iimif«l insij;h. 

inm du: oppIication of .he lXmil}' &nw Uw rn promDfe 
<k>-dopmGl< and me co<T01"'nding limiruio .. imp<h<1l uran 
cities. Mosl =r!y. rho murt in If" BIlmn" Ory "f Bm:tU;' 
("If"..tlma IT'/' proric!<d ",me guWD"" mn=ning du: >rope 
of me stan= nld undm.oor«l rho mum' growing .duama: ro 
~ ciD<s' ~'ro u'"' do< ~. Bonus 1=' roprotnor.< 
Ihc <b-dapmemr of aIlimbbl. boURn<: ullin. H ................ en rht 
lrdbar.r II doruioa Icn-c. 'l13<Sliotu ~ 

Thefl=5tyBcmm u...Ju,.du:~ m ..... -ide&.dorcn 
of nmImf=t1: "-ing proi= ~ 8a=£< cltmn,g 
"'" cmjjI!cmcm f'l'OO='L n.. ... b~ of rhc ...,... =iii "'" 
~· .. m~"",,_..u...ndes~(.md 
~~ ."",. ~ m r-i<icms. JadcooI. nun: cixici 
CJJ!;iI:;ir "" mI>=m dimns< .. tbc stmm: or _ =aiD ..rom 

13 

what it accuaJly rt.-quires a city to do. This ankle explores some 

of moe prnctical and political. n.'3!ities, while positing mat rhe 

Density Bonus Law is an ofren-neglcx:tcd device: ch3t developers 

should consider wing mort: In:qucndy in this challenging real estate 
m31ket. 

II. BACKGROUND 

The Density Bonus Law is one of se\'eral California 

stlCutes designed to implement "an important st3.tc policy to 

promote rhe construction aflaw-income housing and [0 rcmm'c 

impediments to me s3me."7 As 5ummariud in W&I/ml'r fl. the 
Dt:nsity Bonus uw "is 3. powerful 1001 for coabling d~c1opers 

[0 include \o'ery low. low, and moderate-income housing units in 

their nt.'W dcvclopments."s The purpose of the Density Bonus 

Law is [0 encourage ciriL'S to of'Frr bonuses and incenri,·C!S 10 
housing de\'e1opecs mat will "conrribute significancly [0 the 
economic feasibility uf lower income housing in propow 
housingde'o·clopmcnrs."I) As rt."Cognized by California coun.~. "the 
Density Bonus l.a\\' <ft."\\'3cdls] a de\'e1oper who agrees to build ~ 

crmin percentage of low-income howing with the opportunity 

to build more n:sic.lmas than would otherwise be pennittcd by 
the ;;applicable local ct.-gui.:uions.· .. )O By incenti"izing d,,-",·dopcrs. 
the Density Bonus Law promutcs the construction of housing 
ror sc-niOB and lou.·~ income families. I) 

Whm du: L:gisIalUr< adopted me Do:ruity Bonus I."", i. 
d.:d.tml rha. a housing .horug.: crisis must b., addr=cd and rhat 
du: Sure should rely on local gt»-emmc:na .0 p",,-ide rho """"""". 
incn:a><d housing "ad; .p",,"idcd. mar such 1"",1 di=ion and 
f'O'\~ nor be c:xnciscd in a manna [0 fiustr.ne me pwposcs of 
rhis =:11 111< aurhor of a "'~ 2002 ammdrnnu [D me 
sarute noted dut"roo nunylocal g'O''mlmc.nrs ha\'t undcn:ur [me 
Do:ns;.y Bonus Uwl by bycring drnsi.y honus and .comel unit 
pmj«rs u-im un""""",,,,,}' and pro=lur..l obsacks.·U Aanrding 
m me aurhor and 5pO""'" of me 2002 3rl1c:NImrn. bill. iGI""1""" 
'"'' m simplil}' du: pro=< IOrobaWngderuil}' honlHeS -m order 
ro i"""",,, c..Iifutnii. suw'!' of aIlOn!:obk housing."14 

l1w: ~. Bonus '= appIio to horh p:nd I. ... 
and dun", cities. t; It: rcquin:> ciria m ~I" an atW:w>o.: 
rhar ,...,allo ....... Iocd romplw..r .. ith <he suwrr "ill be: 
impIm.mml. rhotrgh failure m ..lop< ... ch an oRlUuna: docs 
nnr n:\i"", du: ~. hum ~ v.ith <he b .. ·. '. 

IlL DENSrn- BONUS lAW MEOLOOCS 

! . .o.~ lB.".,; y"",fm/tis 

A bo:~ proijoa """" 111<.. = <JCJUi:n oiI=tibaild< 
.If ,.,.~ i:m or&z '" ~. dUr " dctui>y bc.n_ A, 

ATTACHMENT 2 82 



( 

explained in \Vol'm~T II: 

Section 6;91; mandates that local gon:rlln1cnu pro4 
vide: a density bonus when a dcvdopcr agrees to 
constfllct any of the following: (J) 10 percent of 
rhe total units within the: project for lower incomel7 

households; (2) 5 pcn:cm of total units for \'cry low 
income l8 households; (3) a senior citil.cn housing 
dt:Vc:lopmenc or mobilehornc: park restricted to older 
persons, each as defined by SCp3ratc: statute:; or (4) JO 
percent of units in a common interest devdopment for 
moderate-income l? families or pcrsons.20 

Sectinn (,591 S(h)(J) of the Density Room; Law prO\· idc.~ 

that requests for;} densit}" bonus and incenth'es21 mUlt lk 
gramed "when an applicant for a housing dC\'c!opment seeks and 
agrees to construct 3 housing dC\'e!opment" that mect'i one or 
more of the statuce's duc:sholds. Although a city may evcncuallr 
deny a request for an il1((Illh'~ if c~rt3.in limited findings arc: 
made,ll the Density Bonus Law doc:s not identif)' anr findings 
,hat would allow a ciry to de:n)' a d~nsiry bonus r~ueS[. 

Some have argul-d that the "seeks and agrees" phrase in the 
Densiry Bonus law limits its application to housingdl>vdopments 
that arc not otherwise required to provide affordable units under 
an indwionary ~oning ordinance. Indc.-ed. rhis issue W:1S the 
subjct( or a 2005 debate in the legislature concerning me intent 

of5B ISIS and 58 435. which were proposod amendments '0 
rhe Density Bonus l.3w.2;\ If that inrerpn:l:ltion were followed. 

however. citio. could titw;].n the Deruity Bonus law by imposing 
inclwionary zoning requirements at or abO\-r the qualifying 
thresholds in me Densil)' Bonw uw. merrby rrcn~nring anr 
projCl""l from qua.lil}ing for a density bonus. 

Despiu: these uncenaindes with the Density Bonus 1.3\\', it 
is dClr that citio cannot impose thresholds higher dun those.: 
plU\'iJcd under the Demit)· Bonw law for.2 project to qual if),' for 

a demi,y bonus. In Frinrds of Uf.""" Iltllq r. Of] ofl'.JrJI·jlk.~· 
[he cin'"s dcnsin" bonus ordinance contained mrc:shold:i simit~r 
to du~ .set fO~h in an Clrlicr \'ttSion of the Density Bonus 
U\\ .. "'HO\\e\"cr. ono: .he l...cgi~bnI~ :amaaded So...,ion 65915 
{to impos.e l(Jw~r thresholds}. state .... w pnxmptrd incoruhn:nc 
pfU\isions in these munici(U1 ordifW\CCS."l5 Thro:fo~~ 2S 3. 

numr of pr.tctia. appIiClnlS "'ould comp.>'" ;my loci dcru.i~· 
bonus Ihmlwlds m dw", = funh in S«tion 65915(b) ro 
ensun: due the ci~' is applying me rorrca figu~. 

2. Dnuiry B.m" Gz!nJ"zioN 

000< • proj<cr mcrt< one or mr minimum dll",holds. ~ 
the >iu: of the dmSi~' bonus is gm-emed by do. RUmba of 
3fiOnhbk unlr. the project "iD p""idc. "In i", >p<rifi<:.. 
"""~ ... 6WI5 <SUhlilbo a po"!';,...,; .... .ak in "tum du 
dcmi'Y boou. ~ .cibbk to 2n appIian, rna.:...:. 
Iu.od .... .be n= of du appIicarus offer of bdow.. IIWIo:r 
at<: ~~!7 &y !iDling the sizr of the dmSi'Y b.mm '" du 
=mml>er dt:~ units off ..... by me derdopcr. me smut< 
.... _ &< • ...Itmwy p~.!'''''''' of ",orr ~lc howit>£ 
-11x 1I""ll"".!."e bd ofh<ncfus IDr dar<r .Iff~ is the 
ond"';"" by...tum ~ caric.r .&.-dog>cn oro bmld 
u--inoom< ,,~-J!O 

.... ~ ~'" ~,,_ cf \@"" of....., 

14 

units for modcracc·jncome household!i receivc a 5% density 
bonus, with every additional percentage;: poim increase in 
applicable uniu abovc the minimum (up to 40%) receiving 
a 1% increase in the density bonus, up to 3 maximum 35% 
bonus.29 DC\'e!opcrs agreeing to construct 3 minimum of 10% 
of units for low-income: households are eligible for a 20% 
density bonus, and the multiplier for each additional incre:ase 
in uniu; above [he minimum amount (up [0 20%) is 1.5% .30 A 

simil:1r scal~ applies to construction of vcr"}' low-income units. 
except the: minimum 20% densiry bonus kicks in when only 5% 
of units arc reserved for this classification, and the multiplier for 
each additional percent increase in units abm'e me minimum 
amount (up [0 11%) is 2.5%.31 Finally. for a senior housing 

developmenc or age-restricted mobilehome park. the density 
bonus is 20% of the number of senior housing units}2 

The tocal number of units for the purpose of calculating 
the percentages dc:scribro abO\'e does not includc unics added 
by a densicy bonus awarded under the: Dcnsicy Bonus Law or 
any local law granting a grca[e:r density bonus}j If permitted 

by 1001 ordinance, noching prohibits cities from granting a 
densiry bonus greater than what is described in the Density 
Bonus Law.34 

B. Inccnth-el and Concessions 

I. Difi'1rt{ 

AppliClDCS for demit}" bonuses ma}' also request specific 
incentives or concessions from cities}5 Thus. "when an 

applicant seeks a densit}" bonus for;). housing dC\'c!opment mat 
includes the required ptrccncge of 3ff"ordabh: housing. sa:rinn 
65915 rrquirn d13t the city not only gnnt th~ density bonw. 
but pnl\ide addirional incenth'cs or concessions where nt."'-"tIed 
based on the perce-nuge of low income htlusing unirs."J(i A 
"concession or in~ti\'C" (togL-mcr. "incentn'c" as the: S'ClrutC' 
doo; not distinguish me tcnns) indudcs: 

• ~ rcductiun in ~ilC' In''dopmcOl sunwnls. or a modi · 
fienion of zoning code or an:hitectUi.J1 design rcqui~ . 
ments, including: reducrioru in othC'rwisc- m.mduaf 

oetbock. "Juan: ~ and puking r:llio "'Iuu.,· 
menlS, n:sulring in idenriG.bt.. l1nancUlly ",fficicnt, 
3nd actual COSt n:dUcDof15:: 

• apptU\".J.I of mixed-Woe lOning in conjunaion "m thr 
housing pro~cr if me nonn:sidrnWl bnd """ .. ,..,Jd 
I'«lu« "'" am of the housing ck>'dopmro< .00 _ 
COI1>p.>Iil>lr ",ill. the hou-ing projca .00 me suTTOWld
iog area; 

• od= r'!;Ubto,}, inc.rnm ... proposod by ,h< ~ 
or <i ... dw """" in id.,ujiUbk, I1nmci.ill. .uffi6att. 
and ~ am rod",: .. "",}, -

The lcpiWn,< ~ ind'>CI.CS dw the -~ 
6umcial1y ~ 2lliI '""""" 0>lIl m!ucDo •• ' tttt '" _ 

u.a:am", dd6amiom .. ,.. ~ '" pmua lib, .&.~ 
Ilium a dlf. -=pc ... !for.:.: a &.<:1opcr to =qo ~ 
",O=in:L 5!l1be i=m <if m., Dm.iIr lIomm t..... .. "" """""" 
dun ~o offer"" ",. me.m: ~~ ,p~- ltD 

tbr &v ! i _of.ali'anB& """""r.""d. ~ u:lJ.,.. me 
&.~ 01 '; .IjlI"'" odseNioe, -"1o.c:Ilir.f llh2Il""".clffcr .. 

83 



densicy bonus or any orher incenrive thar would undermine rhe 
inrent or rhe Density Bonus Law}? 

The "incentive" definition does not limit or require 
rhe provision of direct financial incentives by a city.40 Some 
commentators believe char an incenri\,-e also includes design acing 
the de,,·e!opment as "by right." and exemptions from any local 
ordinances that would indirectly increase rhe cosr of the housing 
unirs (0 be developc:d.41 

2. Calculatiolls 

As with density bonus calculations. the number of incentives 
[0 which a developer is entitled depends upon the percentage of 
very low. low. or moder.lCe·income units provided (no incentive 
is prO\'ided for rhe provision of non· income restricted senior 
units)_ The developer must receive me following number of 
incenrives: 

• One inccmive for projects rhar include af k-asr 10% of 
the total units for low~income. ;1r least 5% for very 1m,,' 
inL:omc, or at It:3st 10% for moderate-income house
holds.4: 

li.vo incc:nrivCl for prnjt:c t!l (hat include at It:asr 20% 
of rhe total units for low-income. at least 10% for very 
(ow income. or at lcast 10% for motkrate-income 
household,. 

• l1u\:e incentivcs for pmjC'Ct..\ thar i.nclude at lean }O% 
of rhe rot.ll unilS for low·incomc:. at last 15% for very 
low income, or at least 30% for mooet3te· income 
households.'" 

In addition. an appliC:lnr may retlu(Sr dlat rhe city not 
rc:tluin: a vehicular ~rking nM for a density bonus prujeL1: lh:n 
exceeds the followin~ lomite space fOr 0-1 bc .. droom; 2 onsi(e 
spaces for 1·3 broruoms; and 1.5 onsite spacc:s for four or more 
bedrooms.. 4-l An app1icant also may reqUc:sf parking incenrin:s 
bq1md thoSt: cxpr~ly .ser forth in the Density Bonus l...aw:H 

3. Rrqu;m/ FtnJinf.' for DoUa/ of an IlIrmary RrqUe>l 

A ci~· must cstlblish loed procedures, .pproved by the ci~· 
council. for compl~;ng "ith inomrh·c pl'O\i.o.ions of thz:- Oc:ruitr 
Bonus 1."".6 E,,,,, ifloal procedur<S.rc not cstlblishcd. • ci~· 
mUit gt;:lnt the inanciw n:qucsto.:l by the applan{ un1ess rhe 
ci~· nukes a ,rnmn finding. b.scd upon ..m...n[iaI <vidence..
dut me i~ti\""C 

• is nut r:quirnl in ordtt (t) pnniJc fin affurd.Wlc huu...~ 
inga»n; 

• ,,,,u\d 1m.., 2 ->p<rific ad,,,,,,, impa<T ••• upon public 
hc:.Jth :md safety or the ph~";c;d ,,"ironmmr tlLl[ 

anno[ be fc.sihly mi~ "itlbcJln rmd.:ring the 
d.,.-dopmm[ urullOrc!.ble '0 ...... - ."d moder.",
in"""" hoasdJold,; .,.. 

• 'U'OU!d be ~'IO KZf.c or fa!.c:t1l boa:. u 
·Thc>U!llt< docs no, prvrid<: pMB""," "" bmra.city ~ 

cIemonm= duI Ih< iDocmn·, io D<I[ mrpmd m order '", 
l""'idciDr~~....a AMG!~mlhc 

D~·Banasu...~wd~'-'Imcr!~ 
...tmar..:. """ ~ duI ti!m """,iii"" .....M ~~.mcs ... 

15 

prepare separate project feasibility analyses in order ro refine an 
incenrive request,49 Even chough there is no gener.ally accepted 
methodology [0 dare. one paten rial approach il to subtracr the 
mandated lower sales price for rhe affordable unir from the 
actual cost to build the unit. and rhen to compare char developer 
COSt to the financial benefir created by rhe incentive. local 
atrempts [0 restrict rhe de\-e!oper's profit margin by denying an 
incentive request under the first criterion. however. are suspeCt 
and may be considered hostile to the Density Bonus Law.50 

The second finding expressly borrows the definition of a 
·specific adverse impact" from che Houling AccounQbility Act. 51 

specifically, "a significant. quantifiable. direct. and unavoidable 
impacc. based on objective. identified written public healch or 
safety srandards. policies. or conditions as mt.·y existed on the date 
me application was deemed complete.";2 This finding is narrower 
than the loal st3ndanls used to deny we permir applications. 
whidl ofren im·oke broader "general welfare" considerations. 
"MoreO\·er. mere '[i1nconsistenc), wirh dle zoning ordinJ.nce or 
generJI plan land use desib'1lation shall nO[ cunstirute a specific. 
adverse impact upon rhe public hC'3lrh or S:l:rery ... ·;, 

Th. third finding is sdf-e.'planotory. al[hough as 
discussed below,54 issues may arise if .. cil)' atlempts to rely 
on ocher develupmenr-rdated statutes such as the California 
Environmental Quality Act, the Subdivision Map Acr. or 
other provisions of the Planning and Zoning Law to provide 
justificarion for denying an incentive. 

To add some teeth to a cil)°$ applicltion of rode findings. 
rhe Densil)" Bonus l.aw mandaces that a coun award the 
successful plaintiff rea50nable attumey's fees ilnd COstS if a 
city refused ro grant a requeued inccnrh'Z:- and lhe coun larer 
dct"cnnines rna{ (he refusal lacks rhe requisite wrinen findings 
and ('\idrnce.;; 

C. DEVELOPMENT STANDARD WAIVERS 

In :lddirion to. and sqJar.uc: from~ n:qucsts fOr inccnrh-es. 
;1 densit)' bonus applicanc nuy ""Iuesr :iii ",,~hn or reduction of 
d<vdopmcnt sandmls [b.u would 1m" the dIixt of phpk:ally 
prc:duding (he rorunuaion of me projccr: at me densiries or \\im 
the incon[j,..,. pcnnincd und« the starun:.56 "()",-dopm<n[ 
mod.m)"" mons .:l site or ronsrruaion condition. induding. 
\\irhout limi~rion. 10CJl hright. semm.... floor are3 DnO. 
on"", open spacr. 2nd patling =:a wio "'Iuimn<nrs Wt 
... ould om"""iSr: .pply to m.irlcnti:al &1~o" unrkr local 
ordiruno:s. gm=l plan ckrncn ... ~c pLms. clum:n. or 
omer loa! oondition. low. policy. roGIwirm. or "'pluion:'-

A ""'l= litr 2 &1-dopmr:m ..:mrbnl v...m:.- neither 
raIuoes nor ~ me number oi incmm"CS to o.Jtt'im me 
d.....dopcr is ocfImri>r, entitled.;' Fmth~ <il= is 1>0 limit 
on Ihc number of wain:n rlw 11U!. be u...od. 

As "ith inor:nri ...... ~ 2 city mipt m 2 ~ 
to ~ :1 "'l"=r:d ~mmT st1l:I&nl !nit .... it amIOI 

IDm: Ihc d..-dopcr m 00 sa. tm.e..L a citf. n:Iiw! .... v.::rh'r 

.... """"'" cl=Iorment ~ ""'" be ""I'f......r by """ ar 
"""'" ImrIiup ~ '" tho..: ....uhlh Ifm ~ ~ ""'l"""' 
far "" il>oc:ruh .... ;t ,\pin. ;[ ~ """'" ~ m.:..IIlCb ~ 
.. ,.."""~itmtN~tIIx~"",~'1fm;1l>IiI 
"""'" of ~ .... 

!~.a"mif.hc~o&.c."",,~ .. """"""" 
eM a ~ ......tm!I ~ • <My is pmb'ihiWI Jiiru,m, 

84 



applying a developmenc standard char would h:lvC the effect 
of physically precluding the construction of the project at the 
densitics or with che incentives permitted under the Density 
Bonus Law.61 This statutor}' restriction on 3. city's planning and 
zoning powers (;lises imporr:mc questions about what a dey can 
:md Clnnot do when considering a project char qualifies for a 
dc:nsity bonus. 

IV. RELATIONSHIP TO THE HOUSING 
ACCOUNTABILITY ACT 

Concexc for the inh:rpiay between the sr:lte mandates 
under rhe Denshy Bonus Law and local government discretion 
is afforded by the Housing Account:lbi1iry Act for guidance,6:! 
which similarly promotes the dC\'e!opmenr of affordable housing 

(and housing g<nerally). 
The HousingAccountability Ace implements the state polk}' 

"chat a local gO\'crnment not reject or make infeasible housing 
dc\'c:!opmencs" that contribute to meering the state's housing 
need "wirhout a thorough analysis of the economic. social and 

environmental effects of the action and without complying with 
~uhdi\'i.'iinn (d),"63 COUrts ha\'c clarified thar suhdi\'isinn (d) of 

the Hawing Accounr:ability Act imposes nrict limiQtians on 
:1 city's ability [0 disappro\'e or canditionallr approve ccrrain 
I(lw~ income housing projectS. while subdivision (i) applkos lU 

howing dt:\'e!opmenr projects generallr,64 Borh subdivisions 
apply to affordable housing devdopm<nts. 

Under subdi\'ision (d) . a cit)' cannot disapprove or 
conditionally approve an atTordable: housing projCCt in a manner 
that renders it inf~JSibk (including through the lllr of dcsign 
rt.."\'iew standards) unless it makes one of fhoe \\Tittcn findinbJS 
based on substantial C\'iden, c: in the r«ord.G; One: of thoS(' 

findings is thn me dC\'e!opmenr project would Ba\'e a "~pc:cific. 
ad\'crse impal"t upon rhe public hc:-alth or s.atcry," whic..:h is 
similar to the finding 3\"3.ilablc for den}ing an incenrive requl:St 
under me Density Bonus uw, although the: latter includes 
considcr.arion of imp.acts to (he "phy~ictl em'ironment."66 An 
afTordable housing pmjea. under ~ubdh'ision (d). hO\\·L"\'C'r. 

diffe" ,lightly from a proj<a m.lt nuy qualitY for a density 
bonus b«:Iwc the: funner requires dut u lost 20% of the: units 
be: sold or rmca.l to ·Io\\"er~income h~hoJds" or I fJO'!o of 
the unitS be sold or rcnt'rd. to -modl$lk·incomc houscholds."6-
TherdOrc. a projca dut may quali~' for a dcruit}· bonus by 
prO\;rung only 1000h ofi" units fur ......... -inrome hoU<Cbolds68 

auy not qualif)' (or the pnm.:tioru under .ubdni5ion (d) of th< 
Hou';ng ."'=uncWiJi~' An. 

Subdms;on {j), .ma is tlO( limil'<ll tD aflimi,bk bowing 
proj= bur "I'pUo tD bowing dc>-dopmmr Jl"li«n gencrally. 
p""idcs dur ~' the P"'J'Oscd dc>-dopmcnr pmjca complies "ith 
>ppIiobk pUnning and ....uq; =ndmk and aimU (induding 
cL:.;gn .... i= ~, 11m "'" in dIta '" the tim< of proio::t 
~ mmplcrion. ~ ~. """"" cIi"'l'P""'" OT mnd~' 
...-" the pmjoa ,.;m ~ ........ d.moiIr .,.,..,. if nu!<G .. rimn 
Iindmp ~ by scl:>.amia'I ",idmcr in the m:on! 11m the 
~.....,;ca -uuu\d Mt: a ~,.musc ~ on the 
pablic bc:Mt or uIi:t:. >Jill! <tlut """" ;, "D :b& ~ .,. 
~ this Ii. iii it;'m..., JlIoaI"lP"-To~ is....w.r '" thc 
o.mayBonml='._IDrdeD!<q"",~mor_"'" 
a~v.:m..:ror,.m,moodf~~ 

Soaioa> 65"S\). ~ of am ~ '\"""~.r "" 00. 

16 

r 
imposes m:mdacory conditions limiting cities' discretion CO deny 
the permit. and "does so by setting forth the Ollly wnditions 
under which an applic:aion may be disappro\'ed."71 In addition. 
the Act places the burden of proof on cities if ics project 
disapproval or conditional appraval is chaJlenged in court,n 

V. CITY DISCRETION TO TAKE ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE DENSITY 
BONUS LAW 

Keeping the abm'c ffilmewark in mind and undersranding 
the interplay bern'eeo the wriaus rcquin:mencs will help [0 

understand the 20 II appellate decision in Wollma fl, 
Wolin/a fl continued the trend begun by Frimds of LAgoon 

I"tflry and lVallma I in 2007 and 2009. respectively. in which 
the courts deferred [0 :l city's decisions promoting the supply of 
affordable housing.73 The key facts in If'ollm" II involved ,he 
City of Berkeley's ("City") appro\'al of:l usc permit to construCt 
a five~story. mixed~use building with 98 n:sidential units (74 
base units plus 24 bonus unies), including 15 :lffordable units. 

commercial space. and p:uking. In :lddition to a 20.3% density 
bonus. the City granted the dt."\'elapcrs requescs far development 
stlOdard \\':livers ;applicable to building height. numlxr of 
stories, and setbacks. Project opponent \Vallmer sued. but the 
trial court denied his pc;:cidon for writ of administrative: mandate 
and entered judgment in favor of rhe Cit}: 

On appeal . Wollmer r.aiscd thftt demity bonu., related 
arguments (in addition to unsuccc.5Sfu) CEQA~based ,uguments): 

" (I) condirion 68 of the use pennit allowed the D ..... <lope" to 
ra=eh'e Section 8 subsidies for densi[y~bonus-qu.alif}'ing units, 
thereby L'Xcceding the maximum "atTord.Wle rcot' established in 
Health and Safer>, COOe s",:rion 50053; (l) the al).'s appro...! of 
amenities should not ha\'( been considered when deciding what 
~C1ndanls should be ".i\1~d to accumm<Kbte me pm;ccr: and (3) 

th< at}· improperly alculated the projects density bonus:74 

The coun of appeal «i=ed all thm: arguments. 
\X'ollmer first argued rfut me [Dcl amount of rent 

the dC\'doper would n::cci\~ from "cry 10\10' inl'Omc tcnmrs 
qualifying fur S<ction 8 subsidi", would ae«d me ·:Ufurtbble 
rent" 3110wrd under me Dmsiry Bonus ~, ba:aWtC' me 

addirlorul fcden! subsidies "vutd acccd w scnutory anounf. 
In dercrmining me mrricsof dtu~enL rhr munronduded: 

·Under this rea50ning. the dcnsilj' bonus a.,.. "'" the rncd ""'t 
a housing prmida an recril'r.frmD 411)' $.H;r~ m thr .m.m-c 
.amount, ,,-bcrha dw r.oIt comes hom cI..m:a (.cna0( PJYIIldK or 

a combinlnon of fC'lWtt mnrrihuDoru 2nd :a ScaioD S subsi.dl: 
This is nor the 1 .. ,,-:>; The QJIlJt O>tlunua!. -:Ufunbh!c "';i 
",;dUn tho meaning of OlD" damz;.' Doll ... l.rw i> ~ 
",ith the rent that " r.<mru: pzJ'" "'" ...;m thc ..,~o. 
....a,..d b)' the: '-'>ing plOridct. ..• " .....!d be "on~ 
ro equat< the DOrion <Ii ~ ofa ~ "", i "i:tb <Iw 
of ><tOng ""d cappin; II>< &:.dorcr' ~-"6 fizWlr. 
imposing ·CDSI' on " dc.do,p<r ~ ... bmJd ~ 
uniG i> hostile rD II>< kmcr -' 'if"W <Ii d.c donmy Ibtmtu 
bG:~ 

Xcu. WoIlm« ~ aihm 1bJ.' :!1""""'s :a &.r:II"fI"""" 
...".\ard ....;,u. II>< ~' ,idm:ai !!he ~ Bemus ...... 
b=nocUU 2<gr.mud "'~..,.".;" 1I""'i-"",entti ... 
~an i=:ric>r~.!. .. <> i} ;o4au.=d~ 
ailing.. Tho ~ """"" opin .~ aIlm ~. 

85 



holding th,lt "nothing in the srntute requires the applicant (0 

strip the project of amenicies .... Standards may be "";lived 
that physically preclude construction of a housing dt:vdopmC!oc 
meeting the rc:quiremencs for a dcnsiq" bonus. period."i 8 The: 
court's reasoning suggests that a d[)' may not micromanage the 
design of a project. If rhe project meets the requirc:mencs of the 
Densiey Bonus law, che ciey must grant development standard 
\\";liver rrqul:Scs [Q ensure the project ;IS designed is not physically 
prc\Oentcd from being dc\'doped. Quodng the prohibition 
contained in section 6j915(d)(I), the tfol/",a II court "-arned. 
:15 it did in W"ollmtr I: "Had the City f3i1ed to grant the 
waiver and varianct:s, such 3etia" would have: had 'che effect 
of physically precluding rhe construction of a dc\'e!opment' 
meeting the: criteriJ. of the density bonus I3w,", 9 

Third, Wollmer argued that the City's Cllculadon of the: 
densi[}' bonus was improper becausc the City rclied on the 
densities sc:t forth in its loning ordinance instead of its sc:nc:ral 
plan, In rt'jccting \X'ollmer's third argument, the court explained 
that the City does not apply the: general plan densit), standards 
to spt."Cific parcels , and found th3t the City prupt!rly calculatt'd 
rhc dens it)' bonus bascd on the more specific provisions of its 
zoning code:,HO 

The \'(/01/"," II decision reaffirms cities' abili[)' to apply 

broadly the Density Bonw L..:tw [U promote its goals thmugh 
the award of density bonuses and incentives, and by providing 
flexibility in gr.mting dc:vdopment standard \\"3ivers. 

VI. LIMITS ON ABILITYTO CONDITION OR DENY A 
QUALIFIED HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

Wh;u happens. thuugh. if a city \I."3nts to Jmy a density 
bonus project or impose conditions that make the projl"Ct 
infeasible? ru cxpl3ine:d above.HI rhe Howing Accountability 
At.'"t exprd.sly pru\ides [h,u a dty rna}' nor Clke such aClion 

agairut 3. qualified affordable housing pm;ca: unless one of 
Wt sUlUte'S limited findings can be maue:. and similarly. the: 
Density Bonus uw probibiu a ci~' from den)ing a mjucst for 
:m jnatuh~ or dC'\1!lopmt=nt standard waiver on grounds nor 
identified in [hat stJru[r_ 

ThCl'C' is (ess urt::lincy. hOWr\'CT. :about whether a dry em 
gran[ .he dcruity bonus. and inCt"ntil"C :lntl \\.i\"er rrquCSIS. then 

deny mc proj«t on other grounds.. The Deru.i~· Bonus law 
pJO\idcs dut if ;a gw:ncnl plan amcndmC71t. maing ammdmmt. 
or oma disc:tmoJUI)' ~fO\"3I would not omtn\"Uc be rtquired 
fur a I""P"sai proj= "1'1'''''.,) of. dcnsil}' bonus or inc.c11ln", 
does not tc'GWrr such ;apprm"2k S~ For c:umpte. CTcn if 2J1 

"1'1''''''''' datsilY ronus nW:.:s .he proj<1:is densil}' acecd ... ru, 
... ~ OIh«ullc odJo,."" under <he :applicable ~ pbn bod 
US< ~on m<l zoning duma. rbc .pplicm' would not be 
roquiM! ro "'* an><n<lmrnrs of m."., Ioc:d regublions. 
~ ~. be >inwions. ~. ,,1.= • projca rna,' 

"""ahd"" rcqu;'" .ruamotwy "PI'RJL:a), no< dim.~· ..bred 
lOmcdc:ns5ty hcmmsor ina:-.am'CS.. In sadt CHei.somc olics IlUF 
~ mar me, Dcruity Boruo> ....... doco nor.lka m.:;,. ~. 
'" &a;. ...... """"di,jon 3 p"*",,, w:>&r chdr broad pol;« 1'0"
"A ot!OIUIty or ~. cuy ",. and cofura 1riIlUn irs limln .!l 
loa!. ~. ~ .,.a otrur .."w,""""S _ rq;ul""",,, DO( 

;n caat!8;a ,.;m ~ 1:.0 ... "$ ' n,;. """"""'rim ~ 
ps'''' ... citJi.eo. .. .ailcrr< IIocaI ... .Jinmc."o: i. .iL::ri...! 60m <he 
-d>c:rt::m =-'1""""" "i ohc """'" '" IlOl>;ca ~ ri£;!m 

17 

r 

to reasonable regulation for the general welfure."1l4 A city's police 
power "is as broad as that of the state Legislature irself."H; For 
example, local regulations based on at.'Sthetics 3fe permissible 
so long as ther 3te reasonably rebtec.l to the genc:raJ wclf311:.8G 

Even though the police power is broad, it must nor "conflicr 
with the general I3ws."87 A local regulation conflicts with rhe 
"general laws." including Sc::J..tU[es such :IS [he Dc:nsity Bonus 
Law. if ie "duplicates, comradicts or enters 3n area fully occupied 
by general law, eieher expressly or by legislative implicarion."88 

It is important to consider this issue in iu historical 

context. Throughout the: Densiry Bonus Law's development, 
rhe legislature declared that affordable housing was critical 
to California and [hat ciries should not create obstacles to 

dc!\'doping affordable housing. This mandate is not limited to 
[he Densiey Bonus Law, bur is also embodied in ocher S[;ltutes, 

many of which arc idendfled in Government Code secdon 
65582.1. Thi. legislative directive has been accep,ed by the 
couru, which ha .. ·~ held that the Density Bonus L..:tw should be 
fully implemented [0 encourage rhe creation of more affordable 
units.s') llu!'refore, the Legislature :md the murts recognize 
chat mme: affordable hawing is badly nceded in California, 
and local agencies should not impose roadblocks to thwart 
such dc:\'dopme:nt unless they can make one of me: statutory 
findings.l)() 

For example, in RuilJing Im/usI')' AiJodl1rion 1'. C'ity of 
Oualuitl~. me court held that a loci ballot mt:::lSurc faciall)' 
conflicted with, :lnd \\';15 prermpn:d by, the Density Bonus 
law when it impaled (he Deruity Bonus Law's promotion of 
construction of low-income: housing.91 Similarly. in Frinuis of 
lAgoon liJky,9! the coun examined (hc Dem.it)" Bonus L..:tw 
and its relationship to dlC' drys police powers, and held that .3. 

local ordinan~i imposition of 3 higher threshold for .. project 

'0 qualil}' for a demi,y bonus would be prc:empred by the 
Density Bonus U\I,,' and therefoR:' void. Fin01l1y. U'70Umt'T I and 
U"Umn II sugges' rita, disal'pro,-ing a densil}' bonus prujccr 
would invoke me prohibioDn in [he' Deruity Bonus L:aw against 
al'pl)inS d ... -dol'mrn, setnd.uds ,har .... ould phpically pm:lude 
conmuction of the: proia'"t_9 i 

In \l.U",,, I. me 01}' of Scd<.:I..,· apprO\-ro usc permits 
and nrUna:s .or a mixcd~use dmsity bonus pmjea" consisting 
of rcsidmtial uruc. and n:uil commc:n:ia.1 ~.'}-i VCnm the 

kg;tlil}' of <he a~". "1'1""'.,) "'" dulkng<d. the appclbrc roun 
hdd: 

IUd me al}' filled m ~_ <he ,':1ri.mas <he n:suI, 
.. "nId .h.n~ obc dfa:t of pn:duding the conmuroon 
of a &'-dop",alt' (§ 6)'] I 5.:rube!. (en .... iUdt «= me 
al'<tU of me Dmsity Bonus Uw.. If obc Proi«< •• a 
""",,le " ... nO[ aJIJIIOI2lically ""sible. rhm obc bdou
~ """ ""","og Wlirs "ould nor be builL and thr 
PUT"'< of obc Oaum:r Bam... ....... '" ~ thr 
&.~, of low and modcr.ur ina>m< ~ 
.. ""uId DOl be .adnia_~ 

.... oi>oiibrqwncft .......... ~ in Ir..u...,. n~ the: 

Citfs~ <If -P"'i<W-J'C"l'irW=inn 'lbThw.. 
bc.iI. ~_ bmc .....m dua .&.ni.! ... "'" grc:rmit or 

....w.a az+iI><~ '" aU u....o.r s.:.-!I...;~ 
"""""' 6~Uj!:1{11- T!oi; jtldWI ~ intpD<> dua rf '" City 

86 



disappro\1:S ~ density bonus proj<ct's 3pplicltion fOr a use ~rmir, 
Vilriance. design rc:vir:w. or similar permic, and me city cannot make 
any of me findings «[ fOrm in mo Densi[)" Bonus Law co jusd~· me 
disappro\':d, then the: aaiu" would be contrary co me: purpose of me 
Densicy Bonus Law and vulnerable: (0 a \\Tic of mandate issued by 
the CQllrtS,97 including attorney's fees and COSts. 

To interpret the law ocherwise would Olllaw ;1 dey [0 

undermine the purpose: of the: Dc:nsicy Bonus Law by subjecting 
the project [Q a discretionary approval process such as a 
conditional use permit. them disapproving the project based on 
broad "general wdf.uc" concerns or similar grounds. Even 
though such an adjudicatory aedon \\-'ould be suhject to the 
standard of fevit:w in Code of Civil Procedure seedun 1094.5. 
which is a less defen:ntial standard than is typic:ll for legisl:lti\'c: 
actions.98 it is a fur easier to met!t rh:ln the "specific :ldvt!rse 
impact" srandard provided in the Density Bonus Law. Denying 
density bonus projects or rendering them inft:;lSible through 
C'xcessin: conditions would mean "that housing units for lower· 
income households would nor be built and the purpose of the 
density bonw la",,· (Q encourage: such dt."\·clopmenc would not 
be achic\·e:d."IJ') 

As a practical note. an applicam should consider formally 
requc:sting an incentive: or dt.."vclopmem stand:ud waiver that 

addrcsses potcmial grounds for denial (or e:xces~ive conditions 
of approv:J.I). This \\;11 invoke [he Ct.'srrictions on denial set fonh 
in .ubdivisions (dj(3) and (e)( I) of [he Den,i[y Bunus Law. 
thereby preserving the opponunity (0 reCOVer attOrner's fees if :I: 
subsequentlJYlsuir is successful. 

VlI.POUTICAL REAUTIES 

Alrhough many cities struggle to meet their f.1ir share of thdr 
R:ipecth'e: rt.'gional housing need. tOO panicularly the pro\'ision 
of affonbble housing unilS. dc=\'dopet'S ofren encounter loct1 

reslsunce when proposing density bon\Lo; proja:n that would 
help remedy [his shorcfall. Ind<-ed. affOrdable multifamily 
projn ... aR: R:gu!'r\y opposed by neighborhood groups. (These 
grou~ (.ftm include ciril.cns who idrntif)' themseh"t"S wich ":mri
sprawl" and ·srnan growth" policio; - an irony nor lost on rhe 
dC\'clopmcru community.) Project opposition in u!ifom~'s 

urbm ern"", is often highly-aluClted and o'll"ni=!. and 
CUTtS ~gnifiCilnt innuC'llcc on city staff .:md dcacd offici3ls. As 
a m,ult. density bonus projectS r<guhrl). (onfron[ scrong chird
pan: opposition and unonchu...."f local officials. 

A rebrai political coruoicL:arion i; me n:siscmo: dur 
d,,·dopa. cnoounrer when dey .eIf and da:sed officUIs 
pcr<l<ffi: a <k<-dopmen[ projca is iora:d upon mall. If a ci[y 
bcIiet.'O duI .3 dC'\wpc:r is u~ng: da.c- Dcnsi[J Bonus UU: '2S .2 

lumma "ichou[ axtsid<ring duo cffi:a of me proj<a on "'" 
co:nmunl~ me city might roist me rrojc:a ,\;m me rook ir 
Ius ",:aiUbI<.. Gittn mis po[<lltW agency retcrion. a de.-doper 
SI>oWd amsida ~ng amt "i1la ci<]. =If mel officUI. ro 

.ruw.. """ 0DIy!...... me Dcn~-Boo.,. t...-.Jli,m duo proj<a. 
bur ,a,., bm.- lhe proioct posimdy .ffixu "'" city f~ ",. 
~ -u. np.na! bou.mg ~ mel pronoming 
<=lic-ori=u:d md """;mb!e dcn:Iopmmr policia). A 
=-al ~ of me app'I;'-.!.k ~ cnnronmau:,."a 

"'" ~ of me I""'i<a on doc ~ <houlcl be ritw..! 
... '" _for ~ me ~ ...... """ me ~ 
=<l W ~ =II Deed """ be d ..... "'niui! ... :a ~""-

18 

( 
The reality, howcwr, is chat even if the: sta[ute: limits il 

city's discretion to condition or deny 3 densi[j' bonus project, 3 

city may decide co do so anyway dUf: to neighborhood pressure: 
or 35 3 rC:lclion to perceived strong-arming b}' (he: devdopc:r. 
A developer chen musl: decide whether to seek judicial relief. 
which many are reluctant to do despite the potential to recover 
attorney's fees and coses, espc:ci:Llly if the developer fears 
repercussions on future projeccs within [hat jurisdiction. 

Because key elements of [he Density Bonus la,\" an: still 
subject to \"Jriow interpretations that have not been clarified by 
the legislature, it willlikdy be the courts that provide guidance 
[0 both de:\'e1opers and chies on future projects. 

VIII. CONCLUSION 

The Density Bonus Law is a potentially powerful tool 
for dovdupers of mulcifamily prujeccs. AI[hough [he Densicy 
Bonus Law has existed for over [hirr), years, both de .... elopers 
and cides have struggled with its applkation. The statute "is 
confusing. convoluted, and subject to endless debate about 
its requirements."'Ol As a result. many d~elopers are dther 

unaware of [he law or unsure about how it works. Many cities 
share this unfamiliarity and are resistam to attempts [0 limit 
tneir police powers when considering multif.1mily devdopment 
applications. The currem rcsidentiall'C':ll estate m:lrket has begun 
to sharpen the: focus of developers. cities, and pr.tctitioners with 
regard to this statute. and all panies should apect the Density 
Bonus Law to become a more integral component of the local 
multifamily housing projectS entitlement proct..-ss. 

ENDNOTES 

David II. Blaclnl~U is a pl1TlntT ;11 tI~ WI,t/lIUt 

C""It o.ffk' of AU", Mork;,u Uck Gamhk 
"LtU,,? & Natsis UP, u.l_ IN sp«iali=s ;" 
oU IUJI«lS of lmui us< rolilklll"'ts l1IuililigotiOn. 
[)ugir/ rrp=mts LmJowlln"S, husill<SSeS, J.D.1op
.,., IIRd r;rn-n-nmn1l;J ogmciu J,ifoll' odministro
art IIzmM IUlJ Sl4U dlul fnlmJ courts.... 

5.,. ' .1.., J.":' Dino",n. I'minnJo Housi,,!.' If },," Bui/J k 
T11<J triU Rmr. S.E lies. Til...... Aug. 16. 10 II . 4ntjJ· 

ow. 4J hnp-JI",.",biljoumals.comlgnfrmciw:olprin[-edi
Don!1011 10SI!6lpcniruula-ho"'ing-if-~"u-build-it.htmh 

Roger \'Iocmr.. .-I;>: ......... a A ... tit< Dnv/;,,,,,,,,,", DII four 
~ &iJJn.. LA. 1i1l£<' JuI,. 17. 1011. ,,,..U.Mr 'Zl 

hap-JI" ....... J.oameu:omlbusina;slb-li..:ommre-q""rurly
~cs-101I071 ,..0.49774:s4_pri=~·. 

Z Cu_ GO\;- CoJJ£ § 6,9' S. All =rmy ~ .,.~ CO 

"'" c..lifomU Guo. ..... 1DC!I[ Co.le wtless om""""", "f"'d. 
6aI. 

3 Dmn-d."lS ~ ·~t I""i<a Ii>r m\: 0' more~
.w.",m.·IJ. <t 65'!/JWo)' 

.. OdD>cd "'~" &nwy iDo><:a>< O<"CI" me..mc...be mm",,.m 
~ dm<iIy ... of a:bc..m~ of "l'rti-- tt> me IocZI 
~'!'- ltl. § ;;j90W)_ 

ji .UI.. !!8~ BlII ,\aul:"" '" ,8 !Ul ,'I,pc. 21. MOS). 
6 liim .. , ... , Gz; if~ 193 Cal. A.'pAm 13,..., ~31111 1 

87 



thereimlfter \'('o//!11(r Ifl. An earlier FirS[ District opinion 
involving Mr. Wollmor's challenge [0 [he City of Berkdey's 
application of rhe Densiry Bonus l:tw (0 3. different project 
is lVollmav. Ciryof&rk&y. 179 Cal. App. 4[h 933 (2009) 
(hereinafter \\70JlIIJ(r 1] . 

7 Bldg. IlldllS. Asin v. Ciry ofOcramidr. 27 Cal. App. 4[h 744. 
770 (1994); CAL GOY'" COOE § 65582.1(1). 

8 Wallmrr II. 193 Cal. App. 4th at 1339. 
9 CAL GOV'T COOE § 65917. 
10 Frirnt/s of LIlgvol! Vallry v. Ciry of l{zmvill,. 1;4 Cal. App. 

4th 807. 824 (2007) (quo.ing SiJra HonlN Lui. PiiJip v. 
Co/lIlry ofAIIlmrd4. 110 Cal. App. 4.h 1246. 1263 (2003)). 

11 FrimdsofLagoon 1{Zllry. 1;4 Cal. App. 4[h at 82;. 
12 NotcHo StaL'. 1979. eh. 1207. at 4738. ,cc. He:.!. 1979). 
13 A.B. 1866 Bill Analysis. at 34 (Cal. Aug. 2B. 2002). 
14 /d. at 4. 
15 CAL GOv'T CODE § 65918. 
16 /d. § 65915(a). 
17 CAL HEALTH" SAFETY CODE § 50079.5. 
18 Id. § 50W5. 
19 /d. § ;OO~3. 
20 ",ollm" II. 193 Cal. App. 4[h at 1339; sa c.u. Gov'.,. 

CODE § 65915(b)(1)(A)·(D). 
21 5<r discu.sion illfra Part 111.8.3. 
22 Sf( CAL Gnv'T Cnoe § 6;91 ;(d)(I). 
23 Stats. 200;. eh. 496. sec. 3. 
24 Frirnds ofLagool! I;rlky v. City vfl1wlVilir. 154 Cal. App. 

4[h 807. 824 (20117). 
2j IJ. at 830. 
26 Su di~us5i(}n Jupra Parr 1I1.A.1. 
27 1I''olhrzrr II. 193 Cal. App. 4[h at 1340. 
28 /d at IJ43. 
29 CAI_ (;OV'" CODE § 65~ I ; (1)(4). 
30 Itl. § 65915(1)(1). 
31 /d. §6;91 ;(1)(2). 
32 Itl. § 6;91;(t)(3). 
33 Id. § 6591 ;(h)(3). 
34 Itl. § 65915(n). Thc "(ijf permitted by IOCII onlinance" 

limita[ion "-.s .dded by AB 2280 in 2008. Both Frinuis..r 
1..4:00" ";,[ky. 154 Cal. App. 4th at 826. and lfoOm" I. ' 79 
Cal .. -\pp. 4th .. 944. anal~'Z<d [he pre.AB 2280 ,=ion of 
>«tion 6;91;(n) ro hold dur no impl<mmting ordinance 
\\'ai ~n:d for.;t city [0 aIm-~ greater numhc:r of demit!' 
bonus units. 

3; c.u.. (,,,,,:, CODE § 6591 5(J H 1l. 
36 m,/lnrn I. 179 Cal App. 4th at 94 • . 
37 Cu.. (;m:, CooL§ 6;<J1;!k). 
38 The 1q;i..!am"C ana~'50 of 58 ISIS india", w[ me pur· 

J."ffiC'of this prmision U'2S OJ '"'CDIOW"C mar mr inc.c:::rnn""CS M'~ 
... "'" .-:due. The int=[ of ~ ·firun.::i:dl)· ...fficicn,' is 
Imj CIUlltt dw .-:dL>< i> more than nomin11 ~ ~ of 
bcadlt m me dc.-dopcr." A.B. ISIS BiD .~ .. ;tt 5 (Cal 
Apr.1&.~. 

39 Cu. Gm"r CoDE ~ 65917 . 
.;0 Id. § 65915(11. 1"., n:<ript of di=J futmciaI il>oemi\-cs 

~ smda the Oeruiry Bon:J. u..-. """'nn. .........,. 
~ mml ~ ~ hum me ~ l"""iSioolsof 
."" Cost> ~.-\ct. :IS Cl'f'bmcd m P"';"""'.IS!z:!o 5m:t:t 
~ LP. ::: G;;;' tf u" .i-wk m CaL ~ "m 

19 

\. 

1396. 1402 (2009). 
41 Mitchell B. Menzer & Sn:c1ana G, Actestacova, A Guidr to 

Gllifomia Govt"rummr Cadr Srt'tiofl 65915: Dmsity SOIWIts 

flud blC(mil't"s for AJfordlb/r Homing. 23 WI .. REAL PROP. 

} .• Spring 200;. at 6·7. 
42 Moderate income units must be: in a common imerest 

d<vdopm<n[. CAl. GOy'T CODE § 65915(h)(I )(D). 
43 /d. § 65915(d)(2). 
44 Id. § 6;915(1')(1). 
4; /d. 
46 Id. § 6;915(d)(3). 
47 Although nor defined in section 65915. "substantial c: ... i ~ 

dencc" is generally defined as evidence of "ponderable 
Ic:g;tl significance . .. reasonable in naturc, credibl~. and of 
solid value, and rdc\'ant evidence that a r~sonablC' mind 
might ac(ep( as adt:quat~ tu suppon a conclusion," }oltng If. 

G,1I11101l. 97 Cal. App. 4th 209. 225 (2002) (in«rn:'! cita· 
tiuns omittt:d), 

48 '.At. GUV'T CODE § 65915(d)(I) . 
49 A.B. 1866 Bill Analysis, a. 5 (Cal. May 7. 2002); A.B. 1866 

Bill Anal~'is. at 6 (C.1. Apr. 22. 2002); A.B. Bill Analysis. 
a[ I (Cal. Apr. 8. 2002). 

50 Sa 1X{Zllmrr II. 193 Cal. App. 4[h a[ 1344. 
51 5<, discussion illfr" Pan V. 
52 C\I .. GOV'I' ConE § 65589.5(j)(l) . 
53 Wollmrr II. 193 Cal. App. 4[h at 1349·50 (quoting CAI _ 

Guv'T ,"mE § 65589. S(d)(2)) . 
;4 Su discussion illftll Parr VI. 
55 CAL (;", • .,. CODE § 6591 i (d j{3). 

56 /d. § 6WI ;(c)(I). The 2008 .mendmcnts added rhe refer
~nces [0 "physically precluding" rh~ construCtion of a den
siry bonus project, ilntl ddett.'d subdivision (fl, which n'Old: 
"The: ilppliClnr shall show that ,he w3i\1:r or modifiL"300n is 
nCCCSS31'Y to make the housing units C'OOnomiclly bible," 
Sf( ""oil.," 11. 193 wI. App. 4th at 1346. 

; 7 CAt.. Gov' .. CODE § 6;915(0)(1). 
58 IJ. § 65915«)(2). 
;9 IJ. § 65915(c)(I). The ,tacur< docs nor idmtij}' ~ny Gnd· 

inp dut may he :lWtial ro deny a dcnsiq: bonus requr:sL 
60 ItL 
61 Itl. 
62 ItL § 6;;89.5. 
63 IJ., 65>89.5(b). 
64 ," P.uifh. UC r. CiJ)'..r P4dfim. 234 f. Supp. 2d 105.'. 

10;7-58 (XU. Cal.lOO!j. 
65 n.c Housing AcmunabiJj[y Aaddines "kasibk- '"' -apl' 

bk of bci~ 2CCOmplUhcd in ~ SISOOC>ifuI nunntt "imin " 
.......nabIc J'Criod of tim<. a1ii~ inm ~ _mic.. 
=rironmcnal. ...wI. attd ",dtn~ baor.: (:At. 
Gm"r eo"" § 655S'J5Ih){l). 

66 1.£ § 65;s<J.5(dlI21;.,.,.,J,. jJ. ! 6591'>(d!(U) .. 
6- Id. § 655l1'9.';(hIO). 
loS U. §65'J1;\h ){I)(.-\). 

6'} SI'llIIiW- '" thedolini1ion< m ~ I~ti!j =M,mn\Bj 
of """"" 65915. " .<;pcrific. :t<h><n<: impact- is.acfi=d "'" 
-" ~ quznC:liaYc. di=r.,."d......mda'h'k ~ 
b-'cm ~ ikmti£od..-rim:n pcIOlic idb!h=a'fm:: 
~ pcIi<ies. or "I"'diriOD' '" cbc:atitcd ",a u!bc&te 
""'~ ", .. .!=aI ~. 1ti. § "jj:8!t~ii~ il l . 

88 



( 
70 !d. § 65589.5(j). 
71 N. RlciJica. LLC" City of PaciJica. 234 F. Supp. 2d 1053. 

1060 (N.D. Cal. 2002). 
72 !d. at 1059. 
73 \'O'oOm" f. 179 Cal. App. 4th 933 (2(K)9); FrimrlsofLngooll 

VallI'}" City 0f"'mwill_. 154 Cal. App. 4th 807 (2007). 
74 \'O'ollm" fl. 193 Cal. App. 4th at 1338. 
75 !d. at 1342. 
76 !d. at 1342-43. 
77 ld. at 1344. 
78 ld. at 1346. 
79 !d. at 1347 (quoting \'O'olln"r f. 179 Cal. App. 4th 933. 947 

(2009)). 
80 ld.at 1344-45. 
8 J Sf' discussion mpra Parr IV. 
82 CAl.. GOV'T COUF. § 65915(f)(;). (j). 
83 CAL. CONST. art. XI. § 7. 
84 CO"" v. City 6- COUllty Of San Frallcisco. 157 Cal. App. 4th 

1550. 1557 (2007) (citing 8 Wrn",:. SUMMARY OF CAL. 
lAW Coustitutiollltl Law § 784 (9th cd. 1988». 

85 Richmll II. H_Lrl. 158 Cal. App. 4th 268. 277 (2007). 
86 Sa. _.g .• Novi " City of PaciJica. 169 Cal. App. 3d 678. 682 

(1985). 
87 CAL. CUNST. art. XI. § 7. 
88 Viacom Outdoor. fllc. " City of Arrara. 140 Cal. App. 4th 

230. 236 (2006). 
89 Sa. r.g .. Rldg. fndus. As/n " CiIJ of a,·ra/lSidr. 27 Cal. 

App. 4th 744. 770 (1994); Frimds ofLngool1 VaOI'} " City 
ofVacadlk. 154 Cal. App. 4th 807. 823-24 (2007), Shra 
/fom'! LId. P,/'ip " CoUIII)' of Al4mdr. 110 Cal. App. 4th 
1246. 1263 (2003); Wolln"r f. li9 Cal. ApI'. 4.h at 94() · 

41; If.llm" If. 193 Cal. App. 4th at 1339 . 
90 S« discussion IUpnt Part III.Il.3. 
91 Bldg. bulus. A"il. 27 Cal. App. 4th >r 770.771. 
92 Frimds of Lngooll V.JJq. 154 Cal. App. 4th at 830. 
93 C.'L GOV'T COUE § 65915(0)(1). 
94 ".1Ima I. 179 Cal. :\pp. 4th >r 936. 
95 Id. or 937. 
96 "'If me projc:ct w~rr not built. i( goo ,,;mout S3~ing that 

housing units for IO\\"f:T~inromt' howdtolch \\'"Ould nO( be 
built 2nd me pu~ of the: drnshy bonus law m cncouagc 
sud. cb-dopmcn, , .... uld not boxhic\"d: Ir.Dn'<T II. 193 
Cal. Aw- 4th >r 1347_ 

97 At 1= one trial enurt Iw rukd Wt the Dmsiry' Bon ... 
~. mpircs 2 citr to appTO't'C' 2. dc::mity bonus proja., 
"-h= housing ... ,,' OIhcrni>c <Il~- pramJ,iurl 5« t.c.ris 
J-Soffi:r. D= w Om.<iy' B.",,, Lur (G.tJ. c.r./, § 65915J 
~uirr L.clll Go,rmnwll .. ArJ'1'l1W Mb:rtl LoY dati 
/11"""'$ /'n,pn I\7mr LocJJ Zrmillg D= M< A&". H.usn.: 
.r AlE. 18 MuuR. A: Sr."'" Rt:.u. EsH'Tf. X""su.ur_ July 
1008..11 !-

9S 5«_ ~.z.- r."""p _-L."" for .. Srmk ~ r. Co""!) !f lAs 
~ II c.L3d)06. jIHI9T.,-

99 U-,.u""../I_ 193 CaL -"rP- 4th :at 134, _ 
100 St.r C...u.. Gm'r CoDE §§ 6)j8.-6~')S.iJ_ 
101 A.R. !!SB llilI ~ SnffC-"""""<Il1" 11 {c.L "Pr. 

11. ]0061-

( 

89 



( 
KRONICK 

MOSKOVITZ 

~EFERENCE GUIDE &IEDEMANN ~~~~""-,,,",,,::..;,-,=,,-,,,::.....;=-,=,~=::-,,=,,--__________ ---=::..;:::G.:::::~I fi~RATION 

Maximizing Density Through Affordability 

A Developer's Guide to 
the California Density 
Bonus Law 
By Jon E. Goetz and Tom Sakai 

S
avvy housing developers are taking 
advantage of California's Density Bonus Law, 
a mechanism which allows them to obtain 

more favorable local development requirements 
in exchange for offering to build affordable or 
senior units. The Density Bonus Law (found in 
California Government Code Sections 65915 
- 65918) provides developers with powerful tools to 
encourage the development of affordable and senior 
housing, including up to a 35% increase in project 
densities, depending on the amount of affordable 
housing provided. The Density Bonus Law is about 
more than the density bonus itself, however. It is 
actually a larger package of incentives intended to 
help make the development of affordable and senior 
housing economically feasible. Other IooIs include 
reduced parking requirements, oIher incentives and 
concessions such as reduced selback and minimum 
square footage requirements, and the abHity to 
donate land for the development of affordable 
housing to earn a density bonus. Often these other 
tools are even more helpful to project economics 
than the density bonus itself, particularly the special 
parking benefits. Sometimes these incentives are 
sufficient to make the project pentil out, but for other 
projects financial assistance is necessaJy to make 
the projed feasille. 

In delemlining wheII>er a deveIopmenl project would 
bene!ii1 from becoming a density bonus project. 
developers also f\leed to be aware lhat 

The DensiIy Bonus is a $tale mandate. A 
deRJlcper Who meets !he requ'femenIs of 
1I:Ie SIa!e law is entiIIed m receive the denslly 

Sacramento I Bakersfield I Roseville I San Luis Obispo I walnut Creek I _klnta.com 

ATTACHMENT 3 90 



l\~~ERENCE GUIDE 

bonus and other benefits . As with any state 
mandate, some local governments will resent 
the state requirement and will attempt to 
resist. But many local governments like the 
density bonus as a helpful tool to cut through 
their own land use requirements and local 
political issues. 

• Use of a density bonus may be particularly 
helpful in those jurisdictions that impose 
inclusionary housing requirements for new 
developments. 

How the Density Bonus Works 

Projects En!ltled !o a Densjtv Bonus 

Cities and counties are required !o grant a density 
bonus and other incentives or concessions to 
housing projects which contain one of the following : 

At least 5% of the housing units are restricted 
!o very tow income residents. 

• At least 10% of the housing units are restricted 
to lower income residents, 

• 

At least 10% of the housing units in a for-sate 
common interest development are restricted to 
moderate income residents. 

The project donates at least one acre of land 
to the city or county for very low income units, 
and the land has the appropriate general plan 
designation, zoning, pennits and approvals, 
and access to public facilities needed for such 
housing. 

The project is a senior citizen housing 
development (no alfooIabIe units required). 

The project is a mobiIehome patk age
R!Sbided to senior ci\izens (no affordable units 
required). 

Density Bonus Amount 

The amount d the densiIy bonus is sa! on a siding 
scale, based upon tine JlE!iceitage cI afti:lrdabIe units 
at each inalme level, as sbI:Nm in tile chart on the 
~page. 

riadlecl'!t 

BUS! 805.250,7955 
19am.kIDiQ rpm 

Jon E. Goetz 

Jon.!. an aHomey 8t Kro.nl"" 
Mo~vItZ TIedemarin !f, 
Glmiif, with 25 y!a,. of 
""P.!'rlence In 18nd usa, 

.'l!Ite, .If<!Ida* !'~~~Il-"I reaevelopment <;l 

laW'~!n',~t;~: :~f 

«!"1j!lex real 
land lise p'.n~. 

n!lI ...... lcipment transactionS. 

Tom Sakal r 

:rom Is the ~ 0( 

SP.!.¢Ioii1< Reolty ~ 
Irii::, a reo! estate COiisWtIng 
"",dICi! IOc:oIiiI Iii Nev.¢rt 
!IUi:h- HIs 

on 

A OeIoelopats Guide to the California Density Bonus Law «:12012. Kronid< MosI<oIIitz. et aI. 

91 



( 

l\'1I~ERENCE GU IDE 

Density Bonus Chart' 

Affordable Unit Very low Income low lncorne Moderate Income lend Donabon 
Percentage-- 'Density'Bonus De'lsity Bonus Density Bonus DensltylSonus 

5% 20% - - -
6% 22.5% - . -
7% 25% - - -
8% 27.5% - - . 

9% 30% - - -
10% 32.5% 20% 5% 15% 

11% 35% 21 .5% 6% 16% 

12% 35% 23% 7% 17% 

13% 35% 24.5% 8% 18% 

14% 35% 26% 9% 19% 

15% 35% 27.5% 10% 20% 

16% 35% 29% 11% 21% 

17% 35% 30.5% 12% 22% 

18% 35% 32% 13% 23% 

19% 35% 33.5% 14% 24% 

20% 35% 35% 15% 25% 

21% 35% 35% 16% 26% 

22% 35% 35% 17% 27% 

23% 35% 35% 18% 28% 

24% 35% 35% 19% 29% 

25% 35% 35% 20% 30% 

26% 35% 35% 21% 31% 

27% 35% 35% 22% 32% 

28% 35'l(, 35% 23% 33% 

29% 35% 35% 24% 34% 

30% 35'l(, 35% 25% 35% 

31% 35% 35% 26% 35% 

32% 35'l(, 35% 27% 35'l(, 

33% 35% 35% 26% 35% 

34% 35'lI. 35')(, 29% 35'lI. 

35% 35% 35% 30% 35% 

36% 35% 35% 31% 3S'J(, 

37% 35% 35% 32% 35% 

38'lIo 35'lI. 35'l(, 33'JI, 35'lI. 

3!B 35'lI. 35% 34% 35% 

40% 35'l(, 35% 35% 35% 

• AD detIsity borrus c:aI:ulatior'5 resultlllg m Ii'adions are rounded up to the next whol: rn..mbe<. 
- A~ unit p...-c!!r1lage is caIo """" I!lCdut:fng units added by a density ba~ 
- No "'"'rdatIe umls are roqu:red fbr senior housing umts to <eceI"e a denslty flonus. 

Senior I:lensity 
_(@onus ·" 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20"h 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

211% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

20% 

A Oe\1!!oper's Guide 10 !he California 0ensIty Bonus law C 2012, Kronick MosI«Mtz, et at 

92 



( 

~~~ERENCE GUIDE 

Required Incentives and Concessions 

In addition to the density bonus, the city or county is 
also required to provide one or more "incentives· or 
"concessions' to each project which qualifies for a 
density bonus (except that market rate senior citizen 
projects with no affordable units, and land donated 
for very low income housing, do not appear to be 
entitled to incentives or concessions). A concession 
or incentive is defined as: 

• 

A reduction in site development standards or 
a modification of zoning code or architectural 
design requirements, such as a reduction 
in setback or minimum square footage 
requirements; or 

Approval of mixed use zoning; or 

Other regulatory incentives or concessions 
which actually result in identifiable and 
financially sufficient cost reductions. 

The number of required incentives or concessions 
is based on the pencentage of affordable units in the 
project: 

• 

• 

For projects with at least 5% very low income, 
10% lower income or 10% moderate income 
units, one incentive or concession is required. 

For projects with at least 10% very low 
income, 20% lower income or 20% moderate 
income units, two incentives or concessions 
are required. 

For projects with at least 15% very low 
income, 30% lower income or 30% moderate 
Income units, three incentives or concessions 
are required. 

The city or county is required to grant the 
concession or incentive proposed by the developer 
unless it finds that the proposed concession Of 

incentive is not required in order to achieve the 
required affordable housing costs or rents. or would 
cause a public health or safety Ilroblem. cause an 
envirorunen1aI problem, harm historicalllroperty. or 
would be contrary to law. FIrIalICiaI incentives. fee 
waivefs and reductions in deCcalion requtrements 

may be, but are not required to be, provided by the 
city or county 

Other Forms of Assistance 

A development qualifying for a density bonus also 
receives two additional forms of assistance which 
have important benefits for a housing project. 

• Waiver or Reduction of Development 
Standards. If any other city or county 
development standard would physically 
prevent the Ilroject from being built at the 
permitted density and with the granted 
concessionslincentives, the developer may 
Ilropose to have those standards waived or 
reduced. The city or county is not permitted 
to apply any development standard which 
physically precludes the construction of the 
project at its permitted density and with the 
granted concessionslincentives. The city 
or county is not required to waive or reduce 
development standards that that would cause 

"This ability to force the locality to modify 

its normal development standards is 

sometimes the most compelling reason 

for the developer to structure a project to 

qualify for the density bonus .• 

a public heaHh or safety problem, cause 
an environmental problem, harm historical 
property. or WOtJId be contrary to law. The 
waiver or reduction of a development stam:lard 
does not count as an incentive or concession 
Development standards which haw been 
waived or redtJced utilizing this section include 
seIback requirements and lot c:overage 
requk'ements. This abitity to foo:e the Ioc:afrty 
to modify its normal development standart1s is 
sanetimes the most compeIing reason for the 
da..-eloper to SlnJcture a project to qualify for 
the density bonus. 

A Oe>9Icper's Guide Ie the Califomia Oensity Bonus I.sw 0 2012, Kronick Moskovitz. <!t al 

93 



( 

~~~ERENCE GUIDE 

• Maximum Parking Requirements, Upon the 
developer's request, the city or county may not 
require more than one onsite parking space 
for studio and one bedroom units, two on site 
parking spaces for two and three bedroom 
units, and two and one-half onsite parking 
spaces for units with four or more bedrooms. 
Onsite spaces may be provided through 
tandem or uncovered parking, but not onstreet 
parking. Requesting these parking standards 
does not count as an incentive or concession, 
but the developer may request further parking 
standard reductions as an incentive or 

"In many cases, achieving a reduction in 

parking requirements may be more valuable 

than the additional permitted units ... 

concession , This is one of the most important 
benefits of the density bonus statute, In 
many cases, achieving a reduction in parking 
requirements may be more valuable than 
the additional pennitted units. In higher 
density developments requiring the use of 
structured parking, the construction cost of 
structured parking is very expensive, costing 
upwards of S20,000 per parking space. Whil€ 
this provision of the density bonus statute 
can be used to reduce excessive parking 
requirements, care must be taken not to 
impact the project's marketabirrty by reducing 
parking to minimum requirements which lead 
to parking shortages. 

Affordable Ho",jng Restrictions 

• Rental Units. AIiordallle rental units must 
be restricted by an agreement which sets 
maximum incomes and rents for those units. 
The income and rent reslriclions must remain 
in place for a 30 year 1em1, or a longer period 
if required by the terms of other subsidies 
received by the ~ect. Rents must be 
restricted as foUaNs' 

( 

For very low income units, rents may not 
exceed 30% x 50% of the area median 
income for a household size suitable for 
the unit 

For lower income units, rents may not 
exceed 30% x 60% of the area median 
income for a household size suitable for 
the unit 

Area metflan income is detennined 
annuaDy by regulation of the California 
Department of Housing and Community 
~men~basedu~nm~ 
income regulations adopted by the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Dew/opmenl 

Rents must include a reasonable utitity 
abr.mce. 

Household size appropriate to the unit 
means 1 fOr a s1udio unit, 2 for a one 

A Developer's Guide to !he Cafrfomia Density Bonus Law C 2012, Kronick MCJSka.iitz, et aI. 

94 



( 

~'1I~ERENCE GUIDE 

bedroom unit, 3 for a two bedroom unit, 4 
for a three bedroom unit, etc. 

A list of current affordable rent calculations 
and income limits for many California 
counties is available on the Kronick , 
Moskovitz, Tiedemann & Girard website at 
wwwkmtg.com/pubhcations. 

• For Sale Units. Affordable for sale units must 
be sold 10 the initial buyer al an affordable 
housing cost. All housing related costs 
generally may not exceed 35% x 110% of 
the area median income for a household size 
suitable for the unit. Housing related costs 
include mortgage loan payments, mortgage 
insurance payments. property taxes and 
assessments, homeowner association fees, 
reasonable utilities allowance, insurance 
premiums, maintenance costs, and space 
rent. 

Buyers must enter into an equity sharing 
agreement with the city or county, unless 
the equity sharing requirements conflict 
with the requirements of another public 
funding source or law. The equity sharing 
agreement does not restrict the resale 
price, but requires the original owner to 
pay the city or county a portion of any 
appreciation received on resale. 

The city/county percentage of appreciation 
is the purchase price discount received by 
the original buyer, plus any down payment 
assistance provided by the city/county. 
(For example. if the original sales price 
is S200,OOO, and the original fair market 
value is 5250,000, and there is no city/ 
county down payment assistance, the city/ 
county subsidy is $50,000, and the city, 
county's share of appreciation is 20%). 

The sener is permitted to retain its 
original down payment, the value of any 
improvements made to the home, and the 
remaining share of the appreciation. 

The income and affordability requirements 
are not binding on resale purchasers 
(but if other pub6c funding sources Ot" 

( 

programs are used, the requirements may 
apply to resales for a fixed number of 
years). 

A list of current affordable housing cost 
calculations and income limits for many 
California counties is available at the 
Kronick, Moskovitz, Tiedemann & Girard 
website at wwwkmtg.com/pubhcations . 

How the Densltv Bonus Works for Senior Prolects 

As shown in the Density Bonus Chart above, a 
senior citizen housing development meeting the 
requirements of Section 51 .3 or 51.12 of the Civil 
Code qualifies for a 20% density bonus. This 
is a very desirable option for senior housing 
developments. In jurisdictions where the local 
ordinances do not reduce the parking requirements 
for senior housing developments, the reduced 
parking requirements alone may justify applying for 
a density bonus. 

"In jurisdictions where the local ordinances 

do not reduce the parking requirements for 

senior housing developments, the reduced 

parking requirements alone may justify 

applying for a density bonus .• 

How the Densjty Bon!!5 Worn for Condominium 
Conversion Projects 

The density bonus statute provides for a density 
bonus of up to 25% for condominium conversion 
projects providing at least 33% fOt" the total units 
to low or moderate income households or 15% 
of the units to lower income houseMlds. Many 
condominium conversion projects are not designed 
in a manner that allows them to take advantage 
of !he opportunity to construct edditional uru1s, 
but some projects may find this helpful V\II1i1e 
condominium COOWfSions are not presently a WIb!e 
deYeIopment a!!emative, this provision may be of 
some va'ue in &mited situations in the future. 

A Developer's Guide to the California Density Bonus Law C 2012, Kronick Moskovilz, et at 

95 



( 

k~PERENCE GUIDE 

How the Density Bonus Works for Child Care 

Housing projects that provide child care are eligible 
for a separate density bonus equal to the size of the 
child care facility. The child care facility must remain 
in operation for at least the length of the afford ability 
covenants. A percentage of the child care spaces 
must also be made available to low and moderate 
income families. A separate statute permits cities 
and counties to grant density bonuses to commercial 
and industrial projects or at least 50,000 square fee~ 
when the developer sets aside at least 2,000 square 
reet in the building and 3,000 square feet of outside 
space for a child care faciDty. See Govemment 
Code Section 65917.5 for additional details. 

How to Obtain jI Densjty BonllS Through Land 
Donation 

Many maritet rate housing developers are 
uncomfortable with building and mariteting 
afionfabIe units themselves, wtIether due to their 
lack of el<perience with the affordable housing 
process or because of their desire to concentrate 
on their core market rate homes. Other cfe\Ieloper.; 
m2J have sites that are underu!iized in tenns of 

( 

project density. The density bonus law contains a 
special sliding scale bonus for land donation which 
allows those developers to tum over the actual 
development of the affordable units to local agencies 
or experienced low income developers. The density 
bonus is available for the donation of at least an 
acre of fully entitled land, with al/ needed public 
facilities and infrastructure, and large enough for 
the construction of a high density very low income 
project containing 10% of the total homes in the 
development The parcel must be located within 
the boundary of the proposed development or. 
subject to the approval of the jurisdiction, and within 
one-fourth mile of the boundary of the proposed 
development The more units that can be built on 
the donated land, the larger the density bonus. 
Because of the parcel size requirements, this option 
is only practical for larger developments. The land 
donation density bonus can be combined with the 
regular density bonus provided for the development 
of affordable units, up to a maximum 35% density 
bonus. A master planned community de'Ie!oper 
needs to carefully evaluate the land dooaIion option 
as opposed to engaging an afiordable housing 
dewlaper to fuIfiD the project's alfurdable housing 
abfigations. In many cases the master deNeIaper 

A DeveIoper's Guide to !he Cafifomia Density Bonus Law C 2012, Kronick MOSI<aviI%. et al 

96 



l\'1I~ERENCE GUIDE 

will prefer to control the affordable component of 
the project through a direct agreement with the 
affordable housing developer, rather than allowing 
the local government to control the project. 

How the Density Bonus Can Help in a 
Friendly Jurisdiction 

While the density bonus law is often used by 
developers to obtain more housing than the local 
juMsdiction would ordinaMly perm~, it can also 
be a helpful land use tool in juMsdictions which 
favor the proposed project and want to provide 
support. Planners in many cities and counties may 
be disposed by personal ideology or local policy 
to encourage the construction of higher density 
housing and mixed use developments near transit 
stops and downtown areas, but are hampered by 
existing general plan standards and zoning from 
approving these sorts of projects. Elected officials 
often support these projects too, but may find it 
politically difficuH to oppose neighborhood and 

"The density bonus can provide a useful 

mechanism for increasing allowable density 

without requiring local officials to approve 

general plan amendments and zoning 

changes." 

environmental groups over the necessary general 
ptan amendments, zoning changes and CEOA 
approvals. 

The density banus can provide a useful mechanism 
for in.:reasing allowable density without requiring 
local officials to approve generaJ plan amendments 
and zoning c;hanges. A project that satisfies the 
requirements of the density banus law often can 
obtain the necessary land use approvals through 
the a.Nan1 of the density bonus units and requested 
~ons and incentiwes, " .. ithoot h<Mng to 
amend the undertjing land use requirements. 
Friendtj local officials may encourage the use of the 

( 

density bonus to "force" the jurisdiction to approve a 
desired project. 

How the Density Bonus Law Can Help in 
a Hostile Jurisdiction 

It is important to know that the density bonus is a 
state law requirement which is mandatory on cities 
and counties, even charter cities which are free 
from many other state requirements. A developer 
who meets the law's requirements for affordable 
or senior units is entitled to the density bonus and 
other assistance as of right, regardless of what the 
locality wants (subject to limited health and safety 
exceptions). The density bonus statute can be used 
to achieve reductions in development standards 
or the granting of concessions or incentives from 
jurisdictions that otherwise would not be inclined 
to grant those items. Examples might inctude a 
reduction in parking standards if those standards 
are deemed excessive by the developer, or other 
reductions in development standards if needed to 
achieve the totat density permitted by the density 
bonus. 

Developers who nonetheless encounter hostility 
from local jurisdictions are provided several lools 
to ensure that a required density banus is actually 
granled. Developers are ent~ 10 an informal 
meeting with a local jurisdiction which fails to modify 
a requested developmenl standard. If a developer 
successfully sues the locality 10 enforce the density 
bonus requirements. it is entitled to an award of its 
attomeys' fees . The obligation to pay a developer's 

"A developer who meets the law's 

requirements for affordable or senior units 

is entitled to the density bonus and other 

assistance as of right, regardless of what the 

locality wants .• 

altomeys' fees is a poweful incentive for local 
jurisdictions to voIuntanlt comply with the stale 

A DeIieklper's Guide to the Califomia Density Bonus law C 2012, Kronick Moskovitz. et at 

97 



~iI~ERENCE GUIDE 

law density bonus requirements, even when the 
jurisdiction is not in favor of its effects on the project. 

CEQA Issues in Density Bonus Projects 

Although there is no specific density bonus 
exemption from the California Environmental 
Quality Act, many density bonus projects are likely 
candidates for urban infill and affordable housing 
exemptions from CEQA. One commonly invoked 
exemption is the Class 32 urban infill exemption 
found in CEQA Guidelines Section 15332. That 
exemption is available if the project is consistent 

with applicable general plan designation and zoning, 
the sne is five acres or less and surrounded by 
urban uses, is not habitat for endangered, rare or 
threatened species, does not have any significant 
effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality or water 
quality. and is adequately served by utifities and 
pubrlC services. Other exemptions are available 
for high density housing projects near major transit 
stops (CECA Guidelines Section 15195) and 
affordable housing projects of up to 100 units (CECA 
Guidelines Section 15194). 

A recent case, I\bI/mer v. City of 8efkeley, clarified 
the use of the CECA infiD exemption for density 
bonus projeds. In that case. an opponent of a 
Berl<eIey density bonus project cha3enged the City's 
use of the urban infiD exemption on the grounds that 

( 

the City's modifications and waivers of development 
standards, as required under the density bonus 
law, meant that the project was not consistent with 
existing zoning. The court rejected that argument, 
finding that the modifications required by the 
density bonus law did not disqualify the project from 
claiming the exemption. 

Not all density bonus projects will qualify for one 
of these CEOA exemptions, however. Sometimes 
the additional density provided to non-exempt 
projects may bring the project out of the coverage 
of an existing CEOA approval for a general plan, 
specific plan or other larger project. For instance, if 
a previously approved environmental impact report 
analyzed a 100 unit project as the largest allowed 
under existing zoning, but the developer is able 
to qualify for 120 units with a density bonus, the 
existing EIR may not cover the larger project. The 
larger density bonus project may require additional 
CEQA analysis for approval. 

Using the Density Bonus to Satisfy 
Inclusionary Housing Requirements 

Many of California's cities and counties have 
adopted inclusionary housing ordinances, which 
typically require that a specified percentage of 
units in a new housing development be restricted 
as affordable units. The indusionary requ~nts 
significantly reduce income from rental units and 
sales prices of for-sale homes. In toclay's tight 
housing market. compliance with local inclusionary 
requirements may make many projects economically 
infeasible. The density bonus provides one method 
for developers to improve the economics of their 
project while stiD complying with the indt.cslonary 

A Developer's Guide to the Cartfomia Density Bonus Law Cl2012, Kronick MoskoviIz. et at .. 

98 



( 

~'1I~ERENCE GUIDE 

housing requirements. While there are some local 
agencies which believe that inclusionary units 
do not qualify for density bonuses, it is generally 
understood that the density bonus is intended by 
state law to be a powerful financial tool to help 
developers achieve the inclusionary housing 
requirements. 

"In today's tight housing market, compliance 

with local inclusionary requirements may 

make many projects economically infeasible. 

The density bonus provides one method 

for developers to improve the economics 

of their project while still complying with the 

inclusionary housing requirements .• 

Local inclusionary housing ordinances are currently 
in a state of uncertainty due to recent case law. 
One recent case, Pa/merlSixlh Street Properties, 
LP. v Ci/yofLosAngeles, 175 Cal. App. 4th 1396 
(2009), held that inclusionary housing requirements 
violate the Costa-Hawkins Act, which allows 
owners of residential rental housing to establish the 
initial rental rates for housing units without being 
subject to govemment rent limits. However. there 
are exceptions to the Costa-Hawkins rent control 
prohibition for developers who receive assistance 
under the density bonus law or who receive 
direct financial assistance from a public agency. 
Localities with indusionary housing ordinances may 
welcome a developer's use of the density bonus law 
because this will effectively prevent the developer 
from challenging the applcability of the inclusionary 
housing ordinance. 

Density Bonus - A Flexible Tool 

The Density Bonus Law can be a pOVierful tool 
for' a variety of ddferent types of development 
projects, whether they ate tracfltional affordab/e 
housing projec!s, predminantly market rate housing 

developments, or senior projects. Obtaining greater 
density can help the developer of any type of project 
bring costs and financing sources into line by putting 
more homes on the land, reducing the per unit land 
costs. Use of the favorable parking requirements 
can reduce the amount of costly land needed for 
parking. The incentives and concessions to be 
provided by the local government can provide a 
helpful way to modify development requirements 
which may stand in the way of a successful project. 
Of course there is a price to pay for these benefits 
- the affordable units needed to earn the density 
bonus. Each developer will need to make a cost
benefit determination whether the cost of compliance 
is worth the benefits. But the Density Bonus Law 
is unquestionably a useful option for housing 
developers trying to make financial sense of their 
projects in today's economy. 

Density Bonus Statutes 

Please refer to pages 11 through 16. 

A DewIoper's Guide to the California Density Bonus Law C 2012. Kronick Moskovitz, et aI. 

99 



( 

l\!~ERENCE GUIDE 

Density Bonus Statutes 

Government Code Sections 65915 
- 65918. EtfecUvo as of January 1, 
2012 

65915. (a> VvIlen an applicanl 
seeks a density bonus (or a housing 
development within. or for the donation 
of land (or housing within, the jurisdicUon 
of a dty. county. or city and county 
that local government shall provide the 
applicant with incentives or concessions 
for the production of housing units and 
child care facilities as prescribed in this 
section. All cities, counties. or cities 
and counties shall adopt an ordinance 
that spedfies how compWance with this 
section will be implemented. Failure 
to adopt an ordinance shall not relieve 
a city, county, or city and county from 
complying with this section. 

(b) (1) A city. county. or city and county 
shall grant one density bonus the 
amount of which shaH be as specified 
in subdiviSion (t), and incentives or 
concessions. as described in subdivision 
(d) when an applicant for a housing 
development seeks and agrees to 
construct a housing development. 
exctuding any uni~s permitted by the 
density bonus awarded pursuant to this 
section, that will contain at least any one 
of the following 

(A) Ten percent af the total units or a 
housOlg d<Nelotlmer>l 10< lower income 
households, as defined in Section 
50079.5 of the Health and Sarety Code. 

(6) FIVe pen:enI 01 tile lotal ln1s 01 
a housing development for very low 
income households. as delined in 
Section 501D5 01 the Health and salely 
Code. 

(Cl A senior ciIizen housing 
cIeveIopmerrt. as _ in Sections 
51.3 and 51.12 of the CiWCode. or m_ park IIlaI imils rv$dency 

based on.~forhousing 
for older pe<sans pur>ua11t 10 _ 

7!l8.10 or 799.5 of tile eMl Code. 

(0) Ten p<t<:I!t1I of the lola! cI\_ng 
units in a carrrnaI _ deIeIopment 

asdofnedin Sedion t3S1 01 the 
em Code lor -"' andlarmies 
of i l 1Cdts4b! ~ as defined in 
Section SOO93 of the _ _ Safe~J 

Code. provim.<! ttlat all units in II1e 

development are offered to the public 
(or purchase. 
(2) For purposes of calculating the 
amount of the density bonus pursuant 
to subdivision (f), the applicant who 
requests a density bonus pursuant to 
this subdivision shall elect whether the 
bonus shan be awarded on the basis 
01 subparagraph (A), (6) (C), or (0) of 
paragraph (1). 

(3) For the purposes of this section, 
Mtolal unitsR or -Iotal dwelling units~ does 
not include units added by a density 
bonus awarded pursuant to this section 
or any loea! law granting a greater 
density bonus. 

(e) (1) An applieanl shalt agree 10. and 
the city, county. or city and county shall 
ensure, continued affordability of all low. 
and very low income units that quatffied 
the applicant for the award of the density 
bonus for 30 years or a longer period of 
time if required by the construction or 
mortgage financing assistance program, 
mortgage insurance program, or rental 
subsidy program. Rents for the lower 
income density bonus units shall be 
set at an affordable rent as defined in 
Sedion 50053 of lhe Heallll and Safety 
Code. Owner-occupied unilS shal be 
available at an affordable housing cost 
as defined in Sedioo 50052.5 01 !he 
Heallll and Salety Code. 

(2) An applicant shall agree to , and 
!he city. county. or city and county 
shall ensure lhat. the initial OCDJpant 
af the moderate-tncame ooits that are 
diredJy related 10 !he receipl 01 tile 
density bonus in !he common interesl 
devekJpmanl as defined in Section 
1351 of !he CtviI Code, are penortS 
and families of moder.lU! income, as 
defined m Section SOO93 of !he Health 
and 5aIeIy Code. and lhal!he L<1ils are 
offete<! aI an affo_ hou$\'Ig cost. as 
thai cost is de!ined in Section SO!I52.5 
0Ithe _ _ 5aIeIyCode. The 

Joca/ ~ sIta!I enfo<ce an eqttIy 
wntg _01. unless ~ is in con:id 
with !he requiR>Mnb 01 ano:he< pJbIi: 
tJnding soun:e or to.< The fallowing 
applt to lI1e eqUty """*'9 agreement 

(A) Upon'-, !he seier 01 tile 
unit slta!lretaintte va!ue ct aery 
irT1Jl~. the dtM'n paymem.. 
and !he serer', pt"""' ...... shore 
of appreciation. The local gowrnrr>!!r>t 
_~acry_..mdy as 

( 

defined in subparagraph (8) and its 
proportionate share of appreCiation, 
as defined In subparagraph (C) which 
amount shan be used >Mlhin five years 
for any of the purposes described in 
subdivision (e) of Section 33334.2 of the 
Health and Safety Code that promote 
home ownership. 

(8) For purposes of this subdivision the 
local government's initial subsidy shall 
be equal to the fair market vatue of the 
home at the time of initial sale minus the 
initial sale price to the moderate-income 
household, plus the amount of any 
down payment assistance or mortgage 
assistance. If upon resaJe the market 
value ts lower than the initial market 
vatue, then the value at the time of Ihe 
resale shaft be used as the Initial market 
value. 

(C) For purposes of this subdivision. the 
local government's proportionate share 
of appreciation shall be equal 10 the ratio 
of the locat government's initial subsidy 
to the fair market value of the home at 
the time of initia1 sale. 

(d) (1) An applicanl for a density bonus 
pursuant 10 subdj'lision (b) may submit 
to • city, counIy or CIty and county a 
proposal for the specific incentives 
or concessions lIlat the applicanl 
requests pursuant 10 Ihis section. and 
may requesl a meebng with IIle city. 
county. or city and county. The city. 
coon\y, or city and county ,hal granl the 
concession or incentive ~ed by 
the appUcanl L<1less lI1e city. aJUlty. OJ 
city and county makes a written &.ding. 
based upon S<JIlslanbal e.idcI1ce. of any 
oflhe _ ng 

(A) The concession or incentive tS na1 
requOed in oJ1ler to pmvide lor ""_ 
housing COSIs, as demed in Sedion 
SOO5L5 01 tile Heallh and Safely Code. 
or lor rents lor !he I3rgoeti!d units to be 
set as specilied in _ (e). 

(6) The c:onoossion or ~ """,d 
have a spea5e adIIene impod. 2S 
_ in_h(2) afUllivisilm 
\d) of Section Ss"Cl9.5 uparr pr.rerlC 
hea:r. and safely or Ihec p/ly5i<3 
en'Jironme<t or on ""y real prupert)I 
_Is _ in lire Wforma RegisIer of 
HislDricaf Re5<utes am! Ior..nctr u..re 
is no feasible _to ,",,~ 

mitigale or ""aid lIle speciIic 
-... impact wilh01Jt renderi"!J !he 

A Developer's Guide to the California Density Bonus Law «> 2012. Kronick Moskovilz, et al m 
100 



( 

l\~~ERENCE GUIDE 

development unaffordable to IIr .. v- and 
moderate-Income households. 

(C) The concession or incentive would 
be contrary to slale or federal law. 

(2) The applicant shall receive the 
following number of incentives or 
concessions · 

(A) One incentive or concessIon for 
projects that indude at least 10 percent 
of lhe total units for lower income 
households at least 5 percent for very 
low income households or alleas! 
10 percent for persons and families of 
moderate income in a common interest 
development. 

(8) Two Incentives or concessions for 
projects thai Include al leasl 20 percenl 
of the total units for lower income 
households. at leasl10 percent for 
very tow income households, or at least 
20 percent for persons and families of 
moderate income to a common interest 
development 

(C) Three incentives or concessions for 
projects thai mclude al leasl 30 per<:enl 
of the lotal units for 1000lef income 
households. at leasl15 percent for 
very low income households. or at least 
30 percent for persons and fami~es of 
mod«ate income in a common interest 
development. 

13) The appic;anl may iniliale judicial 
proceedings if the city. county. Of city 
and county ",fuses to grant • _led 
~ bonus.lncenIive. Of..".,...;on. 
N a aut mds thai the refusal to grant a 
requesIe<I density bonus incentive. or 
c:anc:ession is in violation of this section, 
the aut shaII""JlIId the plaintil! 
rusonabIe atIO<ne(s fees and costs of 
su:L Nothing in tI1is _ shall be 

~ ID require alocal-""""" 
to grant an incerti¥e or cooc:es$on 
that has a speaftc. iICIYeIw impact as 
_ in parag:aph (2) of subciuisial 

IdJ of5edicn 65589.5. upon_. 
sa!e!y. or the phySlCi!l ~ and 
IbrYhthIl1ere is flO feas;bIe_ 
ID d " , r'f1 rnitigala or awid the 
speo~c -... imI=t- NotI1ir1g lIT 
\IllS __ shall be~ ID 
_ a _ gD\Pelm'<!nt ID grant an 

~ or canc:ession that WOI..dd: haw 
an ad' ...... Jmpact on any """ property 
tim is !sled in the caJli:Jmi3 ~ 
ofHislDrical ~ The city. 

county. or city and county shall establish 
procedures for carrying out this section. 
that shall include legislative body 
approval of the means of compliance 
with this section. 

(e) (1) In no case maya city. county, or 
city and county apply any development 
standard that wiU have the effect of 
physically precluding the conslNcUon 
of a development meeting the criteria of 
subdivision (b) at the densities or with 
the concessions or Incentives permitted 
by this section, An applicant may submit 
10 a clly. county. or city and counly a 
proposal for the waiver or reduction of 
development standards that will have 
the effecl of physically precluding the 
construction or a development meeting 
the Clileria of subctvision (b) at 1he 
densities or with the concessions 01 
incentives permitted under this section, 
and may request a meeting with the 
cily. county, or city and county. If a court 
finds that the refusal to grant a waiver Of 

reduction of development standards is 
in violation of this section, the court shall 
award the plaintiff reasonable attorney's 
fees and costs of suit. Nothing in this 
subdivision shaf! be interpreted to 
require a local govenvnenllo waive 
Of reduce development standards if 
the waiver or reduction woukt have a 
specifiC. adverse impact, as defined 
in paragraph (2) of _sian (d) of 
Section 65589.5. upon heanh. safety. 
or the physical enYirorvnent and for 
which there is no feasible method 
to salisfadoriy mitigate or avoid the 
specific adIIerse irf'Clad- NoIIIing in 
this subdivision .haII be inle<preted to 
require a local govemnent to waNe 
or reduce deYeIopnenl standards 
trial wootd have an adverse inlpad 
on any real property thai is listed in 
the Ca/ifornia R..'"!js!e< of Historical 
Resources. or 10 grant my .....", or 
redudion thai would be """""'Y to state 
or fe<ler.ll taw. 

12)A~ for thewaiwr or 
reduction of deYeIapment __ 
pu:suant 1D!tis _ shaII_ 
reduce nor i1crea:se the runber of 
inc:etQves or concessions to wt\idl 
the appiCi!n\ is _ ~ ID 

- (d). 

In For the _ of ths chapte< 

"densily bonus' means a densiIy 
inaea:se O'c'ef' Ite a!'oa MK ~ 
_ _ ~as~the 

( 

date or application by the apphcanllo 
the city county or city and county. The 
applicant may elect to accept a lesser 
percentage of dens ty bonus, The 
amount of density bonus to whtch the 
applicant Is entitled shall vary according 
to the amount by which the percentage 
of affordable housing units exceeds the 
percentage established In subdivision 
Ib). 

(1) For housing developments meeting 
the criteria of subparagraph (A) of 
paragraph 11) of subdivision (b). Ihe 
density bonus shall be calculated as 
follows ' 

Percentaee Percentage 
~ ilenaII¥ 

ibis -10 20 

11 21.5 

12 23 

13 24.5 

14 26 

15 27.5 

17 30.5 

18 32 

19 335 

20 35 

12) For hoosIng developments meeting 
the aileria of sullparagraph IB) of 
paragraph 11) of subdMsion Ib~ the 
density booos shall be caIalaled as 
folio ... " 

Rec~ ~ -:!IIro 
~ 

5 20 

6 22.5 

7 25 

8 27~ 

9 311 

10 32.5 

11 35 

P I For I10tIsIng _opnets rtI<!I!IIng 
theae:.. at~(C) of 
-""" (1) of _ (II). the 
density txlrlJs shall be 20 _ of the 

TU'TII.:er at senior' ~ W'Ii!s. 

A Dewloper's Guide III the CafJfumia Density Bonus law Cl2012, Kronick MosI<ovitz. et aI. 

101 



( 

l\~hRENCE GUIDE 

(4) For housing developments meeting 
the criteria of subparagraph (0) of 
paragraph (1) 01 subdivision (b) , the 
density bonus shall be calculated as 
lallows' 

- age """,,"tage 
Moclerafllo. lncome Only 

Units Bonus 
10 5 

11 6 

12 7 

13 8 

14 9 

15 10 

16 11 

17 12 

18 13 

19 14 

20 15 

21 16 

22 17 

23 18 

24 19 

25 20 

26 21 

27 22 

28 23 

29 24 

30 25 

31 26 

32 27 

33 28 

34 29 

35 30 

36 31 

37 32 

38 33 

39 34 

40 35 

(5) AI cIen5iIy """,_ ~ in 
hr::tlonaI units shall be roUl'lded up to 
ltD> m!lIt v./lole rumtIer. The gr.onIJng of 
a dens<ty bonus shall not be i ... ",C\IOI1 
in am ofilselJ. In ~ a ge'II!r.II 
plan ~ IacaI ccastalplan 

amendment. zoning change, or other 
discretionary approval , 

(9) (1) When an appl 'eant lor a tentative 
subdMskm map. parret map, or other 
residential development approval 
donates land to a city county, or city 
and county in accordance with this 
subdivision. the applicant shall be 
entitled to a 15-percenllncrease above 
the otheMse maximum aUowable 
residential density for the entire 
development, as follows 

Pefcenlatle Pert:enlage 
VaryLwltnoome o.nsuy 

BerUI 

10 15 

11 16 

12 17 

13 18 

14 19 

15 20 

16 21 

17 22 

18 23 

19 24 

20 25 

21 26 

22 27 

23 28 

24 29 

25 30 

26 31 

27 32 

28 33 

29 34 

30 35 

(2) This ~ shall be in ad<f!ion 
to any _in-.;ty_ 
by sulxivision (b). up to a m.Dimum 
contline<IlIIiInCIa!ed <IenSitt _ 
of 35 penznt if an opplQnI seeks 
an irlaease p_1n both this 
_aml"-(b). 
AB denstyealaA!!cns ~In 
hdIonaI umts sholl be rounded up 
In IIie next """"..-. NoII1in!! in 
tIIis"-"""" sItiIII be o:JnOINI!d lEI 
~ arclnDsb Ihe~ of 
a city county. or city and county lEI 

( 

require a developer to donate land as a 
condition of development An applicant 
shall be eligible for the Increased density 
bonus described in this subdivision if aU 
of the foUawing conditions are met; 

(A) The applicant donates and transfers 
the land no Jater than the date of 
approval of the final subdiYislon map, 
parcel map 0( resldentlBl development 
application 

(8) The developable acreage and 
zoning dassification of the land being 
transferred are sufficient to permit 
construction of units affordable to very 
low income households in an amount 
not less than 10 percent of the number 
of residential units of lhe proposed 
development 

(C) The transferred land is at least one 
acre in size or of sufficient size to permit 
development of at least 40 units, has the 
appropriate genera! plan designation. 
is appropriately ZtlOed with appropliate 
development standards for development 
at the density desaibed in paragraph 
(3) 01 subdivision (e) 01 Section 65583.2, 
and is Of win be served by adequate 
public facilities and infrasbudLKe. 

(0) The translerred land shall have aD 
of the permits and approvals . other 
lhan building permits neces5aly for the 
development or the very low inmme 
housing lrIits on the transferred land. 
not later than the date of approval of 
the finat subdivision map patQ!I map. 
or residential development appIicaUon. 
exceplll1a. the local govetm1efll rr8f 
subject the proposed deoeIopment to 
subsequent design review to the exlenl 
authorized by subdivision (0) of Section 
65583211 the design I. not ""_ by 
the local g""""""", poor to IIie time 0/ 
trans/ef 

(E) The transferred Ia1d _ tile 
._ units sha!l be SU>jed lEI • 
deed restrdlcn eos.ing 0l0l!inued 
atlmiability al the trib wtSistl!i¢ with 
paragraphs (I) and (2) 0/_ 
(e), w!id1 sha!l be II!CIlftIed on the 
IIf'IP'!'IY at the time of "" 1r.!nsfeI". 

(F) The land is _ lEI the local 
.agertqr or to a hausi"IJ de\; e' 1 
opprtllled by the __ • The 

lacal_ fTf21 """"'" the ~ 
In ~ and trons. .... the _ to· the 

~"" 

A Developer's Guide to the California Density Bonus UIw 4) 2012, Kronick Moskovitz, et at m 
102 



( 

l\'1!FERENCE GUIDE 

(G) The transferred land shall be 
within lhe boundary of \he proposed 
development or. If the local agency 
agrees within one-quarter mile of the 
boundary of the proposed development 

(H) A proposed source of fund n9 for the 
very low income units shall be identified 
not later than the date of approval of the 
final subdivision map, parcel map. or 
residential development application. 

(h) (1) When an applicant Pfoposes 
to construd a housing development 
that conforms to the requirements of 
subdivision (b) and indudes a child 
care facility that wiU be localed on the 
premises of. as part of. Of' adjacent to. 
Ihe project. \he cily. counly. or cily and 
county shall grant either of the following 

(A) An additional density bonus that is 
an amount of square feel of residential 
space that is equal to or greater than the 
amount of square feet in the child care 
facil ly 

(6) ArI additional concession or incentive 
that contributes significantly to the 
economic feasibility of the construction 
of \he child co", facihly. 

(2) The cily. county or cily and counly 
shaD require. as a cond~n of approving 
the housing development. that the 
foRowing occur: 

(A) The child care faality shal remain in 
operation for a period of time that is as 
long as or IOngef than \he porio<f of bme 
during ...mk:h the density bonus units are 
req\ifed to remain arfordab4e pursuant to 
subdMsion (c). 

(8) Of \he c:IliIdren """ a\tend \he 
~ care facZIy_ the chid<en of vet)' 
\ow InCOme toouseIIcIds. _ _ 
1Ioosoho1ds, or _ of mcde<aIe 
income shaff equal a ~ \hat is 
equal '" or g<e.ale< \han the pera!IUge 
of <Io/eIing totils _ .... ~ 
for vet)' la.v income households _ n:ame hauseho\r:!$. 01'_ 
of~_~tn 

_~(b) 

(3) """"will. to d" .. ""f ~ 
at Ihrs IP trt"WOh. a cit1. aJUI'It)I. or a 
city and COU1Iy sIiaI not be requO'e<! ID 

P'tMde a """'"'" bcl1Us or """""""" for a chiI:I cae facility if ( f[nfs . !=eel 
u;ron..e_ ..-.:e. lhal the 

commun.ty has adequate child care 
facilities. 

(4) ~Chr.d care facility," as used In this 
section, means a child day care facility 
other than a family day care home, 
Including but not limited to, Infant 
centers preschools extended day 
care faciWes and schoolage child care 
centers 

(i) ~Houslng development." a, used 
in this sedion, means a development 
project for five or more residentlal 
units. For the purposes of this section. 
'"housing developmenf also indudes 
a subdivision or common interest 
development. as defined to Section 
1351 oflhe Civil Code. approved 
by a city, county or city and county 
and consists of residential units or 
unimproved res;c!ent~1 tots and either a 
project (0 subslanlially rehabilitate and 
convert an existing commercial building 
to residential use or the substantial 
rehab'litabon of an exis6ng mtJtifamily 
dweillng. as defined In subdivision (d) 
of Section 65863.4. where the resuh 
of the rehabilitation would be a net 
UlC1ease in avaUabte residential units. 
For the purpose of calculating a density 
bonus. the residential units shan be on 
contiguous sites that are the subject of 
one develoPfOOOI application but do 
not have to be based upon individual 
subdivision maps or parcels. The 
density borws shall be permitted 
;n geographic areas of \he hotJsing 
development other than the areas 
where the units for the lower income 
households are Iocated_ 

(j) The gl'CU'tOOg of a conceSSion or 
incenti\oe shaD not be interpreted, 
in and 01 itself. to requere a general 
plan amendment. local coastal plan 
3iileldmeilt.. zoning change. or other 
disaetionaty apprOV3l. This pro,,,,,,," is 
deci""""'Y of .,.;m,g faw_ 

Ik) For \he fl'IPO""" of II1is chapte< 
aw::esion ar incentive means any of 
lite /oIIcwing' 

(I) A redudion in _ ~ 
s:an:f.aI<Is or a madificaOon of lXlning 
code ~ aT arct'dI!!cIuraf 
cfeSogn __ /hat exceed /he 
minimum buiIdic1g _ appt<M!<! 

by \he CaI'f<ma BtliIding_ 
Camrm.-. aslJ"O'lided in Part 2.5 
(W ,,,.....ong wt1h Sedion 18!lO1) of 

( 

Division 13 of the Health and Safety 
Code, including but nollimiled to, 
a reduction In setback and square 
footage requirements and in the ratiO 
of vehicular parking spaces that would 
olherwtse be required thai results in 
identifiable. financially sufficient, and 
actual cost reductions, 

(Z) Approval of mixed use zoning In 
conjunction wtth the housing project 
If commercial, office, industrial, or 
other land uses will reduce the cost 
of lhe housing developmenl and if 
the commercial, office, industrial. or 
other land uses are compatible with 
the housing project and the existing or 
plaMed development In the area where 
the proposed housing project will be 
located. 

(3) Other regulatory Incentives or 
concessions proposed by Ihe developer 
or the city. county, or city and county 
that result in identifiable. financially 
sufficient. and adual cost reductions, 

(I) Subdivision (k) does nol limil or 
require the provislon of direct financial 
incenHves for the housmg devetopment 
including the provision of publicty 
owned /and. by \he cily counly or city 
and county or Ihe waiver of fees or 
dedication requirements 

(m) Nolliing in \his secboo shall be 
construed to supersede or i1 any 'WaY 
alter or lessen the efrect or appicalion 
of \he California Coastal M (DMsian 20 
(convnencing willi Sedion 30000) of the 
Public Resources c_). 

(n) If pemilted by local OnWlance. 
nalhing in \his secbon sIiaI be 
amstrued 10 p<nhiI)H a city_ ~. or 
city and county fran grantng a <1!nsiy 
bonus great..- \han wliallS _ o<I 
in this section br a de _lEnt that 
meets the requit_ oIl1iis sedian 
or fran wanr<ng a p~_ 

do!nsitt baoos \han whalis ......... "" 
by /his sedian "'" dovefapmen!O \hat 
cia nol meet \he requiremenIs oIlhis 
seam. 
(0) For pl.<lflOSeS d \hi:s _ llie 
Jtilowing deInitia1s shall iJIiI'Iy-

(f) "O""""",ment -.r mcfudes a * or QlOSInidIan anIi1fon. lndlJding. 
butnol itrited \D. a height _ on. a 
s.eIIiacIc ~ a ft...- area ratio. 

A Dewloper's Guide to /he Califomia Density Bonus Law 0 2012, Kronick MoskoviIz. et 31_ 

103 



( 

i\~~ERENCE GUIDE 

an onsile open-space requiremen.t. or a 
parking ralio that applies to a resldenllal 
development pursuant to any ord,nance. 
general plan element. specific. plan, 
charter. or other local condition, law 
policy. resolution. or regulation. 

(2) "Maximum allowable resldentlal 
density" means the density aUovted 
under the zoning ordinance and land 
use element of the general plan or if 
a range of density is permitted. means 
the maximum aUowabfe density for the 
specific zoning range and land use 
element of the general plan applicable 
10 !he project Where !he densily 
anowed under the zoning ordinance is 
inconsistent with the density allowed 
under the land use element of the 
general plan, the general plan density 
shall prevail. 

(p) (I) Upon !he requesl of lhe 
developer. no city, county. or city 
and county shall require a vehicular 
parking ratio, inclusive of handicapped 
and guest parking, of a development 
meeling the ailena of subdivision (b). 
thai exceeds the following ratios_ 

(A) Zero to one bedroom- one onsite 
parking space 

(8) Two 10 three bedrooms. two onsite 
parI<ing spaces. 

(C) Four and more bedrooms: two CWld 
one-hall paoong spaces. 

(2) If !he Iotal numbe< of partcing spaces 
required lor a deveIopmenl is oIher than 
a whole runbet, the mmber shall be 
rounded up 10 the next whole ....-. 
For purpo:ses of this subdMsion. a 
deveIopmenI may prcMde "onsi!e 
parmg' Ihrou!lh tandem partcirq or 

""""""'" parlOng. b<Jl not II1rough 
onstreel pattdng 

(3) n-. _ shall iIIlI'IY 
to a d..-.eIopmeI4 thal mee!s the 
II!qUiremen!s of_ (b) but 
only at the __ of the "I¢:anl 
Plt app\c;D1I may request paft<irq 
0ICeI1!ives ar ooocesslan$ beJon:I lime 
prooided in II1is _ p&.IW3'1IlD 

subIl"""'(eI). 

65!t1~ (0) When an applicant til" 
~1D~~lDa 
~ prtljed qees III provide 
or least 33 ~ of the tntilllOlils 

of the proposed condominium project 
to persons and families of low or 
moderate income as defined In Section 
50093 of Ihe Heallh and Safely Code. 
or 15 percent of the total units of the 
proposed condominium project to 
lower income households as defined 
in Secllon 50019.5 of Ihe Heallh and 
Safely Code. and agrees 10 pay for lhe 
reasonabty necessary administrative 
costs incurred by a city, county or city 
and county pursuant to this section 
!he dly. counly. or dly and county shall 
ellher (1) granl a density bonus or (2) 
provide other incentives of equivalent 
financial value. A city. county. or ety 
and county may place such reasonable 
conditions on the granting of a density 
bonus or other Incentives of equivalent 
financial value as it finds appropriate. 
including, but not limited to, conditions 
which assure continued affordability of 
units to subsequent purchasers who 
are persons and families of low and 
moderate income or lower income 
househokjs_ 

(b) For purposes of this section. -density 
bonus~ means an increase in units of 25 
percent over the number of apartments, 
to be provided within the existing 
strudure or strudures proposed for 
conversion. 

(c) For purposes of this section. ·other 
incentives of equivalent financial vatue~ 
shall not be construed to require a city. 
county. or city and county to provide 
cash transfer payments or other 
monetary compensa~on bu1 may include 
the reduction or waiver of requirements 
wIlich !he dIy. counly. or dIy and county 
might otherwise appty as conditions of 
conversion approval. 

(eI) Plt ~ tor approvallD_ 
ap811men1s to a coodo""'um project 
may .-to a dIy county. or dIy 2Ild 
county a preImir1a.y proposal puISU31It 
ID this s«Iion prior 10 the SI1JmiI!aJ of 
any farmaI n!qUeSb tor sutxlvision map 
_m. The ciIy cnunIy. or city and 
county sh2II, wiII1in SO days of Il!Ceipt of 
a _ propos.al. notify the applicant 
in ~ of the manner in which it 
will ~.nth II1is SOdion- The dIy. 
aJIriy. or dty and ca.ny sha! _Iish 
prot2d<ns tor carrying aut II1is __ 
which ohaII_1egistI!iIIe body 
appu,aloflhe_or~ 
,.;u, !tis sed!on. 

( 

(e) Nothing in this section shall be 
construed to require a city. county or 
city and county to approve a proposal to 
convert apartments to condominiums , 

(Q An applicanl shall be ineligible for a 
density bonus or other Incentives under 
this section if the apartments proposed 
for conversion constitute a housing 
development for which a density bonus 
or other incentives were provided under 
Section 65915. 

65916. v.Jhere there is a direct financial 
contribution to a housing development 
pursuanllo Section 65915lhrough 
participation in cost of infrastructure, 
write-down of land costs, or subsidizing 
the cost of construction. the city 
county, or city and county shan assure 
continued availability for low- and 
moderate-income units for 30 years. 
Wlen appropriate, the agreement 
provided for in Section 65915 shall 
specify the mechanisms and p10cedures 
necessary to carry out this section 

65917. In enacting this chapter il is 
!he intent of the Legislalure 11181 !he 
density bonus or other incentives 
oWered by lI1e dly. counly or dIy and 
counly pursuanllo this chapler shaD 
contribute significantly to the economic 
feasibility of Io\..-er income housing in 
proposed hoUSIng developments. In 
the abs..,." of an ag_l by a 
developer in accordance with Secbon 
65915. alocaily shall not oller a dens.1y 
bonos or MY _ incentiYe that woukI 
undennine the intent of this chapl .... 

65917.5 (0) As us«! in !tis secIlon. !he 
f1lIIowing tenns shaD have the _ ng 
1Ile<ir1ings: 

(l)"Chiid care faoiIy' means a faOfiIy 
r.slaIIe<I. Oper.!led. and_ 
I.01der this section tor the norvesi<lenIraI 
care of children as define<! under 
app"colM sia." toensing ~ 
til" the fadily. 

(2) 'Oensi!y bon.Js' means a !foer 
area ratio bonus CNe'" ttle C\ttIenrG:so! nmimtJm......- <Ien5ity pemtitted 
un:Ies' the III¢r""'" zoning ardinant2 
and land use elements of !he general 
plan of a dIy. indIJding a charier cily. 
dIii anti CXIUI'It1. or county of. 

(A) A maimlm of 1M> """"'"' fi:e!: of 
Waor area til" each one """"" foat of 

A Developer's Guide IXlIhe California Density Bonus Law 0 2012, Kronick MoskoIIitz. et aI. 

104 



( 

ftT~ERENCE GUIDE 

noor area contained to the ch;1d care 
facility for existing structures. 

(a) A maximum of 10 square feet atnaor 
area (or eath one square fOOl of noor 
area contained In the child care facility 
for new structures. For purposes of 
calculating the density bonus under this 
section both Indoor and outdoor square 
footage requirements for the child care 
facility as set forth In appNcabie slale 
child care licensing requirements shall 
be induded In the noor area of the child 
care facility. 

(3) ~Developer- means the CYmef or 
other person. Including a lessee. having 
the right under the applicable zoning 
ordinance of a city council , induding 
a charter city council. city and county 
board of supervisors. or county board 
of supervisors to make an application 
for development approvals for the 
development or redevelopment of a 
commercial Of industrial project 

(4) -Floor area· means as to a 
commercial or industrial project, the 
floor area as calculated under the 
applicable zoning ardinance of a city 
counol including a charter dty council. 
city and county board of supervisors 
or county board of supervisors and as 
to a chiJd care facility. the total area 
CXIl1!ained wit/1in lhe ex1e<ior YI.is 011he 
faa&ty and al outdoor areas devoted 
to the use of the facility in accordance 
wi1h applicable slale child care licensing 
requiremenlS. 

(b) A city coondI. indOOng a charter 
cily co..,ciI . city and counly board 
01 _ "". or COUJ11y board of 
supeMsots may es1abish a procedun! 
by adnance ta ~a ~ol 
a _ or imluslrial proiect 

containing al1easlSO.000 """"" leel 
oilloor area. a density bonus.men 
1hat ~ has set aside alleast 
2.000 sq ...... feel at IIoor area and 
3.000 Otaloor square feel 10 be used 
for a ~ care fac6tv. The ~ of. 
bonus shall not flI'ldoX!e a city _ , 
irI:Ufng a _ city C<lU'1Ci. city and 
ooun1y _ of~ orawnty 

board ol~ fnlm imposing 
neceooaty oondilicns on 1he project 
01 an 1he _ square boQga 
Prqeas CQtI51rucIed umer this IO!dim 
5ha!I ariarm 10 """7>t. _ !at 

Ql\EJ iigId'_ ~ re.1ew. site 
pIan~. rees. cNrges. ando1l1er 

health. safety. and zoning requirements 
generally applicable to construction 
In the zone in which the property Is 
localed. A consortium with more than 
one developer may be permiHed to 
achieve the threshold amount for the 
available density bonus with each 
developer's densily bonus equal to 
the percentage participation of the 
devefoper. This 'aci~ty may be kJcaled 
on the project site or may be kJcaled 
offsite as agreed upon by lhe developer 
and local agency. If the child care 
faci~ty is nollocated on the site of the 
pro;ect. the local agency shall determine 
whether the location of the child care 
facility is appropriate and whether it 
conforms with the intent of this section. 
The child care facility shall be of a 
size to comply with all state ~censing 
requirements In order to accommodate 
at least 40 children. 

(c) The developer may operate the child 
care faci1ity rtself or may contract \vith a 
licensed child care provider 10 operate 
the facility. In all cases, the developer 
shall show ongoing coordltlation with 
a local child care resource and referral 
network or local governmental child care 
coordinator in order to qualify for the 
density bonus, 

(d) If the developer uses space alkJcated 
for child case facility putpOSe5 in 
accordance with subdivision (b) for 
purposes other than for a chUd care 
facility, an asseMment based on the 
square toolage of 1he project may be 
levied and collected by 1he city council. 
including a charter city council, cily and 
county board at sl.4)ervisors, or coooty 
board of s~ The assessment 
shall be consislenl";th 1he maI1atI 
value of the space. II the developer 
fails to have 1he space aIocaled Ia< 1he 
chit! care facilily within three yeatS. 
fnlm the date upan which 1he first 
IilrT1pOIa:y certitica1e 0/ 0C0Jpar1Gy IS 

granted. an assessmen1 based on the 
_ foolage of the project may be 

levied and cDIecred by 1he city council. 
ilQJding a charter city council city and 
coon1y board oI.lll"""""". Of coon1y 
board ofSl4l""""'" in ao:onfance 
wi1h p<OQ!dures 10 be <Io!veIop!d by 
the ~ body 01 the city council 
incUIing a charter city council, ciIy and 

""""" boattI of s.;>enrisor>. or cocrty 
boatd.o(~ The t b tt 

shall be cooSslent ""'" 1he marl<et va/ue 
of the space. Aponaly _ aga:'ns! 

( 

a consortium of developers shall be 
charged 10 eactl developer in an amount 
equal to the developer's percentage 
square feet participation. Funds 
collected pursuant to this subd;vision 
shall be deposited by the city council, 
including a charter city council, city 
and county board of supervisors, or 
county board of supervisors into a 
special account to be used for chUd care 
services or child care facililies, 

(e) Once Ihe child care facility has been 
established, prior to the dosure. change 
In use, or reduction in the physical stze 
of, the facHily. the city, cily council. 
induding a charter city council. city and 
county board of superviSOrs, or county 
board of supervisors shall be required 
10 make. finding Ihal1he need 10( 
chiJd !:are is no longer present, or is nol 
present to the same degree as It was at 
the time the facility was established. 

(~ The reqLliremenls of Chapter 5 
(commencing wi1h Section 66000) and 
of the amendments made 10 Sections 
5JOn, 54997, and 54998 by Chapler 
100201 the 5latules of 1987 shall nol 
apply to actions taken in accordance 
With this section. 

(g) This section shall not apply 10 a 
voter-approved ordinance adopted by 
referendum or initiative_ 

65918. The provisions of thIS chapter 
shaD apply 10 charter cities 

A Oe\lelq>er's Guide to (he Califomia Density Bonus law C 2012, Kronick MosI<ovitz, at aL 

105 ~ 



~ 
0002675 

0002676 

0002645 
0002677 

0002701 
0002702 
0002678 
0002703 
0002679 
0002647 
0002720 

0002648 
0002680 

0002704 

0002681 

0002721 

0002674 
0002649 

0002705 

0002650 
0002651 

0002706 
0002722 

..... 
o 
en 

Dale 

4/10/2014 

4/10/2014 

4/03/2014 
4/1012014 

4/18/2014 
4/1812014 
4/10/2014 
4/18/2014 
4/1012014 
4/03/2014 
4129/2014 

4/0312014 
411012014 

4/18/2014 

4/1012014 

4/29/2014 

4/0312014 
4103/2014 

4/18/2014 

410312014 
4/03/2014 

4/1812014 
4/29/2014 

~ 
(0576) 101 AUTO PARTS 

(4109) ACCESS HUMBOLDT 

(0000) ADVANTAGE FINANCIAL SERVICES 
(2203) AESTHETIC DESIGN & PHOTOGRAPHY 

(5443) AIRGAS USA, LLC 
)2247) ANTHEM BLUE CROSS 
(2224) AQUA BEN CORPORATION 
(5573) AQUAFIX 
(3975) AT&T - 5709 
(5528) AVERY ASSOCIATES, INC 
(2237) BANK OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD 

(2240) BAY WEST SUPPLY,INC. 
(3604) STEPHANIE N BEAUCHAINE 

(4892) KEVIN T CALDWELL 

(4603) CALIF. BUILDING STANDARDS COMMISSION 

(4937) CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
(3355) CALIFORNIA DEPT. OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
(2261) CALIFORNIA STATE DISB UNIT 

(2261) CALIFORNIA STATE DlSB UNIT 

(2277) CAMPTON ELECTRIC SUPPLY 
(5330) CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 

(5330( CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 
(2285) CC MARKET {I} 

Description Check 1 Pamlenl 
2 WIPER BLADES FOR 2004 FORO TRUCK 174.90 
12 QTS 10W30 OIL, GASKETMIRACLE WIPE, BULB,AI 
PARK & TURN SIGNAL FOR 1993 GMC SONOMA 
TRUCK 
FILE, SPRAY GREASE, REO N TA 
2 HOOKS 
ON BEHALF OF LFAs PER AGREEMENT OF JUNE I , 270,00 
20 
MONTHLY PAYMENT FOR DOCSTAR 3.12 148.35 
CREATING AND UPDATING PDF FILES, UPDATES TO 20.00 
P 
CYLINDER RENTAL 16.64 
HEALTH INSURANCE FOR MAY 2014 16,394.00 
CHEMICALS 598.56 
200# FILAMENT BUSTER. 60# VITASTIM LOW F:M, 1 3,036.47 
PHONE EXPENSES FOR MARCH 2014 530.51 
HIRING COSTS FOR NEW CITY MANAGER 4,720.75 
GOTOMYPC MONTHLY PAYMENT 788.02 
AMAZON.COM - MIGHTY MULE DIGITAL KEYPAD FOR 
T 
AMAZON.COM - RETURNED MIGHTY MULE DIGITAL 
KEY 
AMAZON.COM - MIGHTY MULE BULLDOG 
3 CASES PAPER TOWELS, 2 CASES BATH TISSUE 277.52 
FINANCE CONSULTANT - MILEAGE, PER DIEM 622.29 
LODGI 
MILEAGE, PER DIEM & LODGING FOR CODE 838.80 
ENFORCEM 
PERMIT ASSESSMENT FEES FOR OCTOBER 72.00 
THROUGH DE 
PERMIT ASSESSMENT FEES FOR JANUARY 
THROUGHMA 
SIGNALS & LIGHTING FOR JANUARY 2014 THROUGH 617.52 
M 
WATER SYSTEM FEES: JULY I, 2013 - DEC 31 , 201 1,216.00 
GARNISHMEENT CASE #200000001183524 FOR PPE 81.69 
31 
GARNISHMENT CASE #200000001183524 FOR PPE 81 .69 
4/4 
2GRT EXTRING 4-1/2 HUBS. 112 X 3/4 MALL ENLAR 13.52 
2 OFFICE CHAIRS FOR WATER & WASTEWATER 239.19 
SUPER 
48 PK AAA BATTERIES 16.77 
BLEACH 15.85 



Check 

0002682 

0002652 
0002707 
0002653 
0002654 

0002683 
0002684 

0002685 

0002642 
0002686 
0002887 
0002688 

0002689 
0002690 
0002723 
0002724 

0002708 
0002725 
0002691 
0002709 

0002710 

0002656 
0002711 

..... 
o 
-.J 

Date 

4/10/2014 

4/0312014 
4/18/2014 
4/03/2014 
4/0312014 

4/10/2014 
4/10/2014 

4110/2014 

4/02/2014 
4/1012014 
4/10/2014 
4/10/2014 

4/10/2014 
4/10/2014 
4/29/2014 
4/2912014 

4/18/2014 
4/29/2014 
4/1012014 
4/18/2014 

4/18/2014 

4103/2014 
4/18/2014 

«. 
=~Io"'-"' ''- ''--~.;:'f '-'I,.' . .k.....,.,~t._:;:;,;~ 

US Bank of California 
"'-

Vendor Description Check 1 Pal/!!!ont 
[2293) CITY OF FORTUNA POLICE DISPATCH SERVICES FOR APRIL 2014 3,442.00 

LAB TESTING SERVICES FOR JANUARY - MARCH 
2014 

[2303) COAST CENTRAL CREOIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 3/27/2014 120.00 
[2303) COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION PDA DUES FOR PPE 4/412014 120.00 
[3461) CRIMESTAR CORPORATION ANNUAL SUPPORT RENEWAL 1,500.00 
[2411) DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE LIFE INSURANCE FOR APRIL 2014 232.00 
COMPANY 
[5127) DELTA DENTAL DENTAL INSURANCE FOR MAY 2014 1,947.68 
[2342) DEPT OF CONSERVATION DIVISION OF ADMIN. STRONG MOTION INSTRUMENTATION & SEISMIC 152.48 

HAZAR 
STRONG MOTION INSTRUMENTATION & SEISMIC 
HAZAR 

[5568) DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT DISABILITY ACCESS & EDUCATION FEE REPORT 72.60 
FOR 
DISABILITY ACCESS & EDUCATION FEES FOR APRIL 
DISABILITY ACCESS & EDUCATION FEES FOR JULY T 
DISABILITY ACCESS & EDUCATION FEES FOR 
OCTOBE 

[2366) EEL RIVER DISPOSAL INC GARBAGE BAGS FOR MARCH 2014 544.20 
[4318) DUSTIN ELWAY CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 27.60 
[2383) EUREKA OXYGEN CO., INC NOZZLE, CENTER FIRE FOR WELDER 16.52 
[2385) EUREKA READYMIX PU BASE 72.02 

PU BASE 
[2386) EUREKA RUBBER STAMP CO. NAME PLATES, NAME PLATE WITH WOOD BASE 63.48 
[2393) FASTENAL COMPANY CIRCULAR SAW KIT, IMPACT WRENCH KIT, STD MAG 1,917.41 
[2393) FASTENAL COMPANY MISC SUPPLIES 8.62 
[2394) FEDEX SHIPPING CHARGES FOR CALIFORNIA STATE 26.90 

LANOSC 
[2405) FORTUNA ACE HARDWARE OUTLET & GFI TESTER LESS $5 CERTIFICATE 8.96 
[2405) FORTUNA ACE HARDWARE 1· SXS SCH 40 COUPLE, 2- PVC40 ADAPTERS, 2- 9 25.93 
[5241) GE CAPITAL XEROX COPIER RENTAL FOR APRIL 2014 475.49 
[0000) GHD, INC ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR DOUBLE ·S· 1,169.75 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REGARDING 
INFILTRATION 
TACMEETING 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - EXPERT WITNESS FOR 
WA 

[3603) JAMES LEE GOFF CLOTHING ALLOWANCE REIMBURSEMENT FOR 139.74 
BOOTS 

[2437) HACH 2 - SENSOR CAP ASSY, 3 - AMMONIA TEST STRIP S 437.79 
[2501) HAJOCA CORPORATION 2 - 2 X 6 FULL CIRCLE REDI CLAMPS 210.49 



~ 
0002726 

0002657 
0002658 

0002659 

0002643 
0002727 
0002660 

0002712 

0002692 
0002713 

0002661 
0002662 
0002728 
0002693 

0002644 

0002729 
0002663 

0002730 
0002694 
0002714 
0002664 

0002715 

0002731 

-> 
o 
00 

Dale 

4/29/2014 

4/03/2014 
4/0312014 

4/03/2014 

4/02/2014 
4/2912014 
4/03/2014 

4/1812014 

4/10/2014 
4/18/2014 

4/03/2014 
4/03/2014 
4/2912014 
4/10/2014 

4/02/2014 

4/29/2014 
4/03/2014 

412912014 
4/10/2014 
4/1812014 
410312014 

4118/2014 

412912014 

1: 

Vendor 

(2501) HAJOCA CORPORATION 

(2474) HUMMEL TIRE & WHEEL, INC 
12485) INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC 

15446) JOHNSON, GORDON 

12502) KEMP INSPECTION SERVICE 
(5454) LAPERRIERE, JOSEPH 
12521) LEAGUE OF CALIF. CITIES 

(4212) LEC CORPORATION 

(2546) MERCER FRASER CO., INC. 
14908J MITCHELL BRISSO DELANEY &VRIEZE 

12410] NORTH COAST CLEANING SERVICES, INC. 
12569] NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. 
[2569] NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. 
[5101] NORTH VALLEY LABOR COMPLIANCE 
SERVICES 
(4393) NYLEX.NET 

14393) NYLEX.NET 
(4546) PAPE' MACHINERY EXCHANGE 

(4548) PAPE' MACHINERY EXCHANGE 
[2603J PG&E 
(3343) PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNT 
(4338) QUILL CORPORATION 

(4338) QUILL CORPORATION 

(5222) RJ. RICCIARDI, INC 

Description Check 1 Parolenl 
2 -AYM VALVES, 2-AYM FEMALE FLARE, 2- LEA 1,203,55 
2 - ROMAC FULL CIRCLE RPR CLAMPS W/l" IP TAP 
12 - ROMAC CLAMPS 
TIRE REPAIR FOR MOWER 93.92 
LABOR AND MATERIALS TO REWIND GOULDS 2HP 999.13 
PUMP 
REIMBURSEMENT FOR LODGING & MILEAGE TO 250.32 
L.O.C, 
INSPECTION SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 487,27 
CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 25.23 
REDWOOD EMPIRE DIVISION GENERAL MEETING 48,00 
(COUN 
TANK CLEANING SERVICE PER PROPOSAL PLUS - 4,865.00 
ADDIT 
3.57 TONS ASPHALT CONCRETE 341 .56 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 4,702.24 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR MARCH 2014 
MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICE FOR MARCH 2014 471.00 
COLIFORM QUANTI-TRAY 50.00 
COLIFORM QUANTI-TRAY 50.00 
WWTP LABOR COMPLIANCE SERVICE FOR MARCH 1,577.00 
2014 
MONTHLY MAINTENANCE: MARCH 15TH THROUGH 900.00 
APRIL 
NETGEAR 6-PORT GB SWITCH 76.85 
FORKLIFT REPAIR 601.27 
FORKLIFT REPAIR 
1000 HR SERVICE FOR JD310 SJ 869.57 
UTILITY EXPENSES FOR MARCH 2014 14,323.74 
POSTAGE PURCHASE FOR RESERVE 400,00 
2 PKGS POST-IT FLAGS, 3 BOXES WINDOW 226.32 
SECURITY 
1 PKG MONITOR WIPES 
15 PACK AVERY HIGH VISIBILITY LABELS 130.50 
1 BOX RUBBER BANDS, PENTEL PENCILS, 1 DOZEN 
Y 
1 BOX CLASP CATALOG ENVELOPES, 1 BOX EASY 
PE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH 6,027.50 
AUDI 



~ 
0002665 
0002732 
0002666 
0002667 
0002733 

0002695 
0002668 

0002696 

0002716 

0002734 

0002717 

0002697 
0002698 

0002669 
0002735 

0002670 
0002736 
0002699 

0002671 
0002737 
0002672 

-" 
o 
ID 

0002718 
0002700 

Dale 
4/03/2014 
4/29/2014 
4/03/2014 
4/03/2014 
4/29/2014 

4/1012014 
4/03/2014 

4/10/2014 

4/18/2014 

412912014 

4/18/2014 

4/10/2014 
4/10/2014 

4/03/2014 
4/29/2014 

4/03/2014 
4/29/2014 
4/10/2014 

4/03/2014 
4/30/2014 
4/03/2014 
4/1812014 
4/10/2014 

". 

~ 
(5560) REDI-RENTS 
13029) REDWOOD COFFEE SERVICE 
12657) RIO DELL EMPLOYEES ASSOC 
[26591 RIO DELL PETTY CASH 
(2662) RIO DELUSCOTIA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

(5092) BRANDI ROCK 
(2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

(2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

(2742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

12742) SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE 

(2694) SHELL OIL CO. 

(4525) SHERLOCK RECORDS MGMT 
(2682) SMALL CITIES ORGANIZED RISK EFFORT 
[SCORE) 
(2710) STARPAGE 
(2715) STEWART TELECOMMUNICATION 

(2319) SUDDENlINK COMMUNICATIONS 
(2319) SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS 
(2735) TIMES-STANDARD 

[2757] US POSTMASTER 
12757) US POSTMASTER 
12481] VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 
)2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 
[2772] WENDT CONSTRUCTION, INC 

"' 
v,'\'· 

Description Che~k 1 Pa~menl 
BARRETO TRACK TRENCHER RENTAL 161.25 
COFFEE 63.00 
DUES FOR QUARTER ENDING 3/31/2014 98.00 
PROPANE 30.51 
HEADWATERS FUND GRANT 12-GF-14, IN KIND 3,125.00 
CONTR 
CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 70.00 
BUTANE FUEL, SUPER GLUE, BUTANE TORCH, 63,96 
TOILET 
2 - 10# PICTURE HANGERS, 6" RECYCLED 
SCISSORS 
FLUSH VAL VE/FLAPPER 
HEX NUTS 
CRIMPING TOOL, ADJ PIST NOZZLE, GT HOT WATER 228.06 
20G lIQ PRO SUPER GLUE, 2- 49" 32W WRAP FLU 
4 - GE 2 PK 32W 48" FLUO LAMPS 
REPL FUEL CAN SPOUT, 5 GAL DIESEL CAN 
1 - 80# CONCRETE MIX 
2 - 80# CONCRETE MIX 
150' GLO LIME FLAG TAPE 65.64 
10 - 80# CONCRETE MIX 
1" GALV PLUG 
3/4 X 5 CAP SCREW, 3/4 NUT NYLOK 
CITRUS POWER REMOVER, OOPS REMOVER, 3 IN 17.01 
ONE 
PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR MARCH 2014 2,645.17 
PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR MARCH 2014 
PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR APRIL 2014 
PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR APRIL 2014 
STORAGE SERVICES FOR APRIL 2014 185.39 
APRIL- JUNE 2014 QUARTERLY PREMIUM FOR 15,633.00 
WORKE 
PAGING SERVICES FOR APRIL 2014 12.95 
LABOR & MATERIAlS TO NSTALL 16EA CAT6 DATA 5,132.88 
CA 
MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICES FOR APRIL 2014 244.04 
MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICES FOR MAY 2014 194.90 
CLASSIFIED ADVEERTISING FOR QUALIFIED 1,250.30 
CONTRAC 
ANNUAL FEE FOR FIRST CLASS PRESORT 220.00 
POSTAGE FOR APRIL 2014 FOR UTILITY BILLING 355.42 
RETIREMENT FOR PPE 3/2112014 6,612.75 
RETIREMENT FOR PPE 4/412014 6,612.75 
VEHICLE REPAIRS 2,016.09 



~ 
0002719 

0002673 

...... 

...... 
o 

LI': 

Date Vendor 
411 B/2014 \2772\ WENDT CONSTRUCTION. INC 

410312014 \2779] WILDWOOD SAW 

Description 

PICK UP AND DELIVER BUCKET TRUCK. MANLIFT 
TRU 
TRIMMER LINE. 3 - AUTO CUT HEADS 

Total Checks/Deposlls 

, 

Check I Payment 
680.00 

148.14 

128.328.88 


